Public Document Pack

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

3 August 2022

Chairman:  Councillor Nigel John Venue: Church Square House,
Sherwood High Street,
Scunthorpe
Time: 2.00 pm E-Mail Address:

(@)

(b)

)

(b)

tanya.davies@northlincs.gov.uk

AGENDA

Substitutions

Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal or Personal
and Prejudicial Interests, significant contact with applicants, objectors or third
parties (Lobbying) and Whipping Arrangements (if any). (Pages 1 - 2)

To take the minutes of the meetings held on 5 July 2022 as a correct record
and authorise the chairman to sign. (Pages 3 - 6)

Major Planning Applications. (Pages 7 - 8)

PA/2022/92 Planning permission to erect 18 dwellings, Garages, Maple
Avenue, Crowle. (Pages 9 - 46)

PA/2022/774 Planning permission for change of use of land to permit the
siting of static caravans (resubmission of PA/2020/1949). Brookside Caravan
Park, Stather Road, Burton upon Stather, DN15 9DH. (Pages 47 - 58)

Planning and other applications for determination by the committee. (Pages
59 - 60)

PA/2019/1028 Listed building consent to repair and refurbish carriage house
and stable/dovecote. Land south of Tetley Hall, Tetley, Crowle, DN17 4HY.
(Pages 61 - 68)

PA/2021/891 Planning permission to erect 9 dwellings with landscaping and
access. Land rear of 9-11 Torksey Street, Kirton in Lindsey, DN21 4PW.
(Pages 69 - 90)



()

(d)

(e)

(f)

@

(h)

(@)

PA/2021/1087 Planning permission to erect three dwelling houses and three
detached single garages with associated landscaping (including demolition of
existing outbuildings). Dondoreen, Marsh Lane, Barton upon Humber, DN18
5HF (Pages 91 - 120)

PA/2021/1180 Outline planning permission to erect five dwellings with all
matters reserved for subsequent consideration and demolition of existing
dwelling. 18 Manor Road, Bottesford, DN16 3PA (Pages 121 - 136)

PA/2021/1224 Planning permission to erect three bungalows. 28 Doncaster
Road, Westwoodside, DN9 2EA. (Pages 137 - 152)

PA/2022/653 Outline planning permission to erect a dwelling with all matters
reserved for subsequent consideration. Land off Belshaw Lane, Belton.
(Pages 153 - 162)

PA/2022/765 Planning permission to make alterations and extensions to
existing dwelling to create additional accommodation, including ground-floor
annexe. 25 North Street, Owston Ferry, DN9 1RT. (Pages 163 - 174)

PA/2022/799 Planning permission to erect a two-storey rear extension to the
dwelling and a two-storey double garage, and carry out internal alterations
and associated works (including the demolition of the existing outbuildings).
57 Main Street, Saxby All Saints, Brigg, DN20 OPZ (Pages 175 - 190)

PA/2022/830 Planning permission for extensions and alterations, including
increase in height of the property, gable dormers to the front, link building and
two-storey side extension, and other associated works. 9 Park Drive,
Westwoodside, Haxey, DN9 2AW. (Pages 191 - 206)

PA/2022/897 Planning permission to erect a dwelling. Land west of
Sherwood House, The Hill, Worlaby, DN20 ONP. (Pages 207 - 222)

Applications for approval of reserved matters following the grant of outline
permission for determination by the committee (Pages 223 - 224)

PA/2022/444 Application for approval of reserved matters (access,
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) pursuant to outline planning
permission PA/2019/1779 dated 12/03/2020 for one dwelling. Newbigg,
Westwoodside, DN9 2AT. (Pages 225 - 232)

Any other items, which the chairman decides are urgent, by reasons of
special circumstances, which must be specified.

Note: All reports are by the Group Manager - Development
Management and Building Control unless otherwise stated.



MEETING:

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL

DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

AT MEETINGS

(to be completed by relevant members present at the meeting below)

Planning Committee

DATE: 3 August 2022 Member Name:

Page Number

Agenda Item Number or
Application Number

Nature of Interest
(Disclosable Pecuniary,
Personal or Personal and
Prejudicial)

Reason/Nature of Declaration

T abed

Declarations of Lobbying and/or Whipping Arrangements - p.t.o.

Z Wa)| epuaby



DECLARATIONS OF LOBBYING

Agenda Item Number
or Application Number

Lobbied By

Z 9bed

DECLARATIONS OF WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS (SCRUTINY PANELS and relevant QUASI-JUDICIAL MEETINGS ONLY)

Name/Group

Agenda Item Number
or Application Number

Nature of Whipping Arrangements




Agenda Iltem 3

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 July 2022
PRESENT: - N Sherwood (Chairman)

N Sherwood (Chairman), C Ross (Vice Chairman), S Bainbridge, C Sherwood,
M Grant, K Vickers, D Southern and D Wells

T Foster

The meeting was held at the Church Square House, High Street, Scunthorpe.

2233 SUBSTITUTIONS
Clir N Sherwood for Cllir Hannigan and ClIr K Vickers for Cllr Davison.

2234 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND
PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS,
SIGNIFICANT CONTACT WITH APPLICANTS, OBJECTORS OR THIRD
PARTIES (LOBBYING) AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS (IF ANY).

The following member declared that he had been lobbied :

Cllr T Foster - Application PA/2022/414

2235 TO TAKE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 8 JUNE 2022 AS
A CORRECT RECORD AND AUTHORISE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN.

2236 APPLICATIONS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS FOR A SITE
VISIT.
In accordance with the decision at the previous meeting, members had
undertaken site visits on the morning of the meeting. The Group Manager —
Development Management submitted reports and updated them orally.

2236a PA/2022/392 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT TWO
DWELLINGS WITH ACCESS (APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT
AND SCALE RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION) AT
LAND ADJACENT TO 18-22 WEST STREET, WINTERTON, DN15 9QF
Cllr N Sherwood stated that he had issues with the application following the
site visit. He felt that the proposal was over powering, and way too large for
the plot available, and would affect the houses that were already there. He
didn’t not feel he could support the application as it did not fit in with the
area, the street scene, and was contrary to a number of planning policies.

It was moved by Clir N Sherwood and seconded by Clir Ross —

Page 3



2237

2237a

2237b

2237c

PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 July 2022

That planning permission be refused for the following reason —
1.

The proposed development would have a detrimental impact on the setting
and character of the existing Almshouses and views of the site from the
wider street scene. The current houses are set with private garden/amenity
space around them and the proposed development would impact on the
openness of the site and result in the loss of amenity space for the
Almshouses. It is considered that the proposed development would have a
significant adverse impact in terms of amenity, local historic character,
appearance and setting. The proposal is considered contrary to saved
policies H5, H7 and DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS5 of
the adopted Core Strategy.

Motion Carried.

PLANNING AND OTHER APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION BY THE
COMMITTEE.

The Group Manager — Development Management submitted a report for
determination by the committee including summaries of policy context,
representations arising from consultation and publicity and assessment of
applications. The Head of Service updated the reports orally where appropriate.
Other officers attending gave advice and answered members’ questions as
requested.

PA/2021/736 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT AN INSULATED
STEEL-FRAMED STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION STRUCTURE (USE
CLASS B8) AT SANDTOFT GATEWAY, SANDTOFT ROAD, WESTGATE,
BELTON, DN9 1FA

Resolved — That planning permission be granted in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the officer’s report.

PA/2022/43 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT TWO-STOREY
EXTENSIONS AND DETACHED GARAGE, AND CARRY OUT INTERNAL
ALTERATIONS AT 6 GLEBE CLOSE, BURTON UPON STATHER, DN15
9BZ

Resolved — That planning permission be granted in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the officer’s report.

PA/2022/414 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A NEW DETACHED
DWELLING WITH ASSOCIATED WORKS (INCLUDING DEMOLITION OF
EXISTING STABLES) AT WEST STREET STABLES, WEST STREET,
HIBALDSTOW

The applicant addressed the committee and outlined the reasons for
submitting the application. He stated that the proposal was the family
dream, and to stay in Hibaldstow. The proposal was to restore the run down
paddocks and restore them to their natural state. He felt it was in keeping
with the area, supported by neighbours and the Parish Council, and whilst

Page 4



2237d

PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 July 2022

slightly out of the boundary it would only improve the infested site and the
area as a whole.

Cllr T Foster spoke as the local ward member and highlighted the local
support there was for the proposal, with no opposition despite the fact that it
was out of the boundary. The site was currently awful and run down, and he
felt a site visit from the committee would be most helpful in their
determination of the application.

Clir Wells having listened to the speakers, and reading the report felt that a
site visit was required before they could make a decision.

Resolved — That a site visit be held and brought back to a future meeting of
the committee.

PA/2022/542 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A DETACHED
DWELLING AND GARAGE (PLOT 3) WITH ASSOCIATED WORKS AT
AXHOLME POULTRY FARM, STATION ROAD, OWSTON FERRY, DN9
1AW

The Planning Officer provided an update to the committee following
comments received from the Flood Authority, and with agreement from the
committee changes were required to the conditions.

Resolved - That planning permission be granted in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the officer’s report, with the replacement
of condition 7 with the following conditions —

7.

No development shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage
scheme for the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The drainage scheme shall demonstrate that
surface water run-off generated up to and including the 1 in 100-year critical
storm (including an allowance for climate change which should be based on
current national guidance) will not exceed the run-off from the existing site. It
shall also include details of how the resulting completed scheme is to be
maintained and managed for the lifetime of the development so that flood
risk, both on and off the site, is not increased. SuDS must be considered.
Reference

should be made to North Lincolnshire Council's SuDS and Flood Risk
Guidance Document. Should infiltration not be feasible at the site,
alternative sustainable drainage should be used, focusing on above-ground
solutions.

Reason
To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to

improve and protect water quality, and to ensure the implementation and
future maintenance of the sustainable drainage structures in accordance

Page 5



2237e

2237f

2237g

PLANNING COMMITTEE
5 July 2022

with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, policies CS18 and
CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 159 to 169 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

8.

The drainage scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved submitted details required by condition 7 above, completed prior
to the occupation of any dwelling or building within each phase or sub-phase
of the development on site, and thereafter retained and maintained in
accordance with the scheme for the life of the development unless otherwise
agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to
improve and protect water quality, and to ensure the implementation and
future maintenance of the sustainable drainage structures in accordance
with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, policies CS18 and
CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 159 to 169 of
the National Planning Policy Framework

PA/2022/734 LISTED BUILDING CONSENT TO ERECT A DETACHED
DWELLING AND GARAGE (PLOT 3) WITH ASSOCIATED WORKS AT
AXHOLME POULTRY FARM, STATION ROAD, OWSTON FERRY, DN9
1AW

Resolved — That planning permission be granted in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the officer’s report.

PA/2022/579 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A TWO-BAY OAK-
FRAMED DOUBLE GARAGE WITH ADJOINING STORAGE BUILDINGS
AT NEBRASKA FARM, INGS ROAD, KIRTON IN LINDSEY, DN21 4BX
Resolved — That planning permission be granted in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the officer’s report.

PA/2022/687 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR A REPLACEMENT ROOF
WITH ATTIC TRUSSES TO ACCOMMODATE SECOND FLOOR WITH
TWO DORMER WINDOWS AT 21 DREWRY LANE, WESTWOODSIDE,
HAXEY, DN9 2RE

Resolved — That planning permission be granted in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the officer’s report.

2238 ANY OTHER ITEMS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT,

BY REASONS OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, WHICH MUST BE
SPECIFIED.

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Report of the Agenda Item No:
Development Management Lead Meeting: 3 August 2022

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

MAJOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS
FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE

1. OBJECT

1.1 To inform the committee about major planning applications which are ready
for determination.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 This committee is required under its terms of reference to exercise the
functions of the council as local planning authority for the purposes of the
control of development, including the determination of applications for
planning permission and other applications under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, General Development Orders, and any Orders or Regulations
made thereunder, and in accordance with the council’'s planning policies.

2.2 In exercising these functions the committee is required to have regard to the
National Planning Policy Framework, the development plan for the area and
any other material considerations. It will also take account of the duty imposed
by section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the requirements of the
Human Rights Act 1998.

3. INFORMATION
3.1 Items for determination are listed in the attached schedule.

3.2 References to standard time limit conditions and standard outline conditions
mean the conditions automatically applied by sections 91 and 92 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

3.3 Reports will be updated at the meeting if necessary to take account of
additional relevant information received after publication.

3.4 Plans included with reports are for identification and/or illustrative purposes
only. Applications and supporting documents can be viewed in full on the
planning pages of the council’s web site.

3.5 Members will visit the sites in the morning on the day of the meeting if
deemed necessary by the Chairman of the Planning Committee in
consultation with the Development Management Lead.

4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

4.1  There are no staffing or financial implications arising from this report.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 7



4.2  Environmental considerations are of major importance when considering
planning applications and are set out in the individual reports.

RECOMMENDATION

5.1 That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations
contained in the schedule.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT LEAD

Church Square House
30-40 High Street
SCUNTHORPE

DN15 6NL

Reference: CB/JMC/Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx
Date: 25 July 2022

Background papers used in the preparation of this report:

1.
2.

5.
6.

The applications including accompanying plans and ancillary correspondence.
Statutory and non-statutory consultation letters and responses.

Responses from parish and town councils.

Representations from other bodies or individuals.

Relevant planning policy documents.

Previous relevant planning decisions.

(Pursuant to section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 any document containing
‘exempt information’ is excluded from this list.)

Statement of publication's purpose

The Ordnance Survey map data included within this publication is provided by North
Lincolnshire Council under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public
function to act as a planning authority. Persons viewing this mapping should contact
Ordnance Survey copyright for advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey map
data for their own use.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 8




Agenda Iltem 4a

APPLICATION NO PA/2022/92

APPLICANT Amy Schoenmaker, Ongo Homes

DEVELOPMENT Planning permission to erect 18 dwellings

LOCATION Garages, Maple Avenue, Crowle

PARISH Crowle

WARD Axholme North

CASE OFFICER Tanya Coggon

SUMMARY Subject to the completion of a section 106 agreement, grant
RECOMMENDATION permission subject to conditions

REASONS FOR Member ‘call in’ (Clirs John Briggs and Julie Reed — significant
REFERENCE TO public interest)

COMMITTEE

Significant public interest
POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework:
Chapter 2 — Achieving sustainable development
Chapter 4 — Decision-making
Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport
Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land
Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places
Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Chapter 16 — Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment Framework:
North Lincolnshire Local Plan:
Policy H5 (New Housing Development)
Policy H8 (Housing Design and Housing Mix)
Policy H10 (Public Open Space Provision in New Housing Development)
Policy T1 (Location of Development)

Policy T2 (Access to Development)

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 9



Policy T6 (Pedestrian Routes and Footpaths)

Policy T19 (Car Parking Provision and Standards)

Policy LC5 (Species Protection)

Policy HE9 (Archaeological Excavation)

Policy DS1 (General Requirements)

Policy DS3 (Planning Out Crime)

Policy DS7 (Contaminated Land)

Policy DS13 (Groundwater Protection and Land Drainage)
Policy DS14 (Foul Sewage and Surface Water Drainage)
Policy DS15 (Water Resources)

Policy DS16 (Flood Risk)

North Lincolnshire Core Strategy:

Policy CS1 (Spatial Strategy for North Lincolnshire)

Policy CS2 (Delivering more Sustainable Development)
Policy CS3 (Development Limits)

Policy CS5 (Design)

Policy CS6 (Historic Environment)

Policy CS7 (Overall Housing Provision)

Policy CS8 (Spatial Distribution of Housing Sites)

Policy CS9 (Affordable Housing)

Policy CS16 (North Lincolnshire’s Landscape, Greenspace and Waterscape)
Policy CS17 (Biodiversity)

Policy CS18 (Sustainable Resource Use and Climate Change)
Policy CS19 (Flood Risk)

Policy CS22 (Community Facilities and Services)

Policy CS23 (Sport, Recreation and Open Space)

Policy CS25 (Promoting Sustainable Transport)

Policy CS27 (Planning Obligations)

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 10



Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD:

Policy PS1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development)
Other relevant guidance:

SPG8: Developer Contributions to Schools

SPG: Provision of Open Space in New Housing Developments
CONSULTATIONS

Highways: No objections subject to conditions relating to access, parking and footway
connections.

Environment Agency: The proposed development will only meet the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) requirements in relation to flood risk if planning conditions are
included relating to finished floor levels, flood resilience measures, grounds floors used as
non-habitable accommodation and no extensions to provide additional habitable/living
accommodation.

LLFA Drainage: No objection subject to conditions relating to the submission of a surface
water scheme and details showing an effective method of preventing surface water run-off
from hard paved areas within the site onto the highway.

Severn Trent Water: Foul [drainage] is proposed to connect into the public foul water
sewer, which will be subject to a formal section 106 sewer connection approval. A sewer
modelling study may be required to determine the impact this development will have on the
existing system and if flows can be accommodated. Severn Trent may need to undertake a
more comprehensive study of the catchment to determine if capital improvements are
required. If Severn Trent needs to undertake capital improvements, a reasonable amount of
time will need to be determined to allow these works to be completed before any additional
flows are connected.

Surface water is proposed to discharge into soakaways, [on] which we have no comment.
For the use or reuse of sewer connections either direct or indirect to the public sewerage
system the applicant will be required to make a formal application to the Company under
Section 106 of the Water Industry Act 1991.

Environmental Protection:
Contamination

The site investigation was written in July 2015 and is not sufficient to fulfil the requirements
of assessing the risks for contaminated land. The report covers a geotechnical aspect
which has considered the geology and the suitability of soil structure for foundations for the
proposed development. It does not consider contaminated land and follow current
guidance. | have noted that there is the potential for contamination to be present as it
appears that the roofs of the garages contain corrugated sheeting and the recommendation
in the report is that an asbestos survey is undertaken prior to removal. Our records indicate
that the main area has been used for agricultural purposes. Agricultural land has the
potential to be impacted upon by contaminants such as sewage sludge, agrochemicals,

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 11



asbestos, heavy metals and hydrocarbons which are harmful to human health. Recommend
a full contamination planning condition.

Air quality

In order to assess potential air quality requirements this department has followed the
guidance set out in the document...Institute of Air Quality Management Land Use Planning
and Development  Control: Planning  for  Air  Quality January 2017
(http://www.iagm.co.uk/text/guidance/air-quality-planning-guidance.pdf).  This document
provides a means of reaching sound decisions whilst having regard to air quality
implications of development proposals; it represents good practice that developers should
follow.

This application is for residential development on land covering approximately 0.53
hectares. This fulfils the Stage 1 Criteria in Table 6.1 of the above guidance as the
application involves 10 or more residential units on a site area of more than 0.5ha and
includes more than 10 parking spaces. For the proposed development, the Stage 2 Criteria
set out in Table 6.2 has not been fulfilled. Developments should be located and designed
where practical to enable future occupiers to make green vehicle choices and promote
sustainable modes of transport in accordance with Section 9 of the NPPF. To prepare for
increased demand in future years, appropriate cable provision should be included in the
development. Recommend a condition for the provision of electrical vehicle charging points
for the scheme.

Construction

To prevent local residents and other sensitive receptors being affected during the
construction of the proposed development conditions are recommended for restrictions on
days and hours for construction, demolition and site clearance operations and the
submission of a CEMP.

HER (Archaeology): There are no designated heritage assets in the vicinity. There are no
known heritage assets of archaeological interest recorded within the site and the potential
for the presence of as yet unrecorded archaeological remains is judged to be low.

Ecology: There is a 100% increase in hedgerow units, but a 39.92% decrease in habitat
units on site. The proposal does not comply with policies CS5 and CS17. The application
should only be approved if there are overriding reasons to accept the net loss of habitat on
site. In that case, it will be necessary for the applicant to provide habitat creation and
enhancement off site.

S$106 Officer: As the scheme is proposed to be fully affordable, this is requested through a
section 106 contribution. An education contribution for this development will not be sought
as it is a fully affordable scheme. For an application of this size, and in this location, on-site
informal open space is requested of 10sgm per dwelling; for the council to maintain this
land it would be £6,992.60, or the open space can be managed by Ongo Homes and no
financial contribution would be required. If biodiversity net gain cannot be secured on site
through condition, this may have to be secured through a section 106 agreement as an off-
site contribution.

Recycling: General guidance on bin types, vehicular access, highway construction for a
refuse vehicle, pulling distances for residents and crew collection, refuse and recycling
storage.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 12



TOWN COUNCIL

In response to the original and amended plans: We strongly object to this application on

the grounds of:

This area has a high level of surface flood water and is a known ‘water meadow’.

It severely floods several times per annum.

We will lose a valuable green space from our community.

The submitted plans clearly show a vast amount of overlooking from the proposed

three-storey builds to the existing bungalows.

The density of the build is excessive for the area.

PUBLICITY

Both the original and amended plans have been advertised by press and site notices. 64
letters of objection have been received to the original and amended plans raising the

following material planning considerations:

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx

Loss of light/overshadowing

Overlooking

Loss of garages

Flooding

Loss of wildlife

Out of character

Viability should not be an issue

Gardens too small

Over-development

Loss of green space/play area space/sports field
Drainage infrastructure is inadequate

Loss of recreational land

Services/village infrastructure under pressure
Increased traffic

Increased noise and disturbance

Increased footfall

Page 13



e 3 swift boxes per dwelling should be installed

e Bungalows should be built

e Access unsafe

¢ Infringes Article 8 of Human Rights Act

e Sustainability benefits do not outweigh the flood risk
e Schools over-subscribed

e Other sites more suitable

e Contrary to H11 Backland/tandem development
e Small garden sizes

e Lack of public transport links

e Site is not vacant — garages are in use

e Loss of hedge

e Increased on-street parking

e Contrary to planning policy.
STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The applicant has submitted details of a statement of community consultation. This public
consultation was carried out from 13 December 2021 until 3 January 2022. 84 properties
were posted a cover letter and drawings. Consultees were invited to complete a feedback
form either digitally or by post. Copies of the consultation and feedback have been
submitted to the council. 29 responses were received in total with 28 objections and 1
response in support.

In summary, most respondents were dissatisfied with the scheme. The main issues raised
were:

e flooding and drainage;
e the type, range and number of homes; and
e impact on the infrastructure/services in Crowle.

In response to these concerns, the applicant considers that works are planned by North
Lincolnshire Council to deal with the drains which cause localised flooding on Godnow
Road and the proposals are supported by a drainage strategy. The three-storey dwellings
will overcome flood risk requirements. The site is not an allocated playing or sports field.
Alternatives to building three-storey dwellings have been fully explored but will require land
raising and retaining structures making the scheme unviable and would result in the overall
building heights for a scheme of two-storey dwellings.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 14



ASSESSMENT
The proposal

The proposal is to erect 18, 2.5-storey dwellings on the site. Non-habitable accommodation
is provided on the ground floor to overcome the flood risk associated with the site. The
scheme has been amended following concerns from the case officer over the number of
dwellings originally proposed on the site (20) and the design of these properties which were
clear three-storey in form, resulting in overlooking to adjoining residents and overbearing
impact in terms of the overall height of the dwellings.

The scheme has been designed to reduce the number of dwellings to 18 and the design of
the dwellings has been amended to provide rooms in the roofspace, thereby reducing the
overall height of the dwellings. Windows have been removed/repositioned/redesigned to
mitigate overlooking. The dwellings are designed with rooms in the roofspace which are lit
by rooflights in the rear elevation and dormer windows in the front elevation. The dwellings
comprise the following accommodation:

e Ground floor: undercroft car parking, hall, utility and WC
e First floor: kitchen/diner, living room, store, bathroom and landing
e Second floor (roofspace): 3 bedrooms and a landing.

The buildings will be constructed from brick and tile, although the exact materials are not
specified on the submitted plans. An adequate amount of private garden area is provided
for each dwelling with public open space to be provided on the site.

The main access to the site will be from Maple Avenue and a cul-de sac arrangement is
proposed. A new, formal pedestrian access will be located on Godnow Road and will lead
into the site. Car parking for the dwellings will be provided either within the curtilages of the
dwellings or in a designated car parking area to the eastern side of the site. The proposal
will require the existing garages adjacent to Maple Avenue to be demolished. Public open
space is to be provided on the site adjacent to the proposed dwellings, close to the main
access to the site (Maple Avenue).

The site

The site is within the development boundary of Crowle and is not allocated for any
purpose/use in the HELA DPD. The site is an area of open green space that is used by the
public. There are existing garages on the site, adjacent to and with access from Maple
Avenue, and a hardstanding area. The garages are falling into disrepair, but some are in
use. There is informal pedestrian access to the site from Godnow Road. The site (red line
boundary) is owned by Ongo Homes and this has been confirmed by the declaration made
on the planning application form. The site is within flood zone 2/3a (tidal) and is therefore at
high risk of flooding. The site is broadly level and is surrounded by dwellings on all sides.
To the north, south and west are two-storey dwellings and to the north-east are bungalows.

Relevant planning history

There are no relevant planning applications associated with the site.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 15



Material considerations
Principle

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning
applications to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. In this instance the development plan consists of the
North Lincolnshire Local Plan (NLLP) which was adopted in May 2003, the North
Lincolnshire Core Strategy (NLCS) which was adopted in June 2011 and the Housing and
Employment Land Allocations (HELA) DPD which was adopted in March 2016. Material
considerations exist in the form of national planning policy and guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the suite of documents comprising the
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG).

The site is within the development boundary for Crowle, where residential development is
generally acceptable in principle, and is in a highly sustainable location within walking and
cycling distance of a range of local facilities, services and employment opportunities. The
site is close to a number of bus stops and Ealand train station is just over 2km from the site.

Policy CS1 of the NLCS identifies Crowle as being one of a number of market towns, which
are considered to be important service centres serving the needs of local communities
across North Lincolnshire. Policy CS1 confirms that an appropriate level and range of new
housing development will be provided to support the market towns as sustainable
communities with an aspiration to deliver 2,171 dwellings in these settlements over the plan
period. Policy CS8 further sets out that there is a requirement to deliver 145 dwellings in
Crowle specifically. These figures are a minimum target and do not form a maximum
threshold for the delivery of housing, which would run contrary to the provisions of the
National Planning Policy Framework which seeks to significantly boost the supply of
housing. Therefore, development plan policy confirms the view that Crowle is a sustainable
settlement with the key facilities, services, employment opportunities and regular public
transport to support new housing development.

Policy CS7 of the Core Strategy sets out an aspirational minimum density of 40-45
dwellings per hectare on sites within the market towns. However, this policy also states that
whilst housing developments should make efficient use of land, the density of new
developments should be in keeping with the character of the area. The proposed
development of 18 dwellings results in a density of approximately 33 dwellings per hectare,
which falls below the minimum density sought by policy CS7 (40-45 dwellings per hectare).
However, the proposed layout makes provision for a good-sized area of open space,
footway connections onto Godnow Road and Maple Avenue, and a parking area. The area
of new housing is considered to be appropriate for the area, being similar to the density of
surrounding residential areas. The proposal for 18 affordable dwellings is considered to
represent an efficient use of land, as required by paragraph 124 of the NPPF. In light of the
site being in a very sustainable location, this number of affordable dwellings will make a
significant contribution to the housing need in Crowle. On this basis, the slightly lesser
density than that sought by policy CS7 is considered justified in this instance.

Policy CS9 of the Core Strategy sets out the requirements for affordable housing along with
the council’s interim affordable housing policy. In this case the proposed development is a
100% affordable housing scheme and will align with policy CS9.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 16



Notwithstanding the development plan policies set out above, the NPPF is a material
consideration when determining planning applications. Paragraph 10 of the NPPF states,
‘So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.” Paragraph 11(d) of the
NPPF states that housing applications should be considered in the context of the
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Where the local planning authority
cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites, relevant policies which
were most important to determining the application should not be considered up-to-date.

A recent appeal decision dated 20 July 2022 (planning reference PA/2020/554) has been
issued where the Inspector has concluded that the council does not currently have a five-
year housing land supply of deliverable sites. The council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply
Position Statement is awaiting an update and as such any decisions made by the planning
authority will take account of the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set
out in paragraph 11 of the NPPF. The current local policies which are most important for
determining the application will carry reduced weight during this period.

The site is within the development boundary of Crowle where the principle of residential
development is considered acceptable. The proposal generally accords with the relevant
policies of the development plan. As such the statutory presumption in section 38(6) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 is engaged, which states that planning
permission should be granted unless other material considerations indicate otherwise. The
proposal is considered to represent sustainable development and the presumption in favour
set out in paragraph 11 of the Framework is triggered. In determining the principle and
sustainability of the proposed development, an assessment is required on the technical
elements of the proposal which will be discussed below.

Flood risk and drainage

Policies DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, and CS18 and CS19 of the North
Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 166 and 167 of the NPPF are considered
highly relevant.

The Environment Agency (EA), LLFA, and Severn Trent Water have been consulted on the
Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and drainage information and do not object to the proposal
subject to a number of conditions that will be imposed on any planning permission granted.

The application site is within flood zone 2/3a (tidal). The scale of development also has the
potential to increase flood risk elsewhere. The council acts as the Lead Local Flood
Authority and has a statutory duty to promote and prioritise the use of Sustainable Urban
Drainage Systems or SuDS in accordance with local and national planning policy
requirements. A flood risk assessment, drainage strategy and drainage strategy plan have
been submitted in support of the application.

In terms of flood risk, the EA does not object to the proposal subject to conditions. These
conditions include ensuring the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted
FRA; the ground floor accommodation only being used for undercroft parking, a utility,
entrance hall, WC and store (as shown on the plans); and that no extensions to provide
habitable/living accommodation shall be erected.

Being in flood zone 2/3a, the site is at high risk of flooding. Both the sequential and
exceptions tests will need to be passed in order for the development to be acceptable in

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 17



terms of flood risk, as set out in the NPPF. The applicant has provided a sequential test as
part of the flood risk assessment. Paragraph 162 of the NPPF notes that the purpose of the
sequential test is to steer new development to areas with the lowest probability of flooding.
The aim is to steer new development to Flood Zone 1. Paragraph 163 states that only
where there are no reasonably available sites in Flood Zones 1 or 2 should the suitability of
sites in Flood Zone 3 be considered, taking into account the flood risk vulnerability of land
uses and applying the exception test if necessary.

Within the FRA the search for alternative development sites was limited to the settlement of
Crowle. Crowle is identified as a market town and is a highly sustainable location for
development. It is considered there are no sequentially preferable available sites of lesser
flood risk suitable for the proposed development within Crowle. It must be noted that a
significant area of the settlement of Crowle is also within flood zone 2/3a which limits the
search area.

In terms of the exception test, NPPF paragraph 164 states that for the exception test to be
passed it should be demonstrated that:

(@) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that
outweigh the flood risk; and

(b)  the development will be safe for its lifetime, taking account of the vulnerability of its
users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and where possible reducing flood
risk overall.

Both elements of the test need to be satisfied for development to be permitted.

The scheme would bring about a number of sustainable benefits, including (but not limited
to) affordable housing, energy efficient homes, proximity to employment areas, services
and amenities, provision of open space, landscaping, increased pedestrian and cycle
connectivity, off-site biodiversity enhancement and SuDs. It is considered that the scheme
would provide wider sustainability benefits and part ‘a’ of the exceptions test is considered
passed.

The Environment Agency, LLFA and Severn Trent Water have all been consulted and have
no objections to the scheme subject to the imposition of conditions. It is considered that this
mitigation would make the development safe for its lifetime, taking account of the
vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and where possible
reducing flood risk overall; part b of the exceptions test is therefore considered passed.
Conditions from these consultees relate to control over both surface water and foul sewage
disposal, the development proceeding in accordance with the submitted FRA, finished floor
levels and non-habitable accommodation on the ground floor of the properties. Therefore,
subject to the aforementioned mitigation, it is considered that the proposal would accord
with policies CS19 of the Core Strategy, and DS14 and DS16 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

In terms of surface water run-off, the development will increase in impermeable area and
potentially run-off from the site will also be increased. Soakaways are proposed and it is
noted that that the subsoils make infiltration unfeasible. The LLFA consider that the
developer will need to investigate a hybrid conventional piped network and SuDS systems
where feasible. In order to mitigate surface water run-off the LLFA are proposing a number
of conditions including the submission of a surface water drainage strategy. It is therefore

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 18



considered, subject to drainage conditions, that the proposal will align with the NPPF,
policies CS18 and CS19 of the Core Strategy, and policies DS14 and DS16 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

In terms of foul water, this is proposed to connect into the public foul water sewer, which will
be subject to a formal section 106 sewer connection approval. Severn Trent have advised
that a sewer modelling study may be required to determine the impact this development will
have on the existing system and if flows can be accommodated. Severn Trent may need to
undertake a more comprehensive study of the catchment to determine if capital
improvements are required. If Severn Trent needs to undertake capital improvements, they
will require a reasonable amount of time to be determined to allow these works to be
completed before any additional flows are connected. In this case Severn Trent are not
objecting to the proposal in terms of foul water. The response from Severn Trent indicates
that the foul water could be accommodated within the ‘current system’ subject to sewer
modelling and potentially, if following this modelling capital improvements are required, then
Severn Trent have indicated that they would undertake capital improvements. A condition
can be imposed if planning permission is granted for details of the foul water to be
submitted to the council for approval. As part of this process Severn Trent would be
consulted. It is therefore considered, subject to a foul water condition, that the proposal will
align with the NPPF and policy DS14 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Highways

Policy T2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan states that all development should be served
by a satisfactory access. Policy T19 is concerned with parking provision and general
highway safety. Both policies are considered relevant. Policy CS25 of the Core Strategy is
also relevant and seeks to support and promote a sustainable transport system in North
Lincolnshire that offers a choice of transport modes and reduces the need to travel through
spatial planning and design and by utilising a range of demand and network management
tools. The site is within the market town of Crowle, within walking and cycling distance of
the centre of Crowle where a range of services and facilities are available. The site is also
close to a bus route and there are connections to the train station at Ealand.

The main access to the site is from Maple Avenue with a formal pedestrian access
proposed from Godnow Road. Highways have been consulted on the application and have
no objections subject to conditions relating to the layout and visibility of the access, car
parking and turning arrangements. Concerns from residents over increased on-street
parking and highway safety issues are noted. However, planning conditions will ensure
satisfactory car parking is provided on the site to serve the development and that the
access is constructed to the required standards. The loss of the garages on the site are
noted as these appear to be used by residents surrounding the site. However, it is not
considered that the loss of these garages would substantially increase on-street parking.
The majority of properties surrounding the site do have off-street car parking available.

The proposal is considered to be acceptable in highway terms and aligns with the NPPF,
policy CS25 of the Core Strategy, and policies T1, T2 and T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

Character, visual impact and amenity

In terms of character and visual impact on the area, the site is within the development
boundary of Crowle within an established residential area. It is primarily a green area of

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 19



open space but is not allocated in the development plan for any use/purpose/function. The
site is surrounded by residential properties on all sides and is well embedded into the
existing residential area of this part of Crowle. It is relatively enclosed by the existing
residential development. The character of the site will change from being an essentially
green open space with 1960's garages to an affordable housing site with associated
infrastructure. The dwellings surrounding the site comprise bungalows and two-storey
dwellings and are a mix of terraces, and semi-detached and detached dwellings. The age of
the properties is also a mix with the more modern dwellings located on Maple Avenue and
older properties along Godnow Road and Laburnum Grove.

The proposed dwellings are in effect 2.5-storey in height as rooms are provided in the roof
space, with dormer windows and rooflights, to reduce the overall height of the dwellings.
Non-habitable accommodation is required on the ground floor due to the flood risk
associated with the site (Flood zone 2/3a). There is some detailing on the dwellings,
including different types of bricks, to provide interesting features. Whilst the dwellings will
be higher than the surrounding dwellings, they will not be overly visible from Godnow Road
as the only opening to the site on Godnow Road is a pedestrian access which has some
existing tree screening and additional planting is proposed along it. The dwellings are set
well back from Godnow Road and are partially screened by the existing dwellings on
Godnow Road. The dwellings on Laburnum Grove are bungalows. There is no access from
Laburnum Grove into the site. The proposed dwellings are set a considerable distance from
Laburnum Grove (access) and public views from Laburnum Grove will be more limited due
to the distance the dwellings are from the access road forming Laburnum Grove and as
some screening is provided by the bungalows.

The dwellings will be visible from the access road leading from Maple Avenue into the site.
However, they are set well back from the access entrance onto Maple Avenue with an area
of public open space to be provided adjacent to the access road. 5 Maple Avenue will also
provide some screening of some of the plots. On balance, although the dwellings are higher
than the surrounding dwellings, due to their siting, design and layout, and the relatively
enclosed nature of the site which restricts views of the development from surrounding
streets, it is not considered that the development would be out of character with the area
such that a refusal can be justified in planning policy terms. In terms of character and visual
impact on the area, the proposal therefore accords with policies H5, H8 and DS1 of the
NLLP, and policies CS2, CS5, CS7 and CS8 of the Core Strategy.

In terms of amenity, the impact on adjoining residential properties needs to be carefully
assessed due to the number of dwellings proposed, the 2.5-storey dwellings proposed and
the fact that adjoining dwellings surround the whole site. Turning first to Laburnum Grove,
this is a small cul-de-sac development of bungalows. Plots 7 and 8 of the proposed
development will be 30m from numbers 2 to 8 Laburnum Grove. Whilst the dwellings will be
visible from these properties, due to the separation distances and the fact that the flank
elevation wall (north-east) of plot 8 will have no windows, there will be no demonstrable loss
of amenity to numbers 2 to 8. Plot 9 of the scheme will be 6.8m from 16 Laburnum Grove.
Number 16 has no windows in its south-western elevation and plot 9 has no windows in its
flank wall (north-eastern). Plot 9 runs parallel and projects slightly beyond number 16. Due
to plot 9's layout, the fact that there are no windows in its flank elevation and the separation
distance with number 16, whilst plot 9 will be visible from number 16’s rear garden and rear
windows, but at an oblique angle, no demonstrable loss of amenity will be caused to this
property and the proposal aligns with policies H5 and DS1 of the NLLP, and CS5 and CS7
of the Core Strategy.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 20



In terms of Maple Avenue, the rear of plots 11 to 18 face the rear gardens of 25 to 33 Maple
Avenue. There is a minimum separation distance of 22m from the rear of plots 11 to 18 to
these properties on Maple Avenue which will safeguard privacy between the proposed and
existing dwellings. The proposed dwellings are 2.5-storey with rooflights in the roofspace.
The ground-floor windows in the rear elevation serve non-habitable accommodation (utility
and WC, the WC being obscure-glazed) and will be screened by the existing boundary
fencing. The first-floor windows in the rear elevation comprise a bathroom window, to be
obscure-glazed, and a kitchen/dining room window. This kitchen/dining room window is at a
higher level and is 1.5m above the proposed floor level. The window (glazing) itself is
approximately 0.4m in height. The applicant has provided cross-sections demonstrating the
line of vision from a person of average height looking out of this window. This demonstrates
that there will not be a clear line of vision into the rear gardens of Maple Avenue. Rooflights
are proposed in the roof and serve bedrooms. The applicant has also provided cross-
sections demonstrating the line of vision from a person of average height looking out of the
rooflight. The line of vision is upward into the sky and would not result in overlooking of the
garden areas of Maple Avenue.

39 Maple Avenue is closer to the site and at right angles to the south-eastern boundary of
the application site. There is a separation distance between the flank elevation of number
39 and plot 9 of 14m. The flank elevation of number 39 contains no habitable windows. In
terms of garden area, the rear elevation of plots 9 and 10 faces the rear garden of number
39. The rear window arrangement for plots 9 and 10 is the same as plots 11 to 18. It has
been demonstrated that the first-floor and roof windows will not directly overlook the rear
garden of this property. Whilst the proposed development at 2.5 storeys in height will be
visible from the rear windows (at an oblique angle) and garden area of properties on Maple
Avenue, no demonstrable loss of amenity will be caused to these properties by the
proposed development and the proposal aligns with policies H5 and DS1 of the NLLP, and
CS5 and CS7 of the Core Strategy.

1, 2, 27 and 29 Godnow Road are closest to the proposed development. Number 2 is 12m
from plot 4 and its principal windows face north-east towards the proposed footpath and to
the south-west. The private garden is to the south-west. The flank elevation has no
windows. The front garden (north-east) is covered with outbuildings. This property will have
an oblique view of the proposed dwellings from its rear windows and from the first-floor front
windows, and will have a view of the development from the rear garden. The rear elevation
of the proposed dwellings will have an obscured window at first floor and a high-level
kitchen/dining room window, with rooms in the roof lit by rooflights. Due to the high-level
kitchen/dining room window and the position of the rooflights, no direct overlooking into the
rear garden area will result. It is accepted that plots 3 and 4 will be visible from this property
but there is sufficient separation distance to prevent an overbearing or oppressive impact
being caused to number 2.

29 Godnow Road adjoins number 2 and its main garden is to the front of the property
adjacent to Godnow Road. There is a distance of 21m from number 29 to plot 3. Due to the
window arrangement in the rear of plot 3 (mentioned previously) and the separation
distances, no overlooking, or overbearing or oppressive impact, will be caused to number
29. The proposal therefore aligns with policies H5 and DS1 of the NLLP, and CS5 and CS7
of the Core Strategy.

1 Godnow Road has a single-storey lean-to extension on its flank elevation but no habitable
windows. To the rear is a hardstanding area covered by a substantial outbuilding. The main
garden area is to the front of the property adjacent to the proposed footpath. There is a

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 21



distance of 12m from the flank wall of number 1 to plot 6. The rear elevations of plots 5, 6
and 7 are arranged as previously mentioned in this report. Due to the window arrangement
in the rear of plots 5, 6 and 7 and the separation distances, no overlooking will be caused to
number 1. Plots 5, 6 and 7 will be visible from this property’s front and rear windows at an
oblique angle and from the garden, but due to the separation distances, this will not cause a
demonstrable overbearing or oppressive impact on the property.

27 Godnow Road has a two-storey extension and a single-storey extension to the north-
eastern side. There is a separation distance of 20m between number 27 and plot 7. The
private garden area to number 27 is to the front of the property. Whilst plots 6 to 8 will be
visible from the rear of this property, there is considered to be an adequate separation
distance between these plots and number 27 to avoid both overlooking into the rear and an
overbearing impact. The proposal therefore aligns with policies H5 and DS1 of the NLLP,
and CS5 and CS7 of the Core Strategy.

In terms of the other properties along Godnow Road, these are essentially two-storey semi-
detached and terraced dwellings. The proposed development of 2.5 storeys will be visible
from the rear windows and gardens of these properties. Due to the separation distances
between the plots and the position, type and design of windows on the rear elevation of
plots 1 to 8 (as mentioned in the above section of this report), it is considered that no
demonstrable loss of amenity will be caused to residents on Godnow Road by the proposed
development.

Cultural heritage

The site is neither within nor adjacent to Crowle conservation area and there are no listed
buildings adjacent to the site. In terms of archaeology, HER have confirmed that there are
no known heritage assets of archaeological interest recorded within the site and the
potential for the presence of as yet unrecorded archaeological remains is judged to be low.
As a result, the proposal will have no impact on cultural heritage and the proposal aligns
with policies HE2 and HES5 of the NLLP, and CS6 of the Core Strategy.

Ecology/biodiversity

Policies CS5 and CS17 of the Core Strategy deal with biodiversity. Policies LC5 to LC7 of
the NLLP deal with species, habitat and landscape. The applicant has submitted an ecology
report and biodiversity matrix 3.0 with the application. The council’'s ecologist has been
consulted on the proposal. In terms of the results of these surveys, the biodiversity matrix
confirms that there is a 100% increase in hedgerow units, but a 39.92% decrease in habitat
units on site. Therefore, there will be a net loss of habitat on site and biodiversity net gain
(BNG) cannot be provided on the site, which is contrary to policies CS5 and CS17 of the
Core Strategy and the NPPF. The biodiversity mitigation hierarchy seeks to provide
biodiversity net gain on site; if this cannot be achieved, off-site opportunities should be
identified; and where BNG cannot be delivered off site, via the market as a last resort
statutory credits can be purchased. In this case, there is concern from residents that the
proposal will result in the loss of wildlife and habitats on the site. However, this must be
balanced against the provision of affordable homes on the site, for which there is a strong
need in North Lincolnshire.

It is regrettable that BNG cannot be provided on the site. However, the benefits of the
provision of affordable housing outweigh the loss of the BNG on the site. BNG can be
provided off-site via a financial contribution (obtained through an S106 — see later in this

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 22



report). Planning conditions will also be used to secure biodiversity enhancements and
landscaping on the site. Therefore, subject to the off-site contribution for BNG and planning
conditions, the proposal would align with policies CS5 and CS17 of the Core Strategy, and
the NPPF, to ensure a net benefit in terms of ecology and biodiversity.

Air quality and sustainable resource

Policy CS18 is concerned with sustainable resource use and climate change. Its purpose is
to promote development that utilises natural resources as efficiently and sustainably as
possible. Two points of this policy are relevant:

(10) ensuring development and land use helps to protect people and the environment
from unsafe, unhealthy and polluted environments, by protecting and improving the
guality of the air, land and water; and

(12) supporting new technology and development for carbon capture and the best
available clean and efficient energy technology, particularly in relation to the heavy
industrial users in North Lincolnshire, to help reduce CO2 emissions.

The council's Environmental Health department have assessed the proposal and have
proposed a condition that, prior to development, a scheme for electric vehicle charging
points shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the local planning authority. The
request is considered to be in accordance with the above policy requirements and will be
attached to any permission to mitigate the impact upon air quality generated by the
development. It is considered that the imposition of this condition would not only satisfy
policy CS18 of the Core Strategy, but also DS11 of the local plan by making a positive
impact upon the reduction of polluting activities. In addition, the applicant has submitted an
energy report with the application outlining sustainable energy reduction and generation
features to be installed into the proposed dwellings, including heat pumps and solar panels.

Land contamination

Policy DS7 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan is concerned with contaminated land. It
states that permission will only be granted on contaminated sites where a detailed site
survey has been submitted, and a suitable scheme of remedial measures has been agreed
to overcome any existing contamination. The submitted site investigation is not considered
sufficiently robust and therefore a planning condition will be used to ensure a satisfactory
site investigation and remediation scheme is submitted for approval by the council before
development takes place.

Planning obligations

Policy CS27 is concerned with planning obligations and states that where a development
proposal generates an identified need for additional infrastructure, North Lincolnshire
Council will, through the negotiation of planning obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 and in accordance with guidance set out in Circular
05/2005, seek obligations that are necessary to make proposals acceptable in planning
terms.

The tests for planning obligations are set out in Part 11, section 122 of the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). It states:

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 23



(2) A planning obligation may only constitute a reason for granting planning permission
for the development if the obligation is—

(@) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
(b)  directly related to the development; and
(©) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

The legal test is also set out in planning policy under paragraph 57 of the National Planning
Policy Framework 2021. The heads of terms for the developer contributions are set out
below, all of which the applicant has agreed to.

Affordable housing

Policy CS9 is concerned with affordable housing. In this case all the dwellings are proposed
to be for affordable housing. As a result, an S106 is required to ensure that these dwellings
remain affordable in perpetuity. The proposal therefore aligns with policy CS9 of the Core
Strategy and the NPPF.

Public open space

Public open space and leisure policy H10 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan is concerned
with public open space. It states, ‘(i) ...New housing developments on allocated and
windfall sites of 0.5ha or more will be required to provide recreational open space on a
scale, and in a form, appropriate to serve the needs of residents.” This is reinforced by
policies CS22 and CS23 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy. Both are considered
relevant.

On-site informal open space of 10sgm per dwelling is required. The open space within the
red line boundary of the site is to be managed by Ongo Homes and therefore no financial
contribution would be required.

Biodiversity net gain

Biodiversity net gain (BNG) cannot be provided on site due to the number of dwellings
proposed and associated infrastructure. Considerable weight must be given to the fact that
the scheme is a 100% affordable housing scheme with a local registered provider to deliver
the scheme. As a result, it is considered in this case that it is acceptable to seek an off-site
contribution for BNG. This off-site contribution has been calculated as £8,200. Subject to
this contribution, the proposal would align with the NPPF and policy CS17 of the Core
Strategy.

Obligations summary

The proposed on- and off-site contributions are considered to be CIL compliant as well as
policy compliant. The proposal would therefore align with policies CS9 and CS17 of the
North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, H10 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, and paragraph
57 of the NPPF. The heads of terms that have been put to the applicant are public open
space, affordable housing and off-site biodiversity net gain. The applicant has agreed all the
requested S106 contributions required to mitigate the impacts of the development.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 24



Other matters

A number of other issues have been raised by residents. In terms of bungalows, these
cannot be provided on the site due to the flood risk. If bungalows were to be provided,
significant land raising would be required to mitigate flood risk impacts. There has been no
evidence submitted to suggest that schools cannot accommodate this development. It must
be noted that under SPG8: Developer Contributions to Schools, no S106 contributions are
required as this is a 100% affordable housing scheme. Other available sites in Crowle for
this development have been assessed and discounted in the submitted sequential test (see
flood risk section). There will be some loss of hedging, but this can mitigated with additional
planting through planning conditions. Comments in relation to Article 8 of the Human Rights
Act are noted. Article 8 gives everyone the right to respect for private and family life, home
and correspondence. In this case, it is not considered that the impacts of the development
will infringe upon Article 8 of the Human Rights Act. The site is within the development
boundary of Crowle, close to a wide range of services and facilities and the site is not
allocated in the development plan as open space/recreational land. Concerns about loss of
this ‘public land’ are noted. However, the owners of the site would be perfectly entitled to
restrict public access to the site as the site is not public land but is within private ownership.

The planning balance

The proposal accords with the development plan. The site is within the development
boundary of Crowle close to a wide range of services and facilities, is served by public
transport and is accessible in terms of walking and cycling. The site is a very sustainable
location for residential development. The scheme will provide 18 affordable dwellings, for
which there is a strong need in North Lincolnshire. In addition, the council cannot currently
demonstrate a five-year housing land supply of deliverable sites and significant weight has
to be given to the provision of 18 dwellings which would go some way in meeting the
current housing shortfall. Furthermore, it must be noted that the developer has a good track
record of housing delivery in North Lincolnshire.

In terms of technical matters, these have been addressed in the main report and can be
mitigated by planning conditions and through the S106 planning obligation. The scheme will
have an impact on residential amenity as 2.5 storeys are proposed on the site which is
currently a predominantly green open space. The dwellings will be visible from adjoining
dwellings and although overlooking has been mitigated to a certain extent, a small element
of overlooking will be caused by the development. The dwellings are higher than existing
dwellings, although the roof pitch on the rear elevation has been 'dropped’ so it is
shallower, creating less bulk and less overbearing impact on neighbours. Although the
dwellings will be screened in part by the adjoining properties on Godnow Road and Maple
Avenue, they will still be partially visible, due to their height, from Godnow Road, Maple
Avenue and Laburnum Grove. When the planning balance is applied the benefits of the
scheme demonstrably outweigh the dis-benefits and therefore the application is
recommended for approval.

Conclusion

No material considerations or technical matters have been identified that could properly be
considered to outweigh the statutory presumption in favour of the development plan and the
presumption in favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF. On this basis the
proposed development is considered to be acceptable and is recommended for approval
subject to the conditions and planning obligations set out below.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 25



Heads of terms

Affordable housing

Number of dwellings or
commuted sum

All 18 dwellings

Affordable units to be retained in perpetuity

Open space

On-site open space

All the open space in the red line boundary to be
maintained by Ongo Homes

Trigger point

To be set out on occupation of the 10" dwelling

Biodiversity

Contribution amount

£8,200 off-site biodiversity

Trigger point

On occupation of the 10™ dwelling

How long the council has to
spend the contribution

10 years

Pre-commencement conditions

All pre-commencement planning conditions have been agreed with the applicant.

RECOMMENDATION

Subject to the completion of a formal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 providing for provision and maintenance of open space
within the development, affordable housing and off-site biodiversity net gain, the

committee resolves:

(i) it is mindful to grant permission for the development;

(ii) the decision be delegated to the Development Management Lead upon

completion of the obligation;

(iii) if the obligation is not completed by 3 February 2023 the Development
Management Lead be authorised to refuse the application on grounds of no

essential community benefits or biodiversity benefits; and

(iv) the permission so granted be subject to the following conditions:

1

The development must be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this

permission.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx

Page 26




Reason
To comply with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
amended approved plans:

J1838 00104 Rev C (sections/side elevations)

J183800101 Rev D (proposed site plan)

J1838 000102 Rev F (proposed site block plan)

J1838 00047 (floor plans Type B2)

J1838 00048 (elevations house type B2)

J1838 00045 Floor plans house type B1

J1838 00046 (elevations house type B1)

Plots 1 and 2 first floor plan and plot 2 side elevation received on 11/07/20223
Elevation and floor plans of Plot 17 received on 12/07/2022
J1838 050 Rev A (coloured site plan)

J1838 00001 Rev B (site location plan)

J1838 00103 (proposed site boundaries).

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.
No development shall begin until details of:

0] the layout, drainage, construction, services and lighting of the proposed access road,
including the junction with the adjacent highway;

(i) the number and location of vehicle parking spaces on the site; and
(i)  the proposed footway connection to Godnow Road;
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to accord with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

4.
The penultimate dwelling on the site shall not be occupied until the access roads and
footway connection to Godnow Road have been completed.

Reason
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy T2 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

5.

The existing vehicular access to the site shall be improved within highway limits in
accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 27



Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

6.

No loose material shall be placed on any driveway or parking area within 10 metres of the
adopted highway unless measures are taken in accordance with details to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority to prevent the material from spilling
onto the highway. Once agreed and implemented these measures shall be retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

7.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without
modification), nothing shall at any time be erected, retained, planted or allowed to grow
over 1.05 metres in height above the level of the adjoining carriageway for a distance of 2
metres from the highway boundary across the site frontage.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

8.

No dwelling on the site shall be occupied until the vehicular access to it and the vehicle
parking spaces serving it have been completed and, once provided, the vehicle parking
spaces shall be retained.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

9.

No dwelling served by the private driveway shall be occupied until it has been constructed
in accordance with details including:

(1 the proposed method of forming access from the highway, including the required
visibility splays;

(i) the method of constructing/paving the drive;

(i) the provision of adequate drainage features;

(iv)  the provision of suitable bin collection facilities adjacent to the highway;
(V) the provision of suitable lighting arrangements; and

(vi)  the provision of street name plates that shall include the words 'Private Drive';

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 28



which have been agreed in writing by the local planning authority. Once constructed the
private driveway shall be retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

10.

No dwelling on the site shall be occupied until the private driveway has been completed, to
a standard to be agreed beforehand in writing with the local planning authority, up to its
junction with the vehicular access to that dwelling.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

11.

Works shall not commence on site until wheel cleaning facilities, in accordance with details
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, have been
provided within the curtilage of the site, and this facility shall be retained for the duration of
the works.

Reason
To prevent material being deposited on the highway and creating unsafe road conditions.

12.

No dwelling on the site shall be occupied until the access road has been completed to at
least base course level and adequately lit from the junction with the adjacent highway up to
the access to the dwelling.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

13.
No other works shall be commenced on the site until the access road junction with the
adjacent highway, including the required visibility splays, has been set out and established.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

14.
No dwelling on the site shall be occupied until the footway has been constructed up to base
course level from the junction with the adjacent highway to the access to the dwelling.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 29



15.
No development shall take place until a construction phase traffic management plan
showing details of:

0] a pre/post construction condition survey of the carriageway to identify any defects
and how they will be rectified;

(i) all associated traffic movements, including delivery vehicles and staff/construction
movements;

(i)  any abnormal load movements;
(iv)  contractor parking and welfare facilities;
(v) storage of materials; and

(vi) traffic management requirements, including the means of controlling the deposition
of mud onto the adjacent highway, along with appropriate methods of cleaning the
highway, as may be required,

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Once
approved the plan shall be implemented, reviewed and updated as necessary.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

16.

No development shall take until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall
be based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and
hydro-geological context of the development. This must be based upon the submitted
Drainage Strategy, prepared by Daniel Mutepfa, Ward Cole Consulting Engineers, Job No:
10/5460, Dated: June 2021.

The drainage scheme shall demonstrate that surface water run--off generated up to and
including the 1 in 100-year critical storm (including an allowance for climate change which
should be based on the current national guidance) will not exceed the run--off from the
existing site. It shall also include details of how the resulting completed scheme is to be
maintained and managed for the lifetime of the development so that flood risk, both on and
off the site, is not increased. SuDS must be considered. Reference should be made to
North Lincolnshire Council's SuDS and Flood Risk Guidance Document. Should infiltration
not be feasible at the site, alternative sustainable drainage should be used, focusing on
above-ground solutions.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and protect
water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the sustainable
drainage structures in accordance with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan,
policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 159 to
169 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 30



17.

The drainage scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved submitted
details required by condition 16 above, completed prior to the occupation of any dwelling or
building within each phase or sub-phase of the development on site, and thereafter retained
and maintained in accordance with the scheme for the life of the development unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and protect
water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the sustainable
drainage structures in accordance with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan,
policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 159 to
169 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

18.

No development shall take place until details showing an effective method of preventing
surface water run-off from hard paved areas within the site onto the highway have been
approved in writing by the local planning authority. These facilities shall be implemented
prior to the access and parking facilities being brought into use and thereafter so retained.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan, policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and
paragraphs 159 to 169 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

19.

No development shall take place until details showing an effective method of preventing
surface water run-off from the highway onto the developed site have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. These facilities shall be implemented
prior to the access and parking facilities being brought into use and thereafter so retained.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and protect
water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the sustainable
drainage structures in accordance with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan,
policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 159 to
169 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

20.

No development shall take place until a scheme for the disposal of foul water has been
agreed in writing by the local planning authority and none of the dwellings shall be occupied
until it is connected to the approved drainage system.

Reason

To ensure satisfactory drainage is provided in accordance with policy DS14 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 31



21.

No above-ground works shall take place until details have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority of the make, type and colour of all external facing
materials for the development and only the approved materials shall be used.

Reason
To ensure that the building is in keeping with its surroundings in the interests of visual
amenity, in accordance with policy DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

22.

Before any approved dwelling is first occupied, the bathroom and WC windows shall be
obscure glazed to a minimum of Privacy Level 3 in accordance with the Pilkington Scale of
Obscuration and shall be retained in that condition thereafter.

Reason
To protect the living conditions presently enjoyed by the occupants of adjoining properties
in accordance with policy DS5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

23.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without
modification), no new window openings shall be created in any wall or roof plane of the
approved dwellings other than those shown on the submitted plan.

Reason

To protect the living conditions presently enjoyed by the occupants of adjoining properties
in accordance with policies DS5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS5 of the Core
Strategy.

24,

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood
risk assessment (Collins, Hall, Green, Version 1.2, 20 March 2019) and the
following mitigation measures it details in section 6:

- Finished floor levels of the living areas to be set no lower than 4.4 metres above
Ordnance Datum (AOD)

- Flood resilience measures to be incorporated as described.

These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently
in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. The measures detailed
above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the lifetime of the
development.

Reason
To reduce the risk and impact of flooding in accordance with policies DS16 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS19 of the Core Strategy.

25.

The ground floors of the properties hereby approved shall be used as undercroft parking,
utility, entrance hall, WC and store only as annotated on approved drawings J1838 00047

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 32



(floor plans) and J1838 00045 (floor plans), and floor plan for Plot 17 received on 12 July
2022, and for no other, habitable, accommodation at any time.

Reason

In accordance with the details of the application and to ensure that there is no sleeping or
vulnerable living accommodation on the ground floor, to protect the inhabitants of the
property from the risk of flooding in accordance with the Chapter of the National Planning
Policy Framework, policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and policy CS19 of the
Core Strategy.

26.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A, B, C, D, and E of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any order revoking
and re-enacting that order with or without modification, no extensions or alterations, or
buildings or enclosures, to provide additional habitable/living accommodation shall be
erected on the site/installed on the building at any time.

Reason

To reduce the risk and impact of flooding in accordance with policies DS16 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS19 of the Core Strategy, and to safeguard the residential
amenity of adjoining dwellings in accordance with policies DS1 and DS5 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan, and CS5 of the Core Strategy.

27.

No above-ground works shall take place until proposals for landscaping have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The proposals shall
include indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the site, and details of any to be
retained, together with measures for their protection during the course of development.

Reason

To enhance the appearance of the development in the interests of amenity in accordance
with policies DS1 and LC12 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, and CS5 of the Core
Strategy.

28.

All the approved landscaping shall be carried out within 12 months of development being
commenced (unless a longer period is agreed in writing by the local planning authority).
Any trees or plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased
within five years from the date of planting shall be replaced in the next planting season with
others of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted, unless the local
planning authority agrees in writing to any variation.

Reason

To ensure the approved landscaping scheme is implemented in a timely fashion on the site
and in the interests of amenity in accordance with policies DS1 and LC12 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan, and CS5 of the Core Strategy.

29.

Within three months of the commencement of development, the applicant or their successor
in title shall submit a biodiversity management plan to the local planning authority for
approval in writing. The plan shall include:

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 33



(@) details of at least four bat roosting features to be installed;
(b)  details of nesting sites to be installed to support swifts and house sparrows;

(c) restrictions on lighting to avoid impacts on bat roosts, bat foraging areas, bird nesting
sites and sensitive habitats;

(d) provision for hedgehogs to pass through any fencing installed between gardens and
between areas of grassland;

(e) prescriptions for the planting and aftercare of heritage fruit tree varieties, trees,
shrubs and flowering plants of high biodiversity value;

() proposed timings for the above works in relation to the completion of the buildings.

Reason
To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policies CS5 and CS17 of the
Core Strategy.

30.

The biodiversity management plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details and timings, and the approved features shall be retained thereafter, unless
otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. Prior to the occupation of the
15th dwelling, the applicant or their successor in title shall submit a report to the local
planning authority, providing evidence of compliance with the biodiversity management
plan.

Reason
To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policies CS5 and CS17 of the
Core Strategy.

31.

Unless otherwise agreed by the local planning authority, development other than that
required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not
commence until parts 1 to 4 below have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is
found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site
affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the local planning
authority in writing until part 4 has been complied with in relation to that contamination.

Part 1: Site Characteristics

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the
planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature
and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The
contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority.
The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a
written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the approval
in writing of the local planning authority. The report of the findings must include:

(0 a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 34



(i) an assessment of the potential risks to:
- human health;

- property (existing or proposed), including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland, and service lines and pipes;

adjoining land;

groundwaters and surface waters;

ecological systems;

archaeological sites and ancient monuments;
(i)  an appraisal of remedial options, and a proposal of the preferred option(s).

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'.

Part 2: Submission of Remediation Scheme

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use
by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the
natural and historical environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in
writing of the local planning authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken,
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

Part 3: Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to
the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation,
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The local planning
authority must be given two weeks' written notification of commencement of the remediation
scheme works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the
approval in writing of the local planning authority.

Part 4: Reporting of Unexpected Contamination

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to
the local planning authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with the requirements of Part 1, and where remediation is necessary a
remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of Part 2,
which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 35



Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the local
planning authority in accordance with Part 3.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with
policy DS7 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

32.

Before any above-ground works take place on the site, a scheme for the provision of
electrical vehicle charging points shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The scheme shall be designed to take account of good practice
guidance as set out in the Institute of Air Quality Management Land Use Planning and
Development Control:

http://www.iagm.co.uk/text/guidance/air-quality-planning-guidance.pdf
and contemporaneous electrical standards, including:
- Electrical Requirements of BS7671:2008

- IET Code of Practice on Electrical Vehicle Charging Equipment installation 2012 ISBN
978-1-84919-515-7.

The approved scheme shall be installed in full and retained in perpetuity thereafter.

Reason

To facilitate the uptake of low emission vehicles and reduce the emission impact of traffic
arising from the development in line with the National Planning Policy Framework and
policy CS18 of the Core Strategy.

33.
Construction, demolition and site clearance operations shall be limited to the following days
and hours:

- 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday
- 8am to 1pm on Saturdays.

No construction, demolition or site clearance operations shall take place on Sundays or
public/bank holidays.

HGV movements shall not be permitted outside these hours during the construction phase
without prior written approval from the local planning authority.

Installation of equipment on site shall not be permitted outside these hours without prior
written approval from the local planning authority.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 36



Reason

To protect residential amenity in accordance with policies DS1 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan and CS5 of the Core Strategy.

34.

No above-ground works shall take place until details have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority of the make, type and colour of all external facing
materials for the development and only the approved materials shall be used.

Reason

To ensure that the dwellings are in keeping with their surroundings in the interests of visual
amenity, in accordance with policy DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

35.

No stage of the development hereby permitted shall commence until a construction
environmental management plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The CEMP shall include the following:

Noise and vibration — the CEMP shall set out the particulars of:

0] the works, and the method by which they are to be carried out;

(i) the noise and vibration attenuation measures to be taken to minimise noise and
vibration resulting from the works, including any noise limits; and

(i) a scheme for monitoring the noise and vibration during the works to ensure
compliance with the noise limits and the effectiveness of the attenuation measures.

Light —the CEMP shall set out the particulars of:

0] specified locations for contractors’ compounds and materials storage areas;

(i) areas where lighting will be required for health and safety purposes;

(i) location of potential temporary floodlights;

(iv)  identification of sensitive receptors likely to be impacted upon by light nuisance;

(v) proposed methods of mitigation against potential light nuisance, including potential
glare and light spill, on sensitive receptors.

Dust — the CEMP shall set out the particulars of:
0] site dust monitoring, recording and complaint investigation procedures;

(i) identification of receptors and the related risk of dust impact at all phases of the
development, including when buildings and properties start to be occupied;

(i) provision of water to the site;

(iv)  dust mitigation technigues at all stages of development;

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 37



(V) prevention of dust trackout;
(vi)  communication with residents and other receptors;

(vi) acommitment to cease the relevant operation if dust emissions are identified either
by regular site monitoring or by the local authority;

(viii)  a'no burning of waste' policy.

Reason
To protect residential amenity in accordance with policies DS1 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan and CS5 of the Core Strategy.

Informative 1
This application must be read in conjunction with the relevant Section 106 Agreement.

Informative 2

Severn Trent Water advise that although their statutory sewer records do not show any
public sewers within the area you have specified, there may be sewers that have been
recently adopted under The Transfer of Sewer Regulations 2011. Public sewers have
statutory protection and may not be built close to, directly over or be diverted without
consent and you are advised to contact Severn Trent Water to discuss your proposals.
Severn Trent will seek to assist you in obtaining a solution which protects both the public
sewer and the building.

Informative 3

Records indicate that the proposed development site is bounded by and has running
through it, a series of watercourses (surface water pipe/culvert). Following inspection, the
watercourses may need to be cleared, replaced, protected or diverted by the landowner at
their expense in accordance with their riparian responsibilities. An easement adjacent to the
watercourses may need to be provided for future maintenance. Any other drainage feature
found during excavations must be immediately reported to the LLFA Drainage Team, via
email to llifadrainageteam@northlincs.gov.uk, prior to any further construction works being
carried out. Please refer to North Lincolnshire Council's 'Guide to Watercourses and
Riparian Ownership' detailing riparian rights and responsibilities. Compliance with this
guidance is to ensure the free flow of surface water is maintained throughout the
development.

Informative 4

Alterations and/or new connections into the watercourse network must be consented by
North Lincolnshire Council's LLFA Drainage Team, in their capacity as Lead Local Flood
Authority, and/or the local Internal Drainage Board through an Ordinary Watercourse
Consent and appropriate discharge rates must be agreed. Please contact the LLFA
Drainage team via email to llIfadrainageteam@northlincs.gov.uk for further details.
Compliance with this guidance is to ensure the free flow of surface water is maintained
throughout the development.

Informative 5

The development hereby granted planning permission requires works to be carried out
within the limits of the adopted (public) highway. Therefore:

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 38



- before ANY construction works take place within the limits of the highway you MUST
contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297000 to arrange for the
relevant permissions/licenses to be issued;

- before ANY service (utility) connections take place within the limits of the highway you
MUST contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297319 to arrange for
the relevant permissions/licenses to be issued.

Informative 6

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 39



22N - 'Q \ /
od N ‘\ Ravd ///
\ N hON Pt /
L o XN 4 /
El Sub Sta N e -4 /
\ S _ *, - y
A\ . 7 . /

A\ \ e s

. ' e /

N | s VZ

N el {: /
A\ R 2 5\ SN /
N s [ //
R\ . \ N < /
A\ . ., o /
N \ *\ . //
\ )
N
\
\
\
\

North
Lincolnshire
Council

) Development Boundary

PA12022 I92 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560



ot
Sode ot
tris\dra
wing — Al dimensi
e and setng ot to b

verfed

on sie. I i
in doust

Sontact
e o
rgiator for o1
 Slarfiction

0 on

(4
e et
opi,
, reprodt
)
retane
o danossd o
any
naine
e
Poreo
. st

Pgyithout
e
sl
B e
EH

e oo
wing s
bropary
ropary of M
e
. Copyriont s
o o Srorea 0
m_and tn
s crow
ing i

e o

‘),E
3

R
1
fs
L
HE i
i
.m:f“

=
o

: H
#
ok

i
H
I

=

gisi:

HEHE
jecp
&
t
[
mmw
Mwmw
I

Scale bar 1:200.

puidin

38
579
[
747

yﬂuanq

3
ES

Buiding

757

TR =2
R
»aw«.aw,ﬁ%
R

R
R

=
[ oot
L2008AL

Scale
Rev
D

.
L
»&kaiﬁ%&%&

S

,%%wm%%w«%%«,ﬁw
.,ﬁ«,»ﬁ,%hhh%ﬁ%a
ﬁ%«%«%ﬁ,\,ﬁﬁaﬁ =

;»ahﬁ&h%ﬁ%&h#
e 2]
:»»5%»»&«,»&,»@,««.
e

S

Date
JAN 2021
Dwig No
1838 00101

S
PR
w%%«.»wwﬁ
AR
s
(G
e

R se s

Rt

s R,

RS ..ﬁkw%a&«,»
G (S

R et ng&&k««hh,ﬁi,f e

20 %S»ﬂ.%.ﬁ.&a 23] «%«kﬁh&aﬁ&«&,\,\,ﬁ,»ﬁ

SRR ah%««,»\,\,»ﬁ«h.n,ﬁﬁﬁ««%&

% sﬁ#ﬁ»ﬁﬁ#ﬁ«&ﬁ«aﬁh&&k««,

E::ﬁk&«,n»»ﬁ%, A

R {

S

Checked

e e S S
s KL u:u,\,»ﬁ::ﬁ%s:n
S .«k«hﬁ%«&:ﬁ%«,ﬁm«%
2 W S ]
.:z:ﬁ%«kﬁﬁ%ﬁ&«hﬁ

s

e

o

Y
B

ATLAND
OFF MAP
LE AV & GODNOW ROAD, CF
, CROWLE

RE
SIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
FOR ONGO HOMES.

Drawn by,
E
0POSED STEPLAN

PC

s
R
S
g ¢ W 2
S R 3
& »uu&«o..,.ni 2 txt‘.,ﬁ:'rll&boltc,;.
nu,mmm«,,w.ﬁ«u«,.«,ﬁ%mﬁ.«,.«,ﬁ?,,; J~\~\\.m«,,w«,.,ﬁ,ﬁk««aﬁ?,,,,
& ,,,,~.\~a,aﬁ«ﬁﬁk«ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁf,,/,, «aﬁﬁﬁa@%&ﬁ%
::»..«,ﬁ,»ﬁu,a««&%««hﬁ#ﬁ.ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁh,»:;; «a.,«,»»ﬁ,\,ﬁﬁh&kﬁ%zz.,x PR
::h#»ﬁa«h&,ﬁ.%%ﬁ&a&.ﬁa&?&««,ﬁh:~&aﬁ«h«,ﬁ%ﬁh«&«&k«««,ﬁ,,.,»
S a«hﬁhﬁ»ﬁ%&ﬁ\\~\\\\~}A«..;ﬁ«k««,ﬁﬁ,ﬁw»ﬁ,&«.ﬁh&,..
sﬁ,@«hﬁﬁﬁﬁa,,,,%««kﬁ#ﬁa&&«ﬁ«,\,ﬁﬁ#ﬁ«ﬁﬁ~
S ::::a«kﬁ»ﬁa&«%«««ﬁh&hﬁh&»ﬁ%ﬁS,.«n,an,
st S:z%&ﬁ«,»ﬁ,\,ﬁ ]
R i
R e
2

(ot
s
R
S
S

RO
L,
S

50

RS

AR
SRR
il

ko
tdonalsurvey Data O
-

Admerts
ments o e ot

BB
Rl
e

L

SRR
% «,3,%.&,»%,, o

s Emioglames

Frame:
WO
Pt

s
S
s
3 AR
R
20 RS s
S ?f;«:v,vtﬁni % e

i

a««h#f;i:::i b

R S

R R
2

R
RS

s
2

RS
SRR :::

873

BuIding

T

jge

1
S hﬁhﬂl«lll «hlql«;«hﬁ."o
S SN
\ «2$,~vww¢2~w»§n«t«t»¥:v~ .»»?vvvt»!.
e
\ )
A \

e
o

R
Rl
\ ,wuwmhf»»mwk&h,ﬁn

—

Sl

B

R
s
A

2

Building

)
SR,
)
TN
Lk

\

-

oG

\

6 §'
\

Buiding

PA/202
2/92 Pr
oposed layout (not t
o scale)

\

EY

)
Y

e

TS

2 o)

oonoW
\


june cox
Text Box
PA/2022/92 Proposed layout (not to scale)


PA/2022/92 Site sections (not to scale)

AMENDED

== Q\zmgsufé

ENDSDEELEVATON

K eomowmom XK

SECTION A-A - FOLLOWING PROPOSED NEW PUBLIC FOOTPATH

Do not seale off this drawing — All dimensions and setting out to be verified on site. If in doust
contact the originator for clarification.

This drawing is the property of FRAMEWORK. Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on
the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either
wholly or in port without the consent in writing of FRAMEWORK

31 MAPLE AV,

s K roommaroronnr

pLOT18

GODNOW ROAD 29 GODNOW RD

SECTION B-B - THROUGH NEW AREA OF PUBLIC OPEN SPACE

}< 23 MAPLE AV

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE

GODNOW ROAD 25 GODNOW RD. PLOTS

SECTION C-C

Scale bar 1:200.

pLOT17

j

25 MAPLE AV.

3 /ADDITIONAL SECTIONS ADDED 23.05.2022 PC
B HOUSETYPE SECTION AMENDED 26.04.2022 PC
A HOUSETYPES AMENDED 13.04.2022 PC
v  Reveion note [ bae Drawn by
- RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
ATLAND OFF MAPLE AV & GODNOW ROAD, CROWLE
- FOR ONGO HOMES
. Drawn by Checked Date Scale
HU NOV2021 | 1:200@A2
Framework PROPOSED SITE ELEVATION Dwg No Rev
Architects 183800104 | C
Copyright © 2015 Framework

3 MARINE STUDIOS, BURTON LANE END, BURTON WATERS, LINCOLN, LN12UA
E W K

T 01522 535383

Al tights reserved



june cox_1
Text Box
PA/2022/92 Site sections (not to scale)


PA/2022/92 House type B1 elevations (not to scale)

Do not scale off this drawing — All dimensions and setting out to be verified on site. If in doubt
contact the originator for clarification.

This drawing is the property of FRAMEWORK. Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on
the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either

wholly or in part without the consent in writing of FRAMEWORK

(]

WiNDOW 1O
PLOTA& 18

FRONT ELEVATION STANDARD SIDE ELEVATION

|
|
I
|
|
I
[
i
I
|
|
|
([T e T
% i = =
1| i —
I
- |
REAR ELEVATION END SIDE ELEVATION

OSSR
s ey = y
T : L
N |
~ L | SAMPLE IMAGE
8 J” g PROJECTING BRICK DETAIL PANELS
s =y, | _L Rev [ Revision note [ pate Drawn by
[ - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
N LAND AT MAPE AV & GODNOW ROAD, CROWLE
15 g - FOR ONGO HOMES
Drawn by Checked Date Scale
rvorim | PC MAY'22 1:100@A3
Framework 24 STOREY HOUSE - TYPE B1 Dwg No Rev
SECTION Architects 385P UNIT - ELEVATIONS J1838 00046
3 MARINE STUDIOS, BURTON LANE END, BURTON WATERS, LINCOLN, LN1 2UA Copyright © 2015 Framework

T01522 535383 E uk W o.uk Alltights reserved



Tara Sullivan
Text Box
PA/2022/92 House type B1 elevations (not to scale)


PA/2022/92 House type B2 elevations (not to scale)

AMENDED

Do not scale off this drawing — All dimensions and setting out to be verified on site. If in doubt
contact the originator for clarification.

This drawing is the property of FRAMEWORK. Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on
the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either
wholly or in part without the consent in writing of FRAMEWORK

[
il «(NNINN

%

FRONT ELEVATION

| | |

———— LT ——— [T
= ! ——e _’7
REAR ELEVATION
ST

e | | |

SECTION

STANDARD SIDE ELEVATION

END SIDE ELEVATION
SAMPLE IMAGE
PROJECTING BRICK DETAIL PANELS
Rev | Revision note [ pate Drawn by
- RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
LAND AT MAPE AV & GODNOW ROAD, CROWLE
- FOR ONGO HOMES
. Drawn by Checked Date Scale
PC MAY'22 1:100@A3
Framework 2,5 STOREY HOUSE - TYPE B2 Dwg No Rev
Architects 3B5P UNIT - ELEVATIONS J1838 00048
3 MARINE STUDIOS, BURTON LANE END, BURTON WATERS, LINCOLN, LN1 2UA Copyright © 2015 Framework

T01522 535383 E uk W o.uk Alltights reserved



Tara Sullivan_1
Text Box
PA/2022/92 House type B2 elevations (not to scale)


PA/2022/92 House type B1 floor plans (not to scale)

ﬂ
o T

.

B

st

st
‘

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

oBsCURE
T

osscuRE

LANDING

7

| LANDING

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

T T — T — 7
=T
I
uTILITY U U UTILITY
i ju
=
i
SNy —
¥ : ‘ "
|/ N
| |
| | |
0 i |
| |
| 'UNDERCROFT PARKING | HALL HALL | UNDERCROFT PARKING
| ! N cos
i
Il
I
I
I
|
° - — o o
|
_
GROUND FLOOR PLAN
TYPE B1 - 2 % STOREY HOUSE
3-BEDROOM/5-PERSON
101.67m2
o 5 10m

Do not scale off this drawing — All dimensions and setting out to be verified on site. If in doubt
contact the originator for clarification.

This drawing is the property of FRAMEWORK. Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on
the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either
wholly or in part without the consent in writing of FRAMEWORK

AMENDED

WINDOW 1O
PLOT4& 18

WiNDOW 1O
PLOTA 18

Page 4B

Rev | Revision note [ pate Drawn by
- RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
LAND AT MAPE AV & GODNOW ROAD, CROWLE
- FOR ONGO HOMES
Drawn by Checked Date Scale
PC MAY 22 1:100@A3
Framework 2% STOREY HOUSE - TYPE BL Dwg No Rev
Architects 385P UNIT J1838 00045

3 MARINE STUDIOS, BURTON LANE END, BURTON WATERS, LINCOLN, LN1 2UA

T01522 535383 E

o.uk

Copyright © 2015 Framework

Alltights reserved



Tara Sullivan_2
Text Box
PA/2022/92 House type B1 floor plans (not to scale)


PA/2022/92 House type B2 floor plans (not to scale)

Do not scale off this drawing — All dimensions and setting out to be verified on site. If in doubt
contact the originator for clarification.

This drawing is the property of FRAMEWORK. Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on
the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either
wholly or in part without the consent in writing of FRAMEWORK

AMENDED

‘ seD 1 50 1 ‘

S08
[N} I [N}
[N} rﬁfﬁrﬁj 77777777 . I O E:Liii" [N}
| H [ L Tl i 4 |
=== === =l :777'1 7 el
SECOND FLOOR PLAN

1 i [~
! LANDING LWVING | LIVING LANDING !
I [ — ‘ I | [z L j |
| |
o — | | [
| it |
N ||| B
— — o — i
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

oBscure oBscure

uTLTY
G5

E

Ty O
Gos )

N

HALL UNDERCROFT PARKING UNDERCROFT PARKING HALL
T T

GROUND FLOOR PLAN Rev [ Feveion note [ oate Orawn by

TYPE B2 - 2 %2 STOREY HOUSE - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

3-BEDROOM/5-PERSON LAND AT MAPE AV & GODNOW ROAD, CROWLE

101.67m? - FOR ONGO HOMES

0 5 10m

L . Drawn by Checked Date Scale

P ag e 46 pPC MAY'22 1:100@A3

Fram_eWOrk 2% STOREY HOUSE - TYPE B2 Dwg No Rev
Architects 385P UNIT J1838 00047
3 MARINE STUDIOS, BURTON LANE END, BURTON WATERS, LINCOLN, LN1 2UA Copyright © 2015 Framework

T01522 535383 E uk W o.uk Alltights reserved



Tara Sullivan_3
Text Box
PA/2022/92 House type B2 floor plans (not to scale)


Agenda Iltem 4b

APPLICATION NO PA/2022/774

APPLICANT Mr Chris Barrett, Brookside Caravan Park

DEVELOPMENT Planning permission for change of use of land to permit the
siting of static caravans (resubmission of PA/2020/1949)

LOCATION Brookside Caravan Park, Stather Road, Burton upon Stather,
DN15 9DH

PARISH Burton upon Stather

WARD Burton upon Stather and Winterton

CASE OFFICER Deborah Oikeh

SUMMARY Grant permission subject to conditions

RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Objection by Burton upon Stather Parish Council

REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework:

Paragraph 175 — When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should
apply the following principles:

(@) if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be avoided
(through locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately
mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be
refused;

(b)  development on land within or outside a Site of Special Scientific Interest, and which
is likely to have an adverse effect on it (either individually or in combination with
other developments), should not normally be permitted. The only exception is where
the benefits of the development in the location proposed clearly outweigh both its
likely impact on the features of the site that make it of special scientific interest, and
any broader impacts on the national network of Sites of Special Scientific Interest;

(c) development resulting in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable habitats (such as
ancient woodland and ancient or veteran trees) should be refused, unless there are
wholly exceptional reasons and a suitable compensation strategy exists; and

(d)  development whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should
be supported; while opportunities to incorporate biodiversity improvements in and
around developments should be encouraged, especially where this can secure
measurable net gains for biodiversity.

North Lincolnshire Local Plan: DS1, DS7, DS11, T2, T19, RD2, R12, H7

North Lincolnshire Core Strategy: CS1, CS2, CS3, CS5, CS15, CS17, CS19

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 47



CONSULTATIONS

Highways: No objections subject to conditions.

Environmental Protection: No objections but recommend a condition
Environmental Health: Has provided some informative comments.
Historic Environment Record: No objections or further recommendations.
Designing Out Crime Officer: No objections.

Ecology: No objections subject to conditions.

Natural England: No objections.

LLFA Drainage: No objections subject to conditions.

Humberside Fire and Rescue Service: Has provided some informative comments.
PARISH COUNCIL

The parish council has the following concerns if the caravan park were to be enlarged:

the impact it would have on local residents due to over-development of the site

the extra traffic movement and noise it would create

the impact on the local sewerage services and utilities

e concerns about the badgers as they will stray further than anticipated.
PUBLICITY

Advertised by site notice. No comments received.

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The applicant has not evidenced any community consultation.
ASSESSMENT

Planning history

7/1991/0102: Change of use of land to station 20 touring caravans — refused
30/05/1991, but allowed under appeal T/APP/J2020/A/91/189199/PB

PA/2000/0775: Planning permission to increase the number of touring caravan sites from
20 to 35 — approved 23/02/2005

PA/2007/1341: Planning permission to change the use of land to form an extension to an
existing caravan park (to provide an additional 35 caravan pitches,
including a maximum of 15 static), create a new vehicular access and
visitor car parking, site an additional mobile unit for use as a

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 48



reception/administration office, and erect a 1.8 metre high fence -
approved 05/12/2007

PA/2016/1568: Vary condition 8 of planning permission PA/2007/1341 dated 05/12/2007
to allow the siting of 22 static caravans — approved 08/03/2017

PA/2012/1254: Planning permission to change the use of land to permit the siting of static
caravans — refused 07/11/2019

PA/2020/276: Planning permission to change the use of land to permit the siting of static
caravans — refused 15/05/2020, and dismissed under appeal
APP/Y2003/W/20/3257186

PA/2020/1949: Planning permission for the change of use of land to permit the siting of
static caravans — refused 02/07/2021, and dismissed with a partial cost
award from the council to the appellant under appeal
APP/Y2003/W/21/3280156.

Site characteristics and proposal

This proposal relates to the change of use of an area of open countryside to site an
additional 22 static caravans. At present, the site has permission to site 22 static caravans
and a number of touring caravans. The touring area is located to the north of the reception
building and to the west of the area allotted for static caravans. The site is outside the
defined development limits for Burton upon Stather, within the open countryside as
identified by the Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD 2016. The site is also
within the ‘Trent Levels’ which is identified as having landscape importance by the North
Lincolnshire Landscape Character Assessment. The site is just outside but close to a
functional flood plain and Flood Zone 2/3a as identified by the SFRA 2011.

The application has been refused on three separate occasions, the last refusal being
appealed and subsequently dismissed with a partial cost award from the council to the
appellant (see PA/2020/1949). However, the inspector’s report is clear that only one of the
reasons for refusal was upheld, namely ecology. The applicant has provided further
information and mitigation in relation to that issue and the local planning authority, under
discretionary powers set out by Section 70A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
has agreed to determine the application as there has been significant change since the
refusal.

Latest reasons for refusal (PA/2020/1949)

1. The development would be detrimental to the residential amenity rights of existing
residents by virtue of intensification of use as a caravan site and an increase in
associated vehicular trips. The proposal is considered to be contrary to policies DS1, H7
and RD2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

2. Insufficient information has been provided to assess the ecological impacts of the
development. The proposal is considered to be contrary to policies CS5 and CS17 of
the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and saved policies RD2 and R13 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan, as well as paragraphs 170 and 175(d) of the National Planning
Policy Framework to the aims of policies RD2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and
CS15 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 49



Inspector’s response and appeal outcome

1. Amenity: Taking into account the existing level of use of the access by those staying in
statics and tourers, | am not convinced that the proposal would result in a significant
increase in vehicles using the access road. In terms of the potential for noise arising
from the caravans, | would note that there is a substantial distance between the closest
static caravans and the neighbouring dwellings. This would be sufficient to avoid any
significant increase in noise and disturbance being experienced by the occupiers of
these dwellings. | therefore conclude that the proposal would not have a significant
adverse effect on the living conditions of the occupiers of neighbouring properties. The
proposal does not conflict with Policies DS1, H7 and RD2 of the NLLP, which amongst
other things, seek to ensure new development does not cause unacceptable loss of
amenity to neighbours.

2. In relation to protection of badgers: On the basis of the information before me and
my above reasoning, the extent to which protected species may be affected is not clear
(neither, by consequence, is any implication of the mitigation measures before me). |
cannot therefore legitimately resolve such matters via imposing conditions, as has been
suggested to me by the appellant. Whilst 1 do not doubt the appellant’s intention to
provide appropriate mitigation, my assessment must be based on firm evidence in that
regard. | therefore cannot conclude that the proposal would not adversely affect
badgers, a protected species known to be present at the site. The proposal would
therefore conflict with Policies CS5 and CS17 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy
2011 (NLCS) and Policy R13 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan (NLLP) which,
amongst other things, seek to protect and enhance the natural assets of the District and
ensure unavoidable impacts on biodiversity and wildlife are appropriately mitigated, and
produce net gains in biodiversity. It would also be contrary to paragraph 174 (d) of the
Framework which amongst other things, seeks to minimise impacts on and provide net
gains for biodiversity

3. Partial award of cost: | find that some unreasonable behaviour resulting in
unnecessary or wasted expense, as described in the PPG, has been demonstrated. A
partial award of costs is therefore justified, relating solely to the Council’s first reason for
refusal in respect of an issue that had previously been found to be acceptable by an
Inspector. The applicant has thus been faced with the unnecessary expense in
defending that matter at appeal. Whilst the appellant has not precisely enumerated the
expense incurred in that regard, the PPG explains how costs may include ‘the time
spent by appellant and their representatives’ at appeal. Thus, no doubt some costs have
arisen.

Main consideration

Following the above appeal decision, it was clear that the inspector did not agree with the
first reason for refusal, i.e. amenity issues, and only dismissed the appeal on grounds of
insufficient ecological details provided by the appellant. Given the outcome of the appeal, it
is considered that the applicant has overcome the other reason for refusal, i.e. amenity.
Therefore, the only issue to be assessed relates to ecology.

Ecology

Policy CS17 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy is concerned with biodiversity and
seeks to achieve a net gain whilst also protecting existing wildlife habitat networks.
Paragraph 170 of the NPPF reinforces this policy setting out biodiversity management

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 50



principles. Both are considered relevant. Core Strategy Spatial Objective 10, policies CS5
and CS16 and saved local plan policies LC7 and RD2 should also be considered.

The submitted Landscape Appraisal indicates that the application site is largely enclosed by
a combination of existing scrub vegetation and recent planting. However, much of the
existing planting appears to have made use of non-native species. By its very nature, the
proposal will fill in” some of the remaining open grassland. However, some grassland will
be retained near the kennels.

The proposal would also affect badger sett entrances that form part of a main sett that lies
mostly within the adjoining woodland.

The standing advice says, ‘Extra surveys must be done if there are active setts or foraging
grounds. Use these surveys to:

prove that a sett is in current use;

monitor use of the sett and determine if it's a significant sett for the group;

estimate territorial boundaries;

identify locations for mitigation measures.

A further badger survey has now been carried out. Whilst no attempt has been made to
estimate territorial boundaries, the survey does demonstrate that the sett is active and
identifies the main sett entrances, badger trails and snuffle holes within the application site.

The development boundary is about 15 metres from the nearest sett entrance (at present).
It is proposed that a post and rail fence should be used to provide separation between the
badger sett and the static caravans.

Planning Circular 06/2005 states that, ‘The likelihood of disturbing a badger sett, or
adversely affecting badgers’ foraging territory, or links between them, or significantly
increasing the likelihood of road or rail casualties amongst badger populations, are capable
of being material considerations in planning decisions.’

Application PA/2020/1949 was dismissed on appeal. In relation to badgers, the inspector
highlighted the following issues, broadly speaking:

e a lack of site-specific information to inform buffer distances and mitigation for light and
noise disturbance

e inadequate fencing to keep people and dogs away from the badger sett.

The applicant’s ecologists have provided mitigation measures to address these concerns in
the following ways:

e ensuring that the site boundary fence will be at least 25 metres from woodland and
15 metres from sett entrance holes, allowing for the fact that badger tunnels rarely
exceed 10 metres in any one direction

e incorporating Highways Agency approved badger-proof fencing in the fence design, to
maintain separation between badgers and people and dogs

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 51



e planting a hawthorn and blackthorn fence along the fence line to provide screening
against noise, visual and light disturbance

e sensitive working methods and timings

e restrictions on external lighting

ongoing monitoring with implementation of any remedial measures required.

Both Natural England and the council’s ecologist have been consulted and have raised no
objections. The council’s ecologist has assessed the impacts upon protected species, in
particular the badgers, stating:

‘In my view, this now makes the proposal acceptable in terms of saved policy LC5 and the
planning circular.’

The ecologist goes on to recommend conditions relating to biodiversity enhancement and
these will be attached to any permission the council is minded to grant.

Lastly, the ecologist has carried out a determination of the likely significant effects (LSE)
under the Habitats Regulations and determined that there would not be any likely significant
effects upon the nearby Humber Estuary SAC/SPA/Ramsar site as a result of this
development. Conditions will also be attached relating to biodiversity management in line
with the aforementioned policies which seek to achieve a net gain.

Other matters

The Environmental Protection team have recommended pre-commencement conditions
relating to noise management. The inspector was very clear on the matters of noise and
disturbance:

‘I am not convinced that the proposal would result in a significant increase in vehicles using
the access road. Whilst there would inevitably be some increase, in my view this would not
lead to a significant increase in noise and disturbance over and above what is already
experienced by the residents of neighbouring properties from the existing site.

In terms of the potential for noise arising from the caravans, | would note that there is a
substantial distance between the closest static caravans and the neighbouring dwellings.
This would be sufficient to avoid any significant increase in noise and disturbance being
experienced by the occupiers of these dwellings.

| therefore conclude that the proposal would not have a significant adverse effect on the
living conditions of the occupiers of neighbouring properties.’

Paragraph 55 of the NPPF states that for a condition to be applied to any application, it
should only be used where it satisfies all the six tests of condition, i.e. the condition must be
necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted, enforceable,
precise and reasonable in all other respects. Given the observations of the inspector and
the appeal outcome, the recommended conditions regarding noise would fail to meet these
tests, especially its reasonableness in all respects.

The site is within flood zone 1 but it is close to a functional flood plain and flood zone 2/3a
as identified by the SFRA 2011. The drainage team made reference to potential issues of

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 52



surface water run-off and the need for further details to assess the acceptability of the
proposal. Nevertheless, the drainage team raised no objection against the proposal given
that it is an extension to an existing caravan site. However, pre-commencement conditions
were recommended to ensure that the development does not commence until all necessary
mitigation measures have been assessed and considered safe and acceptable.

Although traffic and general highway-related issues were dismissed by the planning
inspector at the last appeal, it is considered beneficial both for the caravan site and the
wider area that internal access and parking area be provided prior to the occupation of the
proposed caravan site extension. Therefore, the highways team have recommended a
condition to this effect.

Finally, conditions have been applied to control the occupancy of the caravan site such that
it would only be used for short-term recreational purposes/holiday and not as a permanent
residential site.

Conclusion

The only reason for refusal upheld by the inspector was on ecological grounds
(PA/2020/1949). The applicant confirms that an additional 10 mitigation measures, making
a total of 13, have been proposed in the report to protect the badger sett. It is considered
that the concerns raised by the inspector have been addressed and the council’'s ecologist
and Natural England have no objections to the latest mitigation measures. The planning
practice guidance (PPG) advises against decisions or behaviours that may amount to
wasted expenses or resources, in form of cost and time. The council was judged by the
inspector to have shown ‘unreasonable behaviour resulting in unnecessary or wasted
expense’ which led to a partial award of cost in the last appeal (PA/2020/1949). Given that
no objections have been raised and the mitigation measures provided are judged
acceptable by both Natural England and the council’s ecologist, the proposal is therefore
recommended for approval. Conditions relating to biodiversity enhancement are
recommended in respect of this matter.

Pre-commencement conditions

The pre-commencement conditions included in the recommendation have been agreed with
the applicant.

RECOMMENDATION Grant permission subject to the following conditions:

1.
The development must be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason
To comply with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Location plan IP/BC/01 dated DEC 20 and Site Plan IP/BC/02 dated APR 22.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 53



Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.
The use of the site shall be for short-term holiday lets only and no caravan shall be
occupied on the application site for more than 28 consecutive days in any 12 month period.

Reason

The site is for holiday lettings only and is inappropriate for permanent residential
development, in accordance with policies DS1 and RD2 of the North Lincolnshire Local
Plan.

4,
No caravan on the application site shall be occupied between 1 December and 31 January.

Reason

The site is for holiday lettings only and is inappropriate for permanent residential
development, in accordance with policies DS1 and RD2 of the North Lincolnshire Local
Plan.

5.
At no time shall the site marked by the red line boundary on the location plan exceed 21
static caravan pitches.

Reason

To define the terms of the permission and protect the open countryside, and for reasons
relating to protected species, in accordance with policies DS1, RD2 and LC5 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

6.

No development shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme
shall be based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological
and hydrogeological context of the development. The drainage scheme shall demonstrate
that surface water run-off generated up to and including the 1 in 100 year critical storm
(including an allowance for climate change) will not exceed the run-off from the existing site.
It shall also include details of how the resulting completed scheme is to be maintained and
managed for the lifetime of the development so that flood risk, both on and off the site, is
not increased. SuDS must be fully considered. Reference should be made to North
Lincolnshire Council's SuDS and Flood Risk Guidance Document. Should infiltration not be
feasible at the site, alternative sustainable drainage should be used, focusing on above-
ground solutions.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and protect
water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the sustainable
drainage structures in accordance with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan,
policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 155, 157,
163 and 165 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 54



1.

The drainage scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved submitted
details required by condition 6 above, completed prior to the occupation of any dwelling or
building within each phase or sub-phase of the development on site, and thereafter retained
and maintained in accordance with the scheme for the life of the development unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and protect
water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the sustainable
drainage structures in accordance with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan,
policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 155, 157,
163 and 165 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

8.

No proposed static caravan shall be brought into use until the internal access road and
parking facilities serving them have been provided. Once provided these facilities shall be
retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to accord with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

9.

Works and biodiversity enhancements shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
recommendations set out in the submitted ‘2022 Updated Badger Survey Report’ and the
submitted drawing number IP/CB/02. Recommendations 1 to 13 shall be carried out in their
entirety in accordance with the timescales set out. All biodiversity features shall be retained
thereafter. Prior to the occupation of the static caravans hereby permitted, the applicant or
their successor in title shall submit a report to the local planning authority providing
evidence of compliance with the submitted ‘2022 Updated Badger Survey Report’. After the
fifth year of badger monitoring, the applicant or their successor in title shall submit a
monitoring report to the local planning authority, providing the badger monitoring results
and details of any remedial works carried out.

Reason

To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policies LC5 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS17 of the Core Strategy.

10.

Within three months of the commencement of development, the applicant or their successor
in title shall submit a biodiversity management plan to the local planning authority for
approval in writing. The plan shall include:

(@)  details of bat roosting features to be installed;

(b)  details of nesting sites to be installed to support a variety of bird species;

(c) restrictions on lighting to avoid impacts on badger setts and foraging areas, bat
roosts, bat foraging areas, bird nesting sites and sensitive habitats;

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 55



(d) prescriptions for the planting and aftercare of native trees and shrubs of high
biodiversity value;

(e)  details of how the measures proposed will provide at least 1% biodiversity net gain in
accordance with the Defra biodiversity metric 3.1;

() proposed timings for the above works in relation to the installation of static caravans.

Reason
To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policies CS5 and CS17 of the
Core Strategy.

11.

The biodiversity management plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details and timings, and the approved features shall be retained thereafter, unless
otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. Prior to the installation of the
20th static caravan, the applicant or their successor in title shall submit a report to the local
planning authority, providing evidence of compliance with the biodiversity management
plan.

Reason
To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policies CS5 and CS17 of the
Core Strategy.

Informative 1

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Informative 2

There have been significant issues over a number of years with surface water run-off from
the hillside (east) in this area. The Beck to the north of the existing caravan site conveys
water directly to the River Trent. There is an area of high surface water flood risk in the area
in the vicinity of the public house, and this area has flooded in the past. There is also an
area to the south of the current proposal that could be further developed.

Informative 3
The council’s Environmental Health department has considered the application and has the
following comments to make:

- The site currently has planning permission for 55 touring pitches and 22 static holiday
caravans.

- The units shall be sited to meet the spacing standards under sections 2 and 3 of the
Model Standards 1989: Holiday Caravan Site.

- Suitable hardstandings shall be provided for each proposed unit allowing sufficient space

for safe access and exit from all doorways, to meet section 5 of the Model Standards
1989: Holiday Caravan Site.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 56



- Suitable pavements and roads shall be provided to access the proposed units to meet
Section 4 of the Model Standards 1989: Holiday Caravan Site.

- Sufficient parking for the proposed development shall be provided for each unit and for
visitors to the site, to meet section 27 of the Model Standards 1989: Holiday Caravan Site.

- Should the development go ahead, the owners will be required to obtain a revised
caravan site licence and ensure that the site meets the Model Standards 1989: Holiday
Caravan Site.

- It is unclear whether the development meets saved North Lincolnshire Local Plan policy
R11 sections ii) and iii) in respect of the impact on the local area and sewage provisions
for the development.

- There is no history of complaints in relation to this site. However, consideration should be
given to the potential disruption the increased traffic and development will have on
adjoining residential buildings, particularly during the peak holiday season.

Informative 4

Access for Fire Service

It is a requirement of Approved Document B5, Section 15 Commercial Properties or B5,
Section 13 for Domestic Premises that adequate access for fire-fighting is provided to all
buildings or extensions to buildings.

Where it is a requirement to provide access for high reach appliances, the route and hard
standing should be constructed to provide a minimum carrying capacity of 24 tonnes.

Water Supplies for Fire-fighting

Adequate provision of water supplies for fire-fighting appropriate to the proposed risk
should be considered. If the public supplies are inadequate it may be necessary to augment
them by the provision of on-site facilities. Under normal circumstances hydrants for
industrial unit and high risk areas should be located at 90m intervals. Where a building that
has a compartment of 280m2 or more in area is being erected more than 100m from an
existing fire hydrant, hydrants should be provided within 90m of an entry point to the
building and not more than 90m apart. Hydrants for low risk and residential areas should be
located at intervals of 240m. If you require further advice or clarification of any of the above
matters, please contact the Fire Safety Inspector at the address below:

Patrick Connelly, Business Safety Inspector
Humberside Fire & Rescue Service
Laneham Street

SCUNTHORPE

DN15 6JP

Telephone: 01724 295914
Email: pconnelly@humbersidefire.gov.uk

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 57



---------

---------

0

60

----------

i) :
. Y |
NERRAN |
\\ |
\ \ -
\ A ‘
\ A |
\ A o
IR ‘. ]
IR SV W U T U S A S {
IR |
Voo ; :
Voo | |
\ \ %Y
\ A R . U U
\ \ S e N T S—
\ \ L
R T N R T —
\oeT
=/ U =
\\ \
(O
\\ \ \‘ /
| \ NS, W Sy
El Sub Sta AL el Y

urton
tather

,.—'f"\Country Park

) Development Boundary
PA/2022/774

North
Lincolnshire
Council

% Kenn :

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560



Agenda Iltem 5

Report of the Agenda Item No:
Development Management Lead Meeting: 3 August 2022

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

PLANNING AND OTHER APPLICATIONS
FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE

1. OBJECT

1.1 To inform the committee about planning applications and other associated
matters falling within its terms of reference which are ready for determination.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 This committee is required under its terms of reference to exercise the
functions of the council as local planning authority for the purposes of the
control of development, including the determination of applications for
planning permission and other applications under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, General Development Orders, and any Orders or Regulations
made thereunder, and in accordance with the council’s planning policies.

2.2 In exercising these functions the committee is required to have regard to the
National Planning Policy Framework, the development plan for the area and
any other material considerations. It will also take account of the duty imposed
by section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the requirements of the
Human Rights Act 1998.

3. INFORMATION
3.1 Items for determination are listed in the attached schedule.

3.2 References to standard time limit conditions and standard outline conditions
mean the conditions automatically applied by sections 91 and 92 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

3.3 Reports will be updated at the meeting if necessary to take account of
additional relevant information received after publication.

3.4 Plans included with reports are for identification and/or illustrative purposes
only. Applications and supporting documents can be viewed in full on the
planning pages of the council’s web site.

4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
4.1  There are no staffing or financial implications arising from this report.

4.2  Environmental considerations are of major importance when considering
planning applications and are set out in the individual reports.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 59



5. RECOMMENDATION

5.1 That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations
contained in the schedule.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT LEAD

Church Square House
30-40 High Street
SCUNTHORPE

DN15 6NL

Reference: CB/JMC/Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx
Date: 25 July 2022

Background papers used in the preparation of this report:

1. The applications including accompanying plans and ancillary correspondence.
2. Statutory and non-statutory consultation letters and responses.

3. Responses from parish and town councils.

4. Representations from other bodies or individuals.

5. Relevant planning policy documents.

6. Previous relevant planning decisions.

(Pursuant to section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 any document containing
‘exempt information’ is excluded from this list.)

Statement of publication's purpose

The Ordnance Survey map data included within this publication is provided by North
Lincolnshire Council under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public
function to act as a planning authority. Persons viewing this mapping should contact
Ordnance Survey copyright for advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey map
data for their own use.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 60




Agenda Item 5a

APPLICATION NO PA/2019/1028

APPLICANT Mr Mark Wall, NPP Properties Ltd

DEVELOPMENT Listed building consent to repair and refurbish carriage house
and stable/dovecote

LOCATION Land south of Tetley Hall, Tetley, Crowle, DN17 4HY

PARISH Crowle

WARD Axholme North

CASE OFFICER Scott Jackson

SUMMARY Grant consent subject to conditions

RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Objection by Crowle Town Council

REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework: Sections 12 and 16
North Lincolnshire Local Plan: HE5, DS1

North Lincolnshire Core Strategy: CS5, CS6
CONSULTATIONS

Highways: No objection or comments.

HER (Archaeology): This proposal affects designated heritage assets and their settings;
the Conservation Officer has already provided recommendations regarding the built
heritage and principle of development. Where the planning authority is minded granting
consent, any permission should be subject to conditions securing a programme of
archaeological and historic building recording prior to and during the repair and
refurbishment work.

HER (Conservation): There is no objection to the application on the proviso that the works
are undertaken as specified in the Capstone Consulting Engineers entitled Outbuildings at
Tetley Hall, Crowle, Lincolnshire, ID P671 October 2017 and conditioned accordingly.
Recommend that conditions should be included that samples of the facing and roofing
materials and scale drawings of the proposed windows and doors with material
specification is included for consideration before construction starts.

Ecology: Works would result in harm to bat roosts. Consent can only be given if sufficient
evidence is presented that the tests of European Protected Species (EPS) licensing are
met. Planning conditions are proposed to minimise harm to protected and priority species.
Hopefully, a net gain in biodiversity will be delivered through the biodiversity management
plan submitted for PA/2019/930. It should be noted that the issue of the demolition of the

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 61



farmhouse, contrary to condition 13 of PA/2019/930, remains unresolved. This may affect
the applicant’s ability to obtain a licence.

TOWN COUNCIL

Object on the grounds these applications (when considered in conjunction with
PA/2019/930) will have an adverse effect on the grade Il listed buildings and the applicant’s
previous conduct in the removal of listed buildings/structures without planning permission.

PUBLICITY
A site notice has been displayed; no comments have been received.
ASSESSMENT

The application site comprises two listed buildings within the grounds of the listed building
known as Tetley Hall. The two buildings are two-storey in height, are grade Il listed and are
linked by a wall in a north to south direction. The buildings are located to the south-east of
Tetley Hall, in the open countryside, to the west of two modern residential properties. The
buildings are in a visible state of disrepair and are constructed from red brick with red
pantiles (Granary/Stable) and red brick with corrugated metal sheeted roof (Carriage
House). Listed building consent is sought to repair and refurbish these listed buildings. The
proposals are considered in conjunction with PA/2019/930 which was granted on 23
October 2020. That application was granted on the basis that it would facilitate the works
(enabling works) to the listed buildings. A condition was attached to the planning permission
for PA/2019/930 (condition 3) which reads:

‘Prior to the occupation of the dwelling marked as Plot 2 on the site plan (dwg 4 of 4 dated
27.04.20) all of the works recommended within the Structural Survey (Capstone, October
2017) to the Stable (and Dovecot) and Carriage House, as well as all of the works within
their curtilage, shall be complete. The applicant must evidence these works through both
written documentation and photomontage, and this is to be agreed in writing with the local
planning authority.’

The main issue in the determination of this application is whether the proposed
works impact on the setting and character of the listed buildings.

Heritage assets

As noted above, it is proposed to undertake a programme of repair and refurbishment to
these grade Il listed buildings which comprise a Carriage House and a Stable/Granary.
Planning permission has already been granted for the erection of three dwellings which
would facilitate these works under PA/2019/930 with a planning condition imposed to
ensure all of the works detailed in the Structural Survey undertaken by Capstone are
undertaken prior to the occupation of plot 2. The works identified to be undertaken to these
listed buildings within the Structural Survey consist of a number of structural improvements
that are not limited to removing unsafe materials, to underpin and tie together the walls,
consolidation of brickwork, addressing significant open cracks in walls, new floor joists and
ground floor slab, installation of staircases and plasterwork, and electrics throughout, and
the replacement of window and door lintels and installation of new windows and doors.

It is noted the works outlined in the structural report are somewhat extensive in number and
coverage, however they are also considered necessary and reasonable to bring these

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 62



grade Il listed buildings into a condition which results in them becoming functional and to
secure the long-term future of these buildings. The works have been considered by the
Conservation Officer and no objections have been raised. Conditions are recommended by
the Conservation Officer requiring details of the proposed external materials of construction
(brick, tile, mortar mix and rainwater goods), and doors and windows, to be submitted for
consideration. The imposition of such conditions would allow the local planning authority to
ensure the materials and finishes of all external facing fittings preserve and enhance the
listed buildings, and are sympathetic to their setting and fabric.

In addition, the conditions recommended by the Historic Environment Record, requiring a
Historical Building Record and Archaeological Mitigation Strategy to be undertaken, are
considered to be appropriate in this case. They would provide an accurate photographic
record of the building prior, during and after the works, and given the historic sensitivity of
the area and the assets concerned, the recommended conditions are both reasonable and
necessary.

Given the recommendations of the structural report, that the enabling works have been
secured under a separate planning permission, that the works are necessary and will
secure the long-term retention of the listed buildings, and the lack of an objection from the
Conservation Officer, it is considered the proposed works will preserve and enhance the
setting and fabric of the Stable/Granary and Carriage House and as such listed building
consent is recommended.

Other issues

The consultation response from the council’s ecologist and its contents therein are noted in
respect of an EPS licence being required for any works to a building which may contain
protected and priority species. However, this is an application for listed building consent
which considers the impact on heritage aspects under the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and given the ecological matters are already addressed
under a separate planning condition under PA/2021/902 (Section 73 application), it is
considered there is no requirement to duplicate conditions in this regard.

Pre-commencement conditions

Pre-commencement conditions are recommended in respect of details of the external
materials of construction (including mortar mix and rainwater goods), windows and doors
(including material finish), and a Historical Building Record and Archaeological Mitigation
Strategy. The applicant’s planning agent has agreed these conditions as being acceptable.

RECOMMENDATION Grant consent subject to the following conditions:

1.
The works must be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this consent.

Reason
To comply with Section 18(1)(a) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990.

2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans: 1045 4 of 6, 1045 5 of 6 and 1736/001.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 63



Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

Other than in the case of works reasonably necessary to make the listed buildings safe, no
demolition or refurbishment/repair works shall take place until the applicant, or their agents
or successors in title, has secured the implementation of an Historic Building Record and an
Archaeological Mitigation Strategy, to be defined in a Written Scheme of Investigation that
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The strategy
shall accord with a brief provided by North Lincolnshire Historic Environment Record
equivalent to Historic England’s Level 2 building survey. The historic building recording and
mitigation strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and timings.

Reason

To comply with paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework, policy CS6 of
the Core Strategy and policy HE9 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan as the buildings are
a heritage asset of local historic value that form part of a group of historic buildings.
Demolition will result in the loss of historically significant evidence; the proposed historic
building record will ensure that such evidence is appropriately recorded and a permanent
archive created.

4.

The historic building and archaeological report and archive shall be deposited at the North
Lincolnshire Historic Environment Record within six months of the date of commencement
of the development hereby approved by this permission or such other period as may be
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason

To comply with paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework, policy CS6 of
the Core Strategy and policy HE9 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan as the buildings are
a heritage asset of local historic value that form part of a group of historic buildings.
Demolition will result in the loss of historically significant evidence; the proposed historic
building record will ensure that such evidence is appropriately recorded and a permanent
archive created.

5.

The development hereby permitted shall take place in strict accordance with all of the works
recommended within the Structural Survey (Capstone, October 2017) to the Stable (and
Dovecote) and Carriage House and once completed shall thereafter be retained. The
applicant must evidence these works through both written documentation and
photomontage, and this is to be agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason

In the interest of the historic environment and to align with the terms of this listed building
consent, in accordance with policies CS6 of the Core Strategy and HE5 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

6

No development shall take place until details have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority of the make, type and colour of all external facing

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 64



materials for the development, including rainwater goods and details of the mortar mix, and
only the approved materials shall be used.

Reason

To define the terms of the permission, to preserve the setting and condition of the listed
buildings in accordance with policies HE5 and DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and
CS6 of the adopted Core Strategy.

1.

No development shall take place until detailed drawings, at a scale of 1:10 or 1:20, of the
windows and doors to be installed in the buildings have been submitted to and agreed in
writing by the local planning authority. The details of the proposed windows shall include
glazing bars, opening details, materials and colour finish. The details of the proposed doors
shall include materials of construction and colour finish. The development shall take place
in accordance with the agreed details and once installed shall thereafter be retained.

Reason

To define the terms of the permission, to preserve the setting and condition of the listed
building in accordance with policies HE5 and DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and
CS6 of the adopted Core Strategy.

Informative

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 65



Slacks Drain gss
7

0 50 100 150 200

,,,,, E .
o \
\
\’\ ‘
Q North Axholme “
-
)
Q
)
o
»
Tetley
North
\ Lincolnshire
) pevelopment Boundary Council

PAI201 9/1 028 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560



PA/2019/1028 Site layout (not to scale)
4 N
=

[

(3

\ Plot 1
\ enabling works |
'

Tetley Hall

)
Proposed

Replacement
Tetley FardgHouse T

\
,/
\ =
~ _ g
4 S L — T T _ — \
Existing driveway — — P \
L f—— \

Plot 2
enabling works

/9 abed

Lakeside

- Py
Ivy House
| V. f/

New House

24gh®r;::?c;§:;vgfarnd fax01724710174 | Date | 20/5/19 |Dwg No | 4 of 6 Crowle, Scunthorpe, DN17 4HY
K Scunthorpe DN17 4JN  |Mob07947226577| Scale  [1:1000 Ref No 1045 Drawing |Proposed Site Layout

H d J Wroot BSc MRICS |re Client i : - - ol
/owar root BSc relo1724711068 | Client | NPP Properties Ltd Proposal Residential Development at Lakeside, Tetley, ((\Q Rlcs\



june cox_2
Text Box
PA/2019/1028 Site layout (not to scale)


PA/2019/1028 Plans and elevations (not to scale)
&)
&

(To0y
&

GROUND FLOOR

o caouns Hoon ﬂ

FIRST FLOOR
NO ACCESS TO FIRST FLOOR
ALL SURVEY DETAIL
MEASURED REMOTELY

ELEVATION A

ELEVATION C

SECTION Y -Y

4 ELEVATION B 4
%) &)

@

ELEVATION D

SECTION X - X

Survey Legend:

—— — Bork Top/Botiom  Buiding  /  Bulding Overhong
— + — Boundary

Chonges to Surface Funish
e snes - Canopy Line

Tk ne Well Defined/Posry DefinedUndefned
¥ Hedge 2g. Conc. Edge/Tormac. Edge/Trock Edge
vt
——— Fence Overheod oot/ Telephora Coble

Foul Water Sever
—— Surfoce Water Sewer  Drop Keb  /  Kerb

F— O e Panaromc Phtogroph
BSmem A S o

[T — @ comion oV
PN b
et A o

o et PRSI

T o e T i et o
Tt W . o v 04

. Floor Laval (icl. carpet ste)
0 Flaor Lavel to finished caiing haight

FFL to wll / sloping celing ikersetion
Fiishad floor Matricl

S Fimshad floor Lovel to window sl height
HISD  Window sl to window head height
<~ Directon of flaar baords

= Coling Skope. Amow denotes draction of rse
Overhead detal

Copyright Shire Surveys.

Notes:

1. Survey undertaken September 2017.

GRAPHIC SCALE 1:100

om 2m 4m 6m 8m

Al levels are orthometric heights refative 1o Ordnance Datum Newlyn
measured by GPS and transformed via OSGM1

Antenna phase centre offsels: Rinex=0S supplied, Site data=IGS
Survey orientated to suit building layout

Transverse Mercator Projection scale factor applied to this survey = 1
Station Coordinates to OSGB36 (via OSTNTS).

Su Easting | MNorhing | _Elevation Type
BASE | 477623566 | 411681.830 4046 _Temp
Station Coordinates o local metic grd.(As Ploted):
Easting | MNorhing | _Elevation Type
BASE 623566 681830 4046 Temp
(Rev. Description pate |}

MEASURED BUILDING SURVEY

TETLEY
CROWLE
NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE

Mr Mark Wall

Approved Drawn: g Garton

Date: 12,09.17 Seale: 4:400

Digital file: Original Size:  p4

1736 Survey.dwg

Drawing No.: 1736/001 ‘ Rev.

shire surveys &g

Westfeld Cottage, 7 Crowle Bank Road [
Althorpe, North Lincolnshire, DN17 3HZ
Tel : 01724 783078

Email : office@shiresurveys.com

Ir

sh



June Cox
Stamp

june cox_3
Text Box
PA/2019/1028 Plans and elevations (not to scale)


Agenda Item 5b

APPLICATION NO PA/2021/891

APPLICANT Mr G Clements

DEVELOPMENT Planning permission to erect 9 dwellings with landscaping and
access

LOCATION Land rear of 9-11 Torksey Street, Kirton in Lindsey, DN21 4PW

PARISH Kirton in Lindsey

WARD Ridge

CASE OFFICER Emmanuel Hiamey

SUMMARY Refuse permission

RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Member ‘call in’ (Cllr Neil Poole — significant public interest)

REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE Objection by Kirton in Lindsey Town Council

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework:

Chapter 2 (Achieving sustainable development)

Chapter 4 (Decision making)

Chapter 5 (Delivering a sufficient supply of homes)

Chapter 9 (Promoting sustainable transport)

Chapter 11 (Making effective use of land)

Chapter 12 (Achieving well-designed places)

Chapter 14 (Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change)
Chapter 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural environment)
Chapter 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment)
North Lincolnshire Local Plan:

Policy T2 (Access to Development)

Policy T19 (Car Parking Provision and Standards)

Policy HE2 (Development in Conservation Areas)

Policy HE5 (Development affecting Listed Buildings)

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 69



Policy HE9 (Archaeological Excavation)

Policy DS1 (General Requirements)

Policy DS14 (Foul Sewage and Surface Water Drainage)
Policy DS16 (Flood Risk)

North Lincolnshire Core Strategy:

Policy CS1 (Spatial Strategy for North Lincolnshire)
Policy CS2 (Delivering More Sustainable Development)
Policy CS3 (Development Limits)

Policy CS5 (Delivering Quality Design in North Lincolnshire)
Policy CS6: (Historic Environment)

Policy CS7 (Overall Housing Provision)

Policy CS19 (Flood Risk)

CONSULTATIONS

Historic Environment Record (Conservation): Objects to the application because
insufficient justification has been provided for the demolition of an important historic building
in the Kirton conservation area.

Historic Environment Record (Archaeology): Initially recommended a holding objection
until the results of the field evaluation are available to adequately assess the potential
impact of the development on the archaeological significance.

Furthermore, the application should not be determined, except for a refusal, until this
information is submitted and any appropriate mitigation measures agreed to avoid adverse
impact or adequately mitigate the loss of heritage interest.

Additional information has been submitted, however the Archaeology officer is still not
satisfied with the additional information submitted and therefore retains the holding
objection.

Environmental Protection: No objections subject to conditions.

Drainage Team (Lead Local Flood Authority: Raises concerns that there are some
anomalies with the site investigation report concerning infiltration rates used and a lack of
evidence to suggest groundwater does not exist on the site.

Anglian Water Services Ltd: No objection.

Place, Planning and Housing: Has provided advice on all relevant policies related to this
proposal. The development plan for Kirton in Lindsey consists of the Core Strategy and
Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD of the North Lincolnshire LDF and the
Saved Policies of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan 2003.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 70



Highways: No objection subject to conditions.
TOWN COUNCIL

Object to this application. ‘Although the area indicated may benefit from some development,
there are potential problems identified with this application. The line of sight from units 7-9
may harm the privacy of the bedrooms of numbers 8-10 Turner Street. The applicant
should be able to prove whether this will not be an issue by submitting section drawings
and undertaking some site redesign if necessary and they should therefore be required to
do so.

The Town Council note the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) have, in their consultation
reply, noted how the application has failed to provide a flood risk assessment and principle
drainage strategy and so consequently the proposal fails to comply with both local and
national planning policies.

Kirton in Lindsey Town Council has concerns about highways, namely the safe egress of
vehicles from the dwellings and preservation of safety for pedestrians, given that there will
be several immediately adjacent driveways. Such density of additional housing will also add
to congestion in an area of the town which has narrow lanes for roads. The Town Council
notes the concerns raised by Highways indicating the need for a demolition traffic
management plan prior to any development taking place, which is in line with Kirton in
Lindsey Town Council's concerns over some difficulty which will be experienced by
construction traffic serving a site in this location. The Town Council support the need for
such a plan to be made available for approval.

Although the principle of suitable development at this site is supported, the current
proposals draw concerns and unanswered questions given the potential for loss of privacy
and insufficient information about flood risk and highway issues which the application would
bring if approved.

Kirton in Lindsey Town Council, therefore, objects to this application concerning material
considerations including the government policy, proposals in the Local Development Plan,
overlooking, loss of privacy, loss of daylight, sunlight, overshadowing, access, traffic —
highway safety, provision for the impact of parking and drainage, flood risk.’

PUBLICITY

Advertised by site and press notice. Nine responses have been received raising the
following concerns:

e the design of the buildings

e the impact on buildings of townscape merit
e overlooking impact

e loss of light

e privacy

e increase in traffic

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 71



e parking issues
e public safety
e access to and from the development site

e poor visibility of vehicles exiting the development site

impact on the conservation area.
ASSESSMENT
Constraints

Conservation area

e Tree preservation order

e Area of archaeological interest
e Development boundary

e Buildings of townscape merit

e SFRA flood zone 1

Planning history

None.

Proposal and site description

The site is within the development boundary of Kirton, within the conservation area and
near to several buildings of townscape merit alongside Torksey Street and Turner Street.

The site is an overgrown rear garden to former numbers 9, 11, 15 and 17 Torksey Street,
along with the former curtilage of three disused abandoned terraced dwellings fronting
Turner Street and adjacent to the junction with Torksey Street.

Planning permission is sought to erect nine dwellings with access, parking and landscaping,
including associated demolition works. The proposal would consist of three terraced
properties containing three dwellings (Units 1-3, 4-6 and 7-9). Each dwelling would have
two bedrooms and off-street parking provision for up to two cars. Visitor parking would also
be provided.

The dwellings would be finished in brick with pantile roofs to match existing buildings on the
site.

The following documents have been submitted in support of the application:
e Manufacturer’s Brochure

e Permeable Paving Installation Manufacturer Specification

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 72



e Heritage Lighting Column Manufacturer Specification

e Design and Access Statement

e Historic Building Survey and Archaeological Evaluation

e Phase 2 (ground investigation) Report

e Drainage Report

e Structural Inspection Report

e Archaeological DBA

e Structural Report

e Phase 2 Report

e Phase 1 Report.

Key issues

The main issues to consider in determining this application are:

e the principle of the development;

e impact on scale and character of the surrounding area;

¢ impact on neighbouring amenities;

¢ highways, access, and parking;

e flood risk and drainage;

e landscaping and ecology.

Principle of development

The application site is within the development boundary of Kirton in Lindsey.

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning
applications to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. In this instance, the development plan consists of the
saved policies of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan (NLLP) and the North Lincolnshire Core
Strategy (NLCS). Material considerations exist in the form of national policy and guidance
contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the suite of
documents comprising National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).

The NPPF states that housing applications should be considered in the context of the
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that relevant policies for the supply
of housing that seek to restrict housing outside of settlements should not be considered up-

to-date if a five-year supply cannot be demonstrated. The presumption in favour of
sustainable development means that permission should be granted unless any adverse

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 73



impacts would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the application when
assessed against the policies of the NPPF.

National Planning Policy Framework, Chapter 11 (Making effective use of land), under
Paragraph 120, states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that substantial
weight is given to the value of using suitable brownfield land within settlements for homes
and other identified needs, and supports appropriate opportunities to remediate despoiled,
degraded, derelict, contaminated or unstable land.

It also promotes and supports the development of under-utilised land and buildings,
especially if this would help to meet identified needs for housing where land supply is
constrained and available sites could be used more effectively (for example, converting
space above shops, and building on or above service yards, car parks, lock-ups and railway
infrastructure).

The design and access statement confirms that the application site is brownfield in nature
as it is/was last used in a residential capacity. In this case, the residential reuse of the site
would constitute sustainable development and is compatible with the residential uses of the
surrounding area.

Policy CS2 (Delivering more Sustainable Development) states that in supporting the
delivery of the spatial strategy set out in policy CS1, as well as determining how future
development needs will be met in North Lincolnshire, a sequential approach will be
adopted.

The adopted sequential approach focuses on the following:

@) Previously developed land and buildings within the Scunthorpe urban area, followed
by other suitable infill opportunities within the town, then by appropriate greenfield
urban extensions

(b) Previously developed land and buildings within the defined development limits of
North Lincolnshire’s Market Towns, followed by other suitable infill opportunities then
appropriate small-scale greenfield extensions to meet identified local needs

(c) Small-scale developments within the defined development limits of rural settlements
to meet identified local needs.

In this case, Kirton in Lindsey is a market town, and the site is within the development
boundary. Consequently, the development is consistent with the aims of policy CS2.

Policy CS3 (Development Limits) ensures that the countryside is protected from
inappropriate development and that no uncontrolled expansion of settlements will take
place. Since the site is within the development boundary of Kirton and housing
development on the site is not restricted, the proposal meets the terms of policy CS3.

Notwithstanding the development plan policies set out above, the NPPF is a material
consideration when determining planning applications. Paragraph 10 of the NPPF states,
‘So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.” Paragraph 11(d) of the
NPPF states that housing applications should be considered in the context of the
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Where the local planning authority

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 74



cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites, relevant policies which
were most important to determining the application should not be considered up-to-date.

A recent appeal decision dated 20 July 2022 (planning reference PA/2020/554) has been
issued where the Inspector has concluded that the council does not currently have a five-
year housing land supply of deliverable sites. The council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply
Position Statement is awaiting an update and as such any decisions made by the planning
authority will take account of the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set
out in paragraph 11 of the NPPF. The current local policies which are most important for
determining the application will carry reduced weight during this period.

The site is within the development boundary of Kirton in Lindsey where the principle of
residential development is considered acceptable. The proposal generally accords with the
relevant policies of the development plan. As such the statutory presumption in section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 is engaged, which states that
planning permission should be granted unless other material considerations indicate
otherwise. The proposal is considered to represent sustainable development and the
presumption in favour set out in paragraph 11 of the Framework is triggered. In determining
the principle and sustainability of the proposed development, an assessment is required on
the technical elements of the proposal which will be discussed below.

Layout, siting and design

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that
developments:

(@  will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;

(b)  are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

(c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting;

(d)  establish a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building
types and materials to create attractively, welcoming and distinctive places to live,
work and visit;

(e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and

() create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.

Paragraph 128 of the NPPF requires that ‘design quality should be considered throughout
the evolution and assessment of individual proposals’.

Policy DS1 of the local plan (General Requirements) expect a high standard of design in all
developments in both built-up areas and the countryside and proposals for poorly designed

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 75



development will be refused. All proposals will be considered against the criteria of quality
of design, amenity impact, conservation, resources, utilities and services.

Core Strategy policy CS5 (Delivering Quality Design in North Lincolnshire) requires all new
development in North Lincolnshire to be well designed and appropriate for their context. It
should contribute to creating a sense of place. The council will encourage contemporary
design if it is appropriate for its location and is informed by its surrounding context. A design
which is inappropriate to the local area or fails to maximise opportunities for improving the
character and quality of the area will not be acceptable.

In considering scale and layout, the proposed development on the site of approximately
0.14 hectares would not result in over-development and would be reflective of the scale and
form of residential properties nearby.

Regarding the impact of the proposal on the surrounding area, the dwellings proposed
fronting Turner Street (units 1-3) and Torksey Street (units 4—6) would be prominent in the
street, which has a mix of different dwelling types and designs, including two-storey
terraced dwellings.

Having given due regard to the character of the site in the context of the surrounding area,
it is judged that the relationship between the site and the existing built form, is not suitable
because the site is infill housing development and would result in a higher-density
residential scheme (i.e. the ratio of land area and number of dwellings) in a relatively low to
medium density residential area, where the surrounding residential units have either large
or modest gardens.

Also, this high-density residential scheme would result in a cramped development with
dwelling units associated with small gardens.

Overall, the siting and layout of the site is not acceptable in the context of the character and
appearance of the immediate area and would impact negatively on the character of the
conservation area.

Impact on residential amenities

Policy DS1 (General Requirements) expects a high standard of design in all developments
in both built-up areas and the countryside and proposals for poorly designed development
will be refused. It requires that all proposals be considered against the quality of the design
and amenity, amongst other matters. Further to this, the NPPF advises that planning should
always seek to secure a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of
land and buildings.

Public consultation on the application has been undertaken by means of a site notice. The
concerns raised following this exercise include the impact of the development on the
amenity of surrounding properties through overlooking, and loss of light and privacy.

Having regard to the effect of the development on privacy levels, it is worth noting that Units
7-9 would face Units 1-3. The separation distance between Units 1-3 and Units 7-9 is
approximately 10m. Where windows serving accommodation in a dwelling face another
dwelling, the development must demonstrate that the separation distances would ensure
that privacy levels are protected and reflect the highest possible standards of design. In this
case, the separation distance of 10m is insufficient to protect the privacy of the properties.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 76



The first-floor windows of Units 7-9 would overlook the amenity areas of Units 1-3 (private
garden).

Regarding window-to-window, the separation distance of 10m between the first-floor
windows of Units 1-3 and the first-floor windows of Units 7-9 are sufficient to protect
residential amenity by ensuring the habitable rooms are protected.

Concerning Units 4-6, the dwellings would face the gable of Units 7-9 at a 90-degree angle
and therefore the relationship between the dwellings is less likely to raise an issue of loss of
privacy or overlooking and there would be no inter-visibility between rooms.

Generally the development would not accord with policy in terms of ensuring that the
privacy/amenities of Units 1-3 are safeguarded as part of the proposed development. The
design statement does not demonstrate how residential privacy would be maintained.

Having reviewed the details of the design, and the impact on residential amenities, the
proposal would not meet the principles of policy DS1 or the NPPF in terms of the impact of
the development on the privacy of surrounding properties.

Access and parking

Policy T2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan states that all development should be served
by satisfactory access. Policy T19 is concerned with parking provisions as well as general
highway safety.

All dwellings would be provided with off-street parking for up to two cars. Units 1-3 will have
direct highway access off Turner Street and units 4-6 and 7-9 have access from Torksey
Street. Highways have no objection to the grant of permission subject to conditions, which
would be applied to any permission granted. The proposed access is therefore sufficient to
serve the development.

Overall, it is considered, subject to conditions, that the proposal would align with policies T2
and T19 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Flood risk and drainage

Policy CS19 of the Core Strategy is concerned with flood risk and policy DS14 of the local
plan is concerned with foul sewage and surface water drainage.

Section 14 (Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change) of the
NPPF requires that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be
avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk (whether existing or
future). Where development is necessary for such areas, the development should be made
safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere.

When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood
risk is not increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications should be supported by a
site-specific flood risk assessment. Development should only be allowed in areas at risk of
flooding where, in the light of this assessment (and the sequential and exception tests, as
applicable) it can be demonstrated that:

(@  within the site, the most vulnerable development is in areas of lowest flood risk,
unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location;

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 77



(b) the development is appropriately flood resistant and resilient;

(c) it incorporates sustainable drainage systems unless there is clear evidence that this
would be inappropriate;

(d)  any residual risk can be safely managed; and

(e) safe access and escape routes are included where appropriate, as part of an agreed
emergency plan.

Applications for some minor development and changes of use should not be subject to the
sequential or exception tests but should still meet the requirements for site-specific flood
risk assessments.

In this case, the site is located within SFRA flood zone 1.

The LLFA Drainage Team has been consulted and has indicated that there are some
anomalies with the site investigation report concerning infiltration rates used and a lack of
evidence to suggest groundwater does not exist on the site:

‘Section 9.5 quotes two rates: 5.17 x 10-5m/s and 1.52 x 10-4m/s, but only one test result
from SA 2 is shown in the report, the lowest rate being 1.07 x 10-4m/s. This is equivalent to
385mm/hr which is the rate that the consultant has quoted and used in his calculations.
Where has the 5.17 x 10-5m/s come from and why was this lower value not used in the
calculations? This value is equivalent to 186mm/hr which is only about half the value that
the report has used.

Appendix B states trial holes down to 3.2 metres and groundwater encountered. No site
investigation report has been submitted.

Crated storage within plots 1, 2 and 3 serving all other plots. The use of connected private
surface water drainage systems which are reliant on one outfall/property owner is not
permitted unless a robust adoption and maintenance plan is produced. The reliance on one
owner to maintain a drainage system, that if not maintained can cause civil and legal
disputes moving forward with several neighbouring properties. This is an approach that
other local authorities are adopting. There is no reason why each property cannot have its
own individual surface water drainage outfall. This is not a good solution unless it is a public
sewer and adopted by the water company.’

The applicant has been made aware of the drainage officer's comments but has failed to
address the concerns raised.

The proposal does not, therefore, meet the terms of policy CS19 of the Core Strategy and
policy DS14 of the local plan.

Contaminated land

The NPPF states that to prevent unacceptable risks from pollution and land instability,
planning policies and decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its
location. Policy DS11 is concerned with polluting activities. It states that planning
permission for development, including extensions to existing premises and changes of use,
will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that levels of potentially polluting
emissions, including effluent, leachates, smoke, fumes, gases, dust, steam, smell, or noise,

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 78



do not pose a danger by way of toxic release. Policy DS1 is also concerned with the
protection of amenities.

Environmental Protection (Contaminated Land) have no objection to the development,
subject to conditions. They have commented that this application for residential
development is a sensitive end-use. In addition, historical mapping held by the department
identifies several structures on site which may have the potential to introduce contaminants
such as asbestos, heavy metals and PAHs, which are harmful to human health. It is the
developer’s responsibility to assess and address any potential contamination risks, however
no supporting information has been provided that demonstrates potential risks can be
reduced to an acceptable level.

If the council is mindful to determine the application without the information required under
National Planning Policy guidance, then the department would recommend a condition,
which will be applied to any permission granted. The proposal would accord with policy
DS11 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Archaeology

Policy HE9 (Archaeological Excavation) states that where development proposals affect
sites of known or suspected archaeological importance, an archaeological assessment will
be required to be submitted prior to the determination of the application.

It states that planning permission will not be granted without adequate assessment of the
nature, extent and significance of the remains present and the degree to which the
proposed development is likely to affect them.

Sites of known archaeological importance will be protected. When development affecting
such sites is acceptable in principle, mitigation of damage must be ensured and the
preservation of the remains in situ is a preferred solution. When in situ preservation is not
justified, the developer will be required to make adequate provision for excavation and
recording before and during development.

Historic Environment Record (Archaeology) initially recommended a holding objection until
the results of the field evaluation are available to adequately assess the potential impact of
the development on the archaeological significance.

They have indicated that the application should not be determined, except for a refusal,
until the above information has been submitted and any appropriate mitigation measures
agreed to avoid adverse impact or adequately mitigate the loss of heritage interest.

Notwithstanding the submission of the requested information, the Archaeology officer is still
concerned that the proposed development would destroy significant archaeology, including
the potential for Roman building remains. The officer has commented that, given the
significance, there should be agreement on appropriate mitigation measures with the
developer before determining this application. This is to ensure that any substantial harm to
archaeology will be offset by a programme of further archaeological excavations prior to
any development taking place.

The applicant needs to take into account the time and costs of the archaeology, and
Historic Environment Record (Archaeology) need to be satisfied that the applicant would
have appropriate plans in place to undertake the archaeological work.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 79



The next step is for the applicant to submit this evaluation report and Historic Environment
Record (Archaeology) can provide a formal planning consultation response.

Historic Environment Record (Archaeology) have advised that the applicant should also
provide a Written Scheme of Investigation for pre-construction archaeological excavation
that their archaeological contractor can prepare for them. This WSI should be agreed upon
and then submitted to consider in the determination of the application.

From the above, it is judged that inadequate information has been submitted to fully assess
the nature, extent and significance of the remains present and the degree to which the
proposed development is likely to affect the site. The proposal, therefore, does not comply
with policy HE9 (Archaeological Excavation).

Conservation area

As indicated earlier, the site is within the conservation area and contains a building of
townscape merit.

Chapter 16, Conserving and enhancing the historic environment of the NPPF, paragraph
206, states that local planning authorities should look for opportunities for new development
within conservation areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the setting of heritage
assets, to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those
elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal
its significance) should be treated favourably.

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 places a general duty on
local planning authorities as respects conservation areas in the exercise of planning
functions. In exercising this duty, with regard to any building or other land in a conservation
area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of that area.

Policy HE2: Development in Conservation Areas requires that all development proposals in,
or which affect the setting of, conservation areas should preserve or enhance the character
and appearance of the area and its setting. The criteria that will apply in determining
applications for development in conservation areas, among others, include design, harmony
with the surroundings, building materials, and retaining important architectural and historical
features.

Policy CS6: Historic Environment of the Core Strategy states that the council will seek to
protect, conserve and enhance North Lincolnshire’s historic environment, as well as the
character and setting of areas of acknowledged importance, including historic buildings,
conservation areas, listed buildings (both statutory and locally listed), registered parks and
gardens, scheduled ancient monuments and archaeological remains.

Kirton In Lindsey Conservation Area Supplementary Planning Guidance Adopted
Document, under the section Buildings of Townscape Merit, indicates that Buildings of
Townscape Merit are unlisted buildings which it is considered contribute positively to the
character of the Kirton in Lindsey conservation area. They largely date from the 18th and
19" centuries, and a number of them are proposed for statutory listing. The buildings are
generally unaltered or, with some restoration, could easily be reinstated to their original
appearance.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 80



The age and architectural interest of Buildings of Townscape Merit are considered to
provide sufficient justification for them to be given special protection and the council will
resist their demolition unless the applicant can prove that the buildings are beyond the point
of economic repair.

Additionally, Buildings of Townscape Merit are an important part of the character of the
conservation area, and the council will pay special attention to applications to alter or
extend them.

The conservation officer has objected to the application, indicating that the 18th-century
barn fronting Turner Street has been identified as a building of townscape merit within the
Kirton conservation area.

The building contributes positively to the character of the Kirton in Lindsey Conservation
Area and its proposed demolition will lead to a substantial loss of important historic building
and negatively impact the character of the Kirton conservation area.

The conservation officer has commented that insufficient justification has been provided to
justify the demolition of this important historic building in the Kirton conservation area.

The proposal would therefore not comply with policies HE2 and CS6.
Town council comments

Kirton in Lindsey Town Council objects to this application on drainage concerns, highway
matters, the density of the area and potential amenity impact. These concerns have been
considered and all issues addressed in this report.

Public comments

The public concerns about the design, impact on buildings of townscape merit, amenity
impact, highway issues and impact on the conservation area have been addressed in this
report.

Conclusion

In conclusion, the principle of the development is judged acceptable; however, there are
significant objections from consultees and the matter is unlikely to be resolved soon. It is
believed that the applicant would require sufficient time to resolve the issue and the
application cannot remain pending indefinitely.

Regarding amenity impact, it is judged that the development would not accord with policy in
terms of ensuring that privacy/amenity is safeguarded as part of the proposed development.
The first-floor windows would overlook the amenity areas of the neighbouring properties.
The proposal is therefore contrary to policies DS1 of the local plan and CS5 of the Core
Strategy.

In terms of drainage, there are outstanding matters regarding anomalies with the site
investigation report concerning infiltration rates used and the lack of evidence to suggest
groundwater does not exist on the site. The applicant has been made aware of the drainage
officer's comments but has failed to address the concerns raised. The proposal would
therefore not meet the terms of policies CS19 of the Core Strategy and DS14 of the local
plan.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 81



On archaeology, inadequate information has been submitted for a comprehensive
assessment of the nature, extent and significance of the remains present and the degree to
which the proposed development is likely to affect the site. The proposal, therefore, does
not comply with policy HE9 of the local plan.

Turning to the impact on the conservation area and the building of townscape merit within
the site, the council will resist the demolition unless the applicant can prove that the building
is beyond the point of economic repair. It is also judged that the building contributes
positively to the character of the Kirton in Lindsey conservation area and the proposed
demolishing of the building will lead to a substantial loss of important historic buildings of
architectural interest and negatively impact the character of the Kirton conservation area.
The proposal would therefore not comply with policies HE2 of the local plan and CS6 of the
Core Strategy.

Generally, the proposal does not meet the requirements of the NPPF and Kirton in Lindsey
Conservation Area Appraisal and the supplementary guidance. It is therefore recommended
for refusal.

RECOMMENDATION Refuse permission for the following reasons:

1.

The layout, siting and design of the development are not acceptable because they would
not accord with policy in terms of ensuring that privacy/amenities are safeguarded as part of
the proposed development. The separation distance of approximately 10m is insufficient to
protect the privacy of Units 1-3 (private garden) from the first-floor windows of Units 7-9.

Further, the separation distance of approximately 10m between Units 1-3 (private garden)
and Units 7-9 is insufficient to safeguard overlooking from window to window at first floor
between Units 1-3 (private garden) and Units 7-9. The proposal is therefore contrary to
policies DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS5 of the Core Strategy, as well as
paragraph 130 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

2

The layout, siting and design of the development are not acceptable, given due regard to
the character of the site and context of the area. The development would result in a higher-
density residential scheme (i.e. the ratio of land area and number of dwellings), in an area
of relatively low to medium density, where the surrounding residential units have either
large or modest gardens, and would result in a cramped development with dwelling units
associated with small gardens. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies DS1 of the
North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS5 of the Core Strategy, as well as paragraph 130 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

3.

There are outstanding matters regarding anomalies with the site investigation report
concerning infiltration rates used and the lack of evidence to suggest groundwater does not
exist on the site. The applicant has been made aware of the drainage officer's comments
but has failed to address the concerns raised. The proposal would not meet the terms of
policies CS19 of the Core Strategy and DS14 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, as well
as paragraph 167 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 82



4.

Inadequate information has been submitted for a comprehensive assessment of the nature,
extent and significance of the archaeological remains present and the degree to which the
proposed development is likely to affect the site. Therefore, the proposal does not comply
with policy HE9 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, as well as paragraph 194 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

5.

Because of its demolition, the development would negatively impact the building of
townscape merit within the site and the conservation area. The applicant has failed to
demonstrate satisfactorily that the building is beyond the point of economic repair. It is also
judged that it contributes positively to the character of the Kirton in Lindsey conservation
area and its proposed demolition would lead to a substantial loss of important buildings of
historic and architectural interest, and negatively impact the character of the Kirton in
Lindsey conservation area. Therefore, the proposal does not comply with policies HE2 of
the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS6 of the Core Strategy, as well as paragraphs 195
and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 83



Gas Gov

Lincolnshire

Council

=
©

©

[

>

(@)

(an]

e}

[en

Q

S

Q
o

()]

>

[

(&)

1
o
m
1
o
o
<
o

ase rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560

b

© Crown copyright and data



PA/2021/891 Proposed layout (not to scale)

493300m 493400m 493500m
398800m 398800m

DO NOT SCALE

SPECIFICATION & CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

GENERAL

1. These notes are intended to augment drawings and specifications. Where

conflict of requirements exists the order of precedence shall be as shown in the

©Crown Copyright and database rights 2020 OS 100019980 specifications. Othenwise the strictest provision shall govern.
2. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other relevant Engineering
and Architectural drawings.
3. Drawings not to be scaled. All dimensions to be checked on site by the
Contractor. Any discrepancies to be nofified to the Buiding Designer and
further instructions obtained before work is commenced.
4, The structure is designed to be self-supporting and stable after the building
is fully complete. It i the Contractors sole responsibity to determine the
erection procedure and sequence and ensure that the building and its
components are safe during erection. This includes the addition of whatever
temporary bracing, guys or tie-downs which may be necessary, such material
remaining the property of the Contractor upon completion.

398700m 5. This drawing represents a detailed dimensional measurement survey of the
physical dimensions of the existing property. This drawing does not and is not
intended to express any opinion on the physical, superfcial or structural
condition of the premises epicted.
6. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with allother relevant dravings

398700m

APPLICATION SITE
APPLICATION SITE ~._ |

398600m 398600m

OS Map Site Location Plan GRAPHIC SCALE 1:1250

Scale 1:1250 GRAPHIC SCALE 1:500

Om 10m20m  40m  60m

Oom 5m  10m 15m 20m 25m

398500m

U

m 493300m 493400m | == e 55
Q ?

@D

o | e | s w
wl o Tw e P
DER|
INITIAL ISSUE
FF2/2A School Court
TAS /

@ Wrowby Street
Building

Brigg
R North Lincolnshire
Demgn DN20 8JW

t: +44(0)1652 659467
f: +44(0)1652 659467

Proposed Block Plan e: tasbuikdingdesign@hotmail.co.uk
Scale 1:500 e
MR G CLEMENTS
|

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
TORKSEY STREET, KIRTON LINDSEY, DN21 4PW

OUTBYILDINGS T0 BE
DEMOLISHED
EXSTING MASONR
WALL 2.0m HIGH

APPROXIMATE AREAS OF
e celvd " SITE LOGATION PLAN
TWO STOREY &
COTJAGE WITH TWO
STOREY EXTENSION BLOCK PLANS
,Ls — —
AS SHOWN @ A1 TAS TAS
CAD FILE: 'DESIGN /DRAWN. DATE:

11809/Drg/Arch ™/s APRL 2017

PROVECT Nor DRANNG No: R
11809 A0001 -

Existing Block Plan
Scale 1:500

© TAS BUILDING DESIGN

I



June Cox_1
Stamp

June Cox_2
Stamp

June Cox_3
Stamp

june cox_4
Text Box
PA/2021/891 Proposed layout (not to scale)


PA/2021/891 Detailed layout (not to scale)

STREET NAME PIATE
RELOCATED TO PROMINENT
POSITION

PERMEABLE COBBLESTONE ~EFFECT
HARDSTANDING WITH 150mm ACO
KERB DRAIN T0 HIGHNAY BOUNDARY
TO PREVENT HIGHWAY SURFACE
WATER RUN OFF OR VICE VERSA

NEW DROPPED KERB VEHICLE
ACCESS WTH KERB DRAIN ALL TO
NLC HIGHWAYS APPROVAL/SPEC

7ZA
L

o

RSt

)
A

TERRACED BLOCK OF
3 No 2 STOREY
DWELLINGS

98 abed

CLOSE BOARDER TIMBER FENCE
WITH CONCRETE POSTS AND
GRAVEL BOARDS TO WEST AND
PART SOUTH ELEVATION AS
REQUIRED TO MAINTAIN PRIVACY

TERRACED BLOCK OF
3 No 2 STOREY
DWELLINGS

NON-HABITABLE RODM
WINDOW (STAIR/LANDING)

EXISTING MASONRY
WALLING 1.85m + HIGH

Block Plan - Proposed
Scale 1:200 om

e

EXSTING DROPPED KERB ACCESS
REDUCED IN WIDTH T0 3.5M
(SEPARATE. APPLICATION)

REFUSE BIN
COLLECTION POINT
(UNITS 7 - 9 PLUS
17 TORKSEY STREET)

DROPP
ACCESS
T0 NIC
APPROVAL/SPEC

NEW 1200mm WIDE
FOOTPATH TO NLC
HIGHWAYS SPEC

TERRACED BLOCK OF
B 2

DWELAINGS

2
2
»ﬁ
)
P2
UA’»
R

GRAPHIC SCALE 1:200

DO NOT SCALE
SPECIFICATION & CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

GENERAL

1. These notes are intended to augment drawings and specifications. Where
conflict of requirements exists the order of precedence shall be as shown in the.
specifications. Othenwise the strictest provision shall govern.

2. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other relevant Engineering
and Architectural drawings.

3. Drawings not to be scaled. All dimensions to be checked on site by the
Contractor. Any discrepancies to be notified to the Building Designer and
further instructions obtained before work is commenced.

4. The structure is designed to be self-supporting and stable after the building
is fully complete. It is the Contractors sole responsibility to determine the:
erection procedure and sequence and ensure that the building and its
‘components are safe during erection. This includes the addition of whatever
temporary bracing, guys or tie-downs which may be necessary, such material
remaining the property of the Contractor upon completion.

5. This drawing represents a detailed dimensional measurement survey of the
physical dimensions of the existing property. This drawing does not and is not
intended to express any opinion on the physical, superfcial or structural
condion of the premises depicted.

6. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other relevant drawings.

INITIAL ISSUE
FF2/2A School Court
TAS /

Wrawby Street
1 Brigg
g Building % ncomtive
Design oMo &t
t: +44(0)1652 659467

f: +44(0)1652 659467
e: tasbuidingdesign@hotmal.co.uk

cuENT:

MR G CLEMENTS

| ==

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
TORKSEY STREET, KIRTON LINDSEY, DN21 4PW

SITE PLAN
[SE @ szt TR PFROVED:
AS SHOWN @ A1 TS TS
oD FILE: 'DESIGN /DRANN. DTE:
11809/Drg/Ach TAS/ts APRLL 2017

PROJECT Ne: DRAMING Ne: REV.
11809 A0002 -

© TAS BUILDING DESIGN



june cox_5
Text Box
PA/2021/891 Detailed layout (not to scale)


PA/2021/891 Plans and elevations (Units 1-3) (not to scale)

e

) g abed

CODE 5 LEAD FLASHING TO
ABUTMENTS & UPSTANDS
ETC T0 SPEC

NATURAL RED CLAY
PANTILES WITH MATCHING
HALF ROUND RIDGE AND

DENTILS AL TO SPEC

s
hrsudning
Rt

RED MULTI CLAY BRICKS IN
CONSERVATION MORTAR ALL
SPEC

HARDWOOD WINDOWS AND
DOORS ALL TO SPEC

SKEWED 3 COURSE FLAT
GAUGED ARCHES ALL TO

DRESSED NATURAL LIMESTONE
IN CONSERVATION MORTAR TO
EC

ALL FRONT AND SIDE
ELEVATIONS TO HAVE CLASS
A BULL NOSE BRICKS SET IN
MORTAR T0 SPEC

}( Unit1

North Elevation
Scale 1:100

sounurring

Bedroom 2 | Bedroom 2

EXTRACTOR
VENT TILE

2R
TR

PG

South Elevation

Scale 1:100

2 sérHR‘
5 Beoroom 1| 8 BEpROOM 2
Bedroom 1 Bedroom 1 2 Lounee
KITCHEN b —
P A r GL
3 E£3
Proposed First Floor Plan Section'2-2'
Scale 1:100 Scale 1:100
ﬁ% o|&
o2 I=%
‘ = 14070 °= |

Lounge
4290

Lounge
4290

Lounge
4290

3000

0 | _ BATHR'
L ] ! & g BEDROOM 2
; Beproom 1|| &
o5 | Kichen/
o LOUNGE
KITCHEN 5 r
KR § . GL
| |
i) |
Uit >’< Unit2 >’< Unita
& &
3 3
—|= E 2 " ST
o|8 2 E g|8 Section 1 -1
8 8
= = Scale 1:100

q

Proposed Ground Floor Plan
Scale 1:100

EXTRACTOR
VENT TILE

Rl

PR

BEAM AND BLOCK
FLOOR T0 BUILDING
REGULATIONS SPEC AND
SEPARATE DETALS

RAISED TIE RODF
TRUSSES TO ENABLE
LOWER RIDCELINE

f——— BEAM AND BLOCK

FLOOR TO BULDING
REGULATIONS SPEC AND
SEPARATE DETALS

EXTRACTOR
VENT TILE

East Elevation
Scale 1:100

West Elevation
Scale 1:100

e

Proposed Roof Plan
Scale 1:100

DO NOT SCALE

SPECIFICATION & CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

GENERAL

1. These notes are intended to augment drawings and specifications.
Where conflict of requirements exists the order of precedence shall be as
shown in the specifications. Otherwise the strctest provision shall govern
2. This drawing is to be read i conjunction with all other relevant
Engineering and Architectural drawings.

3. Drawings not to be scaled. All dimensions to be checked on site by the
Contractor. Any discrepancies to be notified to the Building Designer and
further instructions obtained before work is commenced.

4. The structure is designed to be self-supporting and stable after the
building is fully complete. Its the Contractors sole responsibility to
determine the erection procedure and sequence and ensure that the
buiding and its components are safe during erection. This includes the
addton of whatever teEDmporary bracing, guys or tie-downs which may be:
necessary, such material remaining the property of the Contractor upon
completion.

5. This drawing represents a detailed dimensional measurement survey of
the physical dimensions of the existing property. This drawing does not
and is not intended to express any opinion on the physical, superficial or
structural condition of the premises depicted.

6. This drawing s to be read in conjunction with al other relevant drawings.

PLANNING RELATED EXTERNAL FACING MATERIALS AND
ASSOCIATED NOTE

EXTERNAL WALLS

MIX OF SAWN ON BED NATURAL LIMESTONE OSA AND APPROVED
RED CLAY MULTI BRICKS TO FLAT GAUGED ARCHES AND
EAVESIVERGE DETAILING.

MORTAR

COMPRISING 1:6 PARTS OPC/SAND. SAND SHALL COMPRISE 2 PART
SOFT SAND AND 4 PARTS SHARP SAND INCORPORATING 5mm
LIMESTONE/CHALK INCLUSIONS

(COVERED WITH APPROVED BREATHABLE FELT SUCH AS PROCTOR
ROOFSHIELD AND SANDTOFT OLD ENGLISH OSA NATURAL RED
CLAY PANTILES ON 38x50mm TANALISED ROOFING LATTS ALL LAID
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

WINDOWS / DOORS

ALL WINDOWS AND DOORS AND FRAMES TO BE MANUFACTURED
FROM APPROVED HARDWOOD TO APPROVED PROFILES AND
(GLOSS PAINTED WITH TO BE DULUX HERITAGE CHINA WHITE OR
SIMILAR APPROVED COLOUR

RAINWATER GOODS

BLACK HALF ROUND PVC GUTTER 115mm MIN DIA WITH MATCHING
65mm MIN DIA DOWN PIPES ALL BY OSMA WAVIN OSA. ALL
RAINWATER SHALL BE DIRECTED TO APPROPRIATELY DESIGN
SOAKAWAYS IN ACCORDANCE WITH BRE DIGEST 365

o | e | s w
INITIAL ISSUE
FF2/2A School Court
TAS /

@ Wrowby Street
Building

Brigg
A North Lincolnshire
Des]gn DN20 8JW
t: +44(0)1652 659467

f: +44(0)1652 659467
e: tasbuidingdesign@hotmal.co.uk

MR G CLEMENTS
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
TORKSEY STREET, KIRTON LINDSEY
" PROPOSED TERRACED DWELLINGS
BLOCK 1
[UNTS 1 - 3]
AS SHOWN @ A1 TAS TAS
CAD FILE: 'DESIGN /DRAWN. DATE:
11809/Drg/Arch ™/s T 2017

PROVECT Nor DRANNG No: R
11809 A0003 -

© TAS BUILDING DESIGN



june cox_6
Text Box
PA/2021/891 Plans and elevations (Units 1-3) (not to scale)


3 5 @ 5 x o © L B
P 2o 2 5S_. & a S 2 a « E] |
g€ S5 g £ g
g £e Fc zss5 £ 5] 2 & = M 3 ~
428 =8 2 285 FEZ % g . 583 2.2 = (K 8 el
S3°>. 22 Teo£365:2 282 S 4 wE 252 EZE z.,2 - g EAEN =
§285 2§ €z5358 582 3§ ¢ 8o 23 S2pe 8o =34 3 Yy & . | 8
S822 58 3532:z2& ££23 5 % =2 g2 25ES Suz g 3 ® 2%s 7] &
85562 B2 R22ZE5E 2352 B 9 =] 3 SESE ZE = Eg=ts e = 235 1=} 2 |
5825 3£,5522838 383 . 2 E3i] 8 S=268 £33 =8Es8 B @ 88-F w 3 I ]
2852 82E225F3%% 8322 & 2 = S = S = £ g
] 28285 £3Fzgotse E22 £ B g3 28 CZEE  weld EER ££ 5. BBp 2 = +| Z
5822 5588558 ££8 2y Sz = 5885 o298 =zE4 5|z Re gz 28f£ z =z — 2
5 g58F B82Ezgifas E.2 T o= 58 BEzS= oL £5o8 g1E|| w 22 53 582 S S 2 @ =} S
> £ F85% §e8%:058% 2§, 5 B 22 uZie gfE c=f2 2|8 §8.c5 $33% E ~ S| g
5 £8%s5 E32553238 £828: 2 ] ER 228 ggy EB%S HE gE8EE i 3 = - L 2] <| 2
T e zefd,25=385585 £8828 9 £3 2z IE3S Fxx 2Soz = ES828 seu| g - | ES | B2 2
SE2E48885=s£2382 225882 = 2 E == |
=] 8 Ep82fE3:358e55 BE8Ts 4 3k Zg 22 883 Feg= Sels BT 2
8££563:2356%8 5532 = ) 32 8 o = 5 2
= 5 255882258830z 25288 = =z 222 E_EL 288 EZ2su = en Z1E 2 |= =
s caE5cs5<280£5288 BScE2 B So 52 . <] 303 = = '3 512 g |2
o E $85:c382523858% s23E5 £ Efs 8033 BoEEF 2553 SpEZ L2 5 € m q 2[5 2 c
) 2 SEZ83x2BE28=0E8% 25558 & =2= [ZR=s} FEEH S2Eg S0 =z
ol 5285382358229 32385 o ags EX= EZEE SIES L,EZZHG 2|5 < 5 O BS | =
S c38o58888£8858 E825: [l 428E =~ 228 2958 82549 = =MmA =X ] ]
2 BETE 0B 3 0EQESE §2gce az2 3 552
£ EiYziscgzssisst £5Es» 39 JEE8  e23% zzgd 83Zas 838:: 5 s | & s 3l 8
o g2 2E2EE5=>0285 25552 ol 228 oo SEciz aZ2REf =20 Sl HIE I>s]
£ 28355, 28352£32 SEEE =8 == 2o =92 S22: guoa? g g el 51 =2
T _S2EfEgpi£23£222:-3535=83F of z2Z=& z2¥¢ SZEg £385% WIZEz ENH 9a | s =
S 238cScc5282e552588558 25 £5%2 2228 8528 29535 £F=zEE N EEA-N F
I Boc28zRs22ER533822552 28 2583 SEI2H LEHEPTg 85=-95 =SxZT=ES H B °Q 4= |5
g WEec22ofs2ELS82828282 Z|IQ Ho2W ELIpR BUS=38 23282 ZSEZE H < El o = |2
§ 8C280208505838450285L 39 5E8s 8555 285832 23835 33833 lellg | I £ ik 2
 E— -~ G oo 2T A®EOWGE®BO a w i S = w @ o =l

o
S
o
ES)
e]
o
kot
8 8
8 =
3]
a &
— fo—
L
© 5
o L
c R 5
i
FRERERRY >
ERRRR %
» g, -
< =
= T
o) : |
z 3 ]
w E
o - %259
823 S328
whud ceg e
B Zesy
c gE3 2385
g
N’ o
A B L
o
c z
1 i) g 3
5 NE
< s o -
3 _
oo CHIE ?
— = [y I
«o cige E o
S o8 .2 2| o 574 =
= 3 o
wid SRR = 5 <4 ® = o 8
" — ko z g O
n wos g ] S 3
£ = o g
= i ¥
U 3 38 o .
' wo -
S0 Gz
2 B Eps
S 2o 3B | i
28 22| 3zg, 196 ,
=1 £3 o=28
£e 25| 22&5
23 28 | cuegye
S oH 358
Se By E5E
28 £8g Sz
- — g3 ¥ 2338
a s 7N T 7N
() : :
— s £ $000Y E #000V
() m ? i
d — —&— 3N AWVANNOE
c ) . . c
® N - : £
o S
S o Ke]
= [
— p— Q - 3N AYYANNOE ©°
n P RS} <= e
w =)
c B =
Ke] ic O
— 4 G 3 - 3
g 4 5
(0] g 8 28
P m 2 = =
Bt e 3 o
3 o & o &
L SRBISHI — w3 - —
T 1
288 xzg28 528 siee
o0 225 3335 ot 4
~— ke pEfe P
-« 2s8 zEod 3¢ ,
22 5239 "z
2 =g E3<Ea5 ag
g Eud =4c]
23 z2° €3
(=) & 7 o -
8
Pm sonoy/soens


june cox_7
Text Box
PA/2021/891 Plans and elevations (Units 4-6) (not to scale)


3 5 @ 5 x o © L B
% 2o = Sy 2 E3 El 3
&g £ ¥ 335 £ E = 2o 5] = g | = 3 ~ !
22 S5 o 28g ¥s: £ 3 58 2. s = ek g =1
583 BS 2 L,2EZ s & 5] SE SE3 o S a w| &
2235 25 2 _ 2£:8 538 8 Su S E SEZ 528 S & T 9| & |2
£ 25 32825 L8 2 D& DB £z 52w o> © E =
ShEs 29 £=>5S58 558 E 2 2E z o sEr2 LoE =24 5 5538 b} . g
s828 S8 =2:5¢9E2f £23F s 3 B L= fekd 582 EpEs 8 & 338 8 |8 I
158° B2 523228 553 £ 3 =g g% 8535 233z =338 =5 & 8% 2 |3 g z
2852 253225F3% 832 2 F oF S8 3z27 =z2 =Sko 2% £ gy | g5 |2 = 5 2
= 5825 S3558ecss EESE 2 So =g 5855  Bgy EEEaY oz 3% 2= 288 az |[E = Sl 2
= 2o%3% B[efoes255 B = E = EXY o 2 o@ Z=56 H £2 ==3 a ol
258 $E£Efggsezr 5=2 S g == »3 Hro= eE= ==¢e5 EAR- B <> S8 TSS3F S S =3 Sl ¢
&) & S58E 25E£88828 52 £ 3 5 ag waco noE ¥4 |2 S8 I¥3 E " al z
o) 2 E8%: zgsizsiei Z85g: 2 3 23 d3gg UgE Esay = SEggEs I E £ (82! el 2|3
5505 58325283258 scsgs = a 5 s @ e2s2 = 9| < =
e £285 ,2£€-388558s £8838 g 28 2Z EX Tl E 280z E=528 sow N 3~ B2 5
= 2. 3556888323582 g2E88 = S= S £E9=5§ o3 cmLE m =] wm == s @
= S E222E5ESZ2888253 B£83232 4 2 a 23 % L BT |2 2
= § 958sc22:85%:7 935 3§ BE  3Ez EPEE 252 EJER g e ot 51 B A E
S Soscs<2g§oE£5eEE BISsE2 F =S [slE=y=} Le=2 S 3 = =) a S51E &g |2
Se SSg22<38s¢ 2 gt < 5 & B 5 QS EZ 28 m3 DHEZ E B » =N <
(@} E SEO05Eg82c 2838 w2855 W 335 Swsd oS £=59 i< = &b =
B ,8°882828285 o=8283 K S 3 5583 5322 OHES B
o 2 SELE2RS22=855S £55.8 & =C 253 2% SBEg o2 «“=7 el
Z 553833529520 G525 O sk E2x2 EZ8E 2%z3 Tewd <= 3 [ B
8 2358Zsg883538s $5:552 g ,32 $3C 5325 gpoiEg 82258 2= =&aa =2 |5 B
2 225,02 22E8588 82352 kg dae ] 2o%w Sz853 8382 s °l 3l o
5 §ciezso528838s 22825 3Z EBe 223 EX8S goaf? 8R23%= s =3 o z| 2| &
= £52S5258222£3 S£S5822£ =8 x °oZ8 =92 2258 ewus5e? Sle 2| < @«
5 g iffcegiifeoiofoisy oF Sepe 229 S@ER oafEf EfES S s
frs 8808582 0E 0580228 25 2595 Ixog 558 SZZa0Z T== e 5 e |4 |5
S LDfec2fEs;22E25%2822022 23 EEFI ESoyp wsEHE2S8 8583 E85:ez2 H 5 4 ERll
CEszES56E2Es 55288 S28E 5 e=hw §26 = = Z= £ El H
o = F56E£F3Ss53 gF I @ HEESE 2 Z3589 £ =z || g E H
AR EFZ28285g8E N o2 2 2 E3L gSo56= 335 Z£E3832= 5 2 (12 E E E E
L § BUE3G0-850583885,2855 24 5%3H 2885 8883z E3IE35 E23:3 E i s

=
S
o
[}
e}
(=4
hel
g 5
8 =
o g
[-a
—
s !
© 5
PR ] -
B
BRRIRRR R >
AR o ~
R o s
KRR
R =2
R ° 7
RRRRIRRARNR O 2
BRI S
HRRRIRRER =z 8 o
BRI 3 2
HRRRRRR RN " z
PRI w o
o)
s3Y 5582
whd 552 EELE
god EEPY
S 208w
wid afe 2,55
gy 2338
O B g2Eh
c g
[t
N d £
—_ B L
< H 8
(e} z
(o)) = 2 2
1 2 ul| & &
() H o
7 m ~
8 0 =
< = ol ¥ '
£ ~
5 @ - o | s =
5 = <4008C [5¥3
[77] ER 5 H|E c o
AR 3 = = o g
whd o z = =
z
> w O o
o
— 33 : £ 3§
m = z E <
G e 2 ¥
= g3 ; .,
N d %
zQ B=
g =R
g 5 .3
g8 S5 Heg 1
s g% o2 Z%Zg 1961
n £e 3z zePES
23 55 =24
8% 32 &s8.
gg =4, E5ZE
g8 888 338
- — k
ta 7N T /N
e ] 5000V E 5000¥
— AH“V 0 0 A“UV
— & anwom — —&— 3N AUVANNOS
n . % ° o =
3 £ g £ ke]
& - o
© 5 =
ke] 9
o kej
Pt et
— . o} -
s > 3 —<— 3N AYVaNNOS m
w =)
n c B <
5 s &
5 S 3 3
— > kN a3 > A g
o £ g X
£, °3 e d
S a & a 3
BEBBBREER —~ 23 R .
9 ocvny zeog oo ! Sise !
ege xzgge eg
o0 o gtwr 2
zEe pige b
538 wzSg EE
~ 2sf 2Eo2 85
Sp 527 o ]
) w 3% Euss as
2 Bt 88
wg 2ud gg <
2 ] ] 53
22 g &
Q ) i
N Page 89 \
N sonoe/sopit


june cox_8
Text Box
PA/2021/891 Plans and elevations (Units 7-9) (not to scale)


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5c

APPLICATION NO PA/2021/1087
APPLICANT Mr James Pearson, Charworth Homes
DEVELOPMENT Planning permission to erect three dwelling houses and three

detached single garages with associated landscaping (including
demolition of existing outbuildings)

LOCATION Dondoreen, Marsh Lane, Barton upon Humber, DN18 5HF
PARISH Barton upon Humber

WARD Barton

CASE OFFICER Jennifer Ashworth

SUMMARY Refuse permission

RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Member ‘call in’ (Clir Paul Vickers — significant public interest)
REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework:

Chapter 2 — Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and Coastal Change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment
Chapter 16 — Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment
North Lincolnshire Local Plan:

H5: New Housing Development (part saved)

H7: Backland and Tandem Development

H8: Housing Design and Mix

HEZ2: Development in Conservation Areas

HE3: Demolition in Conservation Areas

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 91



HE9: Archaeological Excavation

DS1: General Requirements

DS3: Planning Out Crime

DS7: Contamination

DS14: Foul Sewage and Surface Water Drainage
DS16: Flood Risk

T2: Access to Development

T19: Car Parking Provision and Standards and Appendix 2
LC12: Protection of Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows
North Lincolnshire Core Strategy:

CS1: Spatial Strategy for North Lincolnshire

CS2: Delivering More Sustainable Development
CS3: Development Limits

CS5: Delivering Quality Design in North Lincolnshire
CS6: Historic Environment

CS7: Overall Housing Provision

CS8: Spatial Distribution of Housing Sites

CS9: Affordable Housing

CS17: Biodiversity

CS18: Sustainable Resource and Climate Change
CS19: Flood Risk

CS25: Promoting Sustainable Transport

Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD: The site lies within the development
limits of Barton upon Humber and within the conservation area (policy HE2) as shown on
Proposals Map Inset 07.

Policy PS1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development)
CONSULTATIONS

Environment Agency: The Environment Agency was not consulted until later in the
application process when the fourth case officer took over the project. The response was
received on 15 July 2022. The EA has no objection to the amended plans with finished floor

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 92



levels of 5.6m AOD (plans uploaded 24 June 2022). A condition similar to permission
PA/2019/1798 is requested. Whilst the EA has not objected on flood risk grounds this does
not remove the need to apply the sequential test. A failure to satisfy the sequential test can
be grounds alone to refuse planning permission.

Environmental Protection: No objections subject to a condition to address the potential
for contamination of the site.

LLFA Drainage: No objection subject to conditions. The applicant has worked closely with
the LLFA drainage team to seek the removal of their original objection. The drainage team
do still require conditions to address surface water drainage and the drainage scheme on
the site. The team have also set out a series of informative comments and notes for the
developer to take into account as part of these works.

Tree Officer: No objection but makes the following comments:

The trees mentioned within the arboricultural report are within the ownership of an adjacent
landowner and not on the site; this means the applicant does not have a legal right to
remove these trees without specific permission from the tree owners.

These trees are also within the conservation area, which offers them some protection, and
unless the removal of these trees is required to implement any planning permission given,
which it appears they do not, the applicant would need to go through an application giving
notice of intended works to trees within a conservation area. Although the location of the
trees is such that making a tree preservation order on them is probably not likely to occur,
they do need to go through this process, as removal of trees without doing so is an offence
under the legislation.

Historic Environment Record (Archaeology): The HER originally placed a holding
objection until a Written Scheme of investigation (WSI) was completed on this site. The
HER has now confirmed that the final report is required to be submitted to allow them to
withdraw their objection.

Conservation: Objects and recommends a design change, making the following
comments:

In relation to the design:

The principal aim of new development should be to marry-in the new with the existing,
rather than making the new building completely different. This is because the attractiveness
of the town centre relies on the visual cohesiveness of the streetscape.

e All new development should therefore reflect the scale and materials of adjoining
property. The form of any new building, including its height, relationship to the street,
and any rear extensions, should be sympathetic to the surrounding buildings. Because
most new development will be within existing terraces or groups of buildings, rooflines,
eaves heights and details, window details and shopfronts (or front doors) should match
or reflect adjoining properties. The addition of chimneystacks in some locations may be
required, to ensure compatibility with adjoining properties.

e Historic building lines should always be replicated when designing new development.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 93



In relation to materials:

Materials for new development in Barton-upon-Humber will usually be chosen to match
existing buildings in the area, so red brick, or in some locations, a rendered finish, will be
appropriate. Roofs should be covered in clay pantiles, clay ‘French’ tiles or Welsh slate.
Modern, machine-made flat clay tiles will rarely be acceptable; neither will concrete tiles or
artificial slate. Windows should be made from timber and traditionally detailed with vertically
sliding sashes or horizontally sliding casements. Top-hung false ‘sashes’ are not suitable.
Front doors should be made from timber, with four or six recessed moulded panels. All
timber should be painted not stained.

e Traditional materials and details should be specified for new development. The use of
material other than timber is unacceptable for windows, doors and conservatories in
conservation areas.

It is accepted that the buildings in Tyson Close are mostly modern and therefore, in
principle, having a new development that reflects a more modern style of build is
acceptable but the buildings still need to be sympathetic to the overall character of the
conservation area. There is an issue with the aluminium dormers which stand out too much
and will clearly be seen as an incongruous modern element in an historic area.

The adopted policy in the Barton SPG states, ‘The use of material other than timber is
unacceptable for windows, doors and conservatories in conservation areas.” Considering
this, | recommend that the dormers are clad in timber for the new development to sit better
in the historic area.

Highways: No objection but recommend two conditions to ensure vehicle access and
parking is completed prior to occupation and vehicle wheel cleaning is undertaken in
accordance with details to be approved in writing by the local planning authority.

TOWN COUNCIL

Objects on grounds of the design of the access and locality, and would like access from
Frederick Fields to be considered rather than Tyson Close.

PUBLICITY

A site notice has been displayed. Fourteen responses have been received, all objecting to
the scheme. The points raised are summarised below:

e Frederick Fields is a private road and is not built for heavy duty vehicles, vehicles over
3.5t are not allowed to access the road due to the way it was constructed, we are
currently in disagreement regarding several issues with the roadway and many
residents are taking further action (legally and via the LABC) and as residents we are
not happy allowing access to a building site.

e Frederick Fields currently has 2 (or 2.5) parking spaces on the development for visitors,
adding further dwellings to the development would cause large issues with parking.

e The bin store at the entrance of Frederick Fields is not fit for purpose, this doesn’'t even
have capacity for the 5 properties’ here not to mention adding more.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 94



Frederick Fields is block paved and the paving is already damaged from heavy plant
delivering equipment to the site. Increased use by vehicles, pedestrians, wheelie bins
will damage this further.

Frederick Fields cannot support additional traffic.

Frederick Fields already includes collapsing drains and sinking block paving.

Windows to the rear of properties will overlook existing garden spaces resulting in
overlooking and privacy issues.

Noise/disturbance from additional vehicles.

The proposed development is submitted using out of date plans whereby the boundary
lines adjacent to my property have been subsequently amended and are incorrect on
the proposed development plans.

Over-development and overbearing impacts.

Detrimental to the open aspect of the current site.

Would result in excessive demand for services and infrastructure which require
maintenance at the cost to residents on Frederick Fields.

No public footpaths on Frederick Fields — additional traffic will result in increased
pedestrian safety issues.

Development will impact on wildlife and environment.

No additional visitor parking being provided, the 3 spaces is not enough to serve 11
properties.

Tyson Close — previous application rejected due to existing road construction not being
to Highways’ standards.

Concerns over construction access and who will be liable for reinstatement of existing
road from any damage caused by construction activities.

Residents from Fredrick Fields have now once again seen the sewer drainage fail.

Tyson Close was originally given planning for the erection of 5 bungalows. This has
already been completed. A further 3 dormer bungalows exceeds the number originally
planned for and as such will overcrowd the site.

The plans show dormers to the bungalows, which, because of the proximity across the
narrow road to the existing bungalows, in particular number 2, will mean that the new
occupants will have a direct downward view into the existing bungalows thus destroying
the privacy of the current occupants.

Concerns visitors to new properties will park on Tyson Close and block the access for
emergency vehicles as well as general congestion.

Tyson Close is too narrow for any extra use other than that for which originally intended.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 95



e We always knew there would be two more bungalows, however three more dwellings
will increase the vehicles using the close.

e Drainage, footings and even walls are under construction and demonstrates, at the
least, a complete disregard for the application process and any decision made by the
planning officer/committee.

ASSESSMENT
Planning history

PA/2003/1660: Planning permission to erect a detached bungalow with integral garage —
approved 12/03/2004.

The following permissions relate to Frederick Fields to the rear of the site:

PA/2019/397: Planning permission for a first floor extension with replacement windows
and doors — approved 22/05/2019

PA/2017/1109: Planning permission to erect five dwellings including demolition of
outbuildings to rear — approved 13/04/2018

PA/2019/832: Planning application to vary condition 2 of planning permission
PA/2017/1109 namely to re-configure the layout of plot 4 and the internal
layout to plot 5 together with alterations to the roof of these plots —
approved 05/07/2019

7/1989/0610:  Planning permission to erect a detached house — approved 14/09/1989
PA/2004/1444: Planning permission to erect a detached house — refused 07/12/2004

PA/2017/1576: Outline planning permission for four dwellings with associated access road
and landscaping with all matters reserved — approved 21/06/2018

PA/2019/1798: Planning permission for access and associated parking — approved
20/05/2020.

Planning designations/considerations

The site lies within the development limits of Barton upon Humber and within the
conservation area. There are existing trees outside, but very close to, the boundary of the
site and their location within the conservation area offers them some protection.

There are no known listed buildings within close proximity of the site.
The site is within SFRA Flood Zone 2/3a which is considered to be at high risk of flooding.
The proposal

From a site visit on 24 June 2022, it was evident that the development is underway, existing
outbuildings have been demolished, and dwellings are being constructed without planning
permission. The application is for the erection of three 1.5-storey, 4-bedroom detached
dwellings and three detached single garages with associated landscaping (including
demolition of existing outbuildings).

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 96



All dwellings have pedestrian access to front doors and side gates off Tyson Close. Vehicle
access to two of the dwellings and their respective garages is proposed off Frederick Fields
via the existing turning head/visitor parking area which has been extended into the
application site. The third dwelling is to be accessed off Tyson Close via a dropped kerb.
Each property has a single garage and two off-street parking spaces. Both are private
roads and have not been adopted by the highway authority.

All three plots front onto Tyson Close and sit beyond the existing building line (3D visual,
page 25, Design and Access Statement), with the frontage of properties in line with the side
boundary wall of Dondoreen and front wall of 5 Tyson Close.

The proposed design and style of the three dwellings is reflective of those off Frederick
Fields. The applicant sets out that the private garden spaces of Frederick Fields range
between 550m2 to 1200m2 and the proposed garden spaces are 680m2 and 1200m?2.

Bin collections are proposed via the existing collection area at the access to Frederick
Fields from Marsh Lane.

The site

The site lies to the south of Tyson Close, a small cul de sac comprising five detached
single-storey bungalows with a further two properties, Dondoreen and 7b Marsh Lane,
fronting and being accessed off Marsh Lane; however, the main body of the property and
side elevation sit within Tyson Close. The style of both these properties is reflective of the
five properties off Tyson Close.

Bramley Close is further north of the site and comprises largely single-storey bungalows
with a handful of two-storey detached properties at the end of the development. Frederick
Fields is to the south of the site and includes eight detached two-storey properties, all
fronting onto and accessed off Frederick Fields.

The site is currently under construction.

Google Maps dated 2009 shows evidence of the site being an extension of the garden
space for Dondoreen with a brick-built detached garage with apex roof, small storage
shelters with what appears to be an asbestos roof, two further sheds, a greenhouse and
hardstanding for a caravan, as well as the wider site being laid to grass.

This assessment will therefore focus on the following issues:

e Principle of development

e Historic environment/design, layout, appearance

¢ Residential amenity

e Flood risk

e Contamination

e Highway safety

e Ecology

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 97



e Trees and Landscape.
Principle of development

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning
applications to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. In this instance the development plan consists of the
saved policies of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan (NLLP), the North Lincolnshire Core
Strategy (NLCS) and the Housing and Employment Land Allocations Development Plan
Document (HELADPD). Material considerations exist in the form of national policy and
guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the suite of
documents comprising National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).

Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy sets out the overarching spatial strategy for the district. It
states that in Scunthorpe ‘...High quality, well designed new housing will be provided on a
range of previously developed sites within the urban area followed by a greenfield urban
extension with a focus on areas to the west of the built up area’. The policy specifically
refers to market towns and recognises Barton upon Humber as a thriving place to live, work
and visit and supports an appropriate level of new housing development to support the
market towns as sustainable communities. The policy states, ‘North Lincolnshire’s Market
Towns will continue to provide important services for the area’s rural communities and
support the higher level services provided by Scunthorpe. Levels of growth and
development will be more limited reflecting their position in the settlement hierarchy. All
growth will take account of existing infrastructure, environmental constraints and ensure
that the distinctive character of the town is protected.

Policy CS2 sets out a sequential approach to where development should be focused. It
states, ‘...Previously developed land and buildings within the Scunthorpe urban area,
followed by other suitable infill opportunities within the town, then by appropriate greenfield
urban extensions’ is the first priority. The second priority is then ‘Previously developed land
and buildings within the defined development limits of North Lincolnshire’s Market Towns,
followed by other suitable infill opportunities then appropriate small scale greenfield
extensions to meet identified local needs’. Policy CS2 requires all future development in
North Lincolnshire to contribute towards achieving sustainable development. Policy CS2
also requires development to be designed to a high standard, consistent with policy CS5,
and use sustainable construction and design techniques.

Policy CS7 is concerned with the spatial distribution of housing sites and policy CS8 is
concerned with overall housing provision. As well as setting out locations for the distribution
of housing, CS7 also sets out net density ranges (unless site constraints dictate). Housing
density within Scunthorpe and market towns’ development limits are 40-45 dwellings per
hectare. The policy also states, ‘Housing development will be required to make efficient use
of land but the density of new development should be in keeping with the character of the
area and support the development of sustainable, balanced communities.’

The proposal would generate a residential density of 30 dwellings per hectare (site area
0.1ha). This is under the requirement of policy CS7 which indicates a requirement of a site
of this size in this location to yield a density of between 40-45 dwellings per hectare; this
does, however, need to take into account the surrounding character/other material
considerations.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 98



Policy CS8 states that the first priority is to re-use previously developed land and buildings
within North Lincolnshire’s built up areas which will be promoted by setting a target of 30%
of the housing provision on such land.

Notwithstanding the development plan policies set out above, the NPPF is a material
consideration when determining planning applications. Paragraph 10 of the NPPF states,
‘So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.” Paragraph 11(d) of the
NPPF states that housing applications should be considered in the context of the
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Where the local planning authority
cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites, relevant policies which
were most important to determining the application should not be considered up-to-date.

A recent appeal decision dated 20 July 2022 (planning reference PA/2020/554) has been
issued where the Inspector has concluded that the council does not currently have a five-
year housing land supply of deliverable sites. The council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply
Position Statement is awaiting an update and as such any decisions made by the planning
authority will take account of the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set
out in paragraph 11 of the NPPF. The current local policies which are most important for
determining the application will carry reduced weight during this period.

The site is within the development boundary of Barton upon Humber where the principle of
residential development is considered acceptable. The proposal generally accords with the
relevant policies of the development plan. As such the statutory presumption in section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 is engaged, which states that
planning permission should be granted unless other material considerations indicate
otherwise. The proposal is considered to represent sustainable development and the
presumption in favour set out in paragraph 11 of the Framework is triggered. In determining
the principle and sustainability of the proposed development, an assessment is required on
the technical elements of the proposal which will be discussed below.

Paragraph 11 d) ii) is clear that where there are no relevant development plan policies, or
the policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date
(*including where no five year land supply can be demonstrated), permission should be
granted unless:

i) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

Historic environment/layout, design and appearance

Paragraph 126 of the NPPF states, ‘The creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should
achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in
which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities. Being
clear about design expectations, and how these will be tested, is essential for achieving
this. So too is effective engagement between applicants, communities, local planning
authorities and other interests throughout the process.’

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states, ‘...planning policies and decisions should ensure that
developments:

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 99



(@  will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;

(b)  are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

(©) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);

(d)  establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

(e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and

() create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users;

() and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of
life or community cohesion and resilience.’

Paragraph 134 states that development that is not well designed should be refused.
Significant weight should be given to outstanding or innovative designs which promote high
levels of sustainability, or help raise the standard of design more generally in an area, so
long as they fit in with the overall form and layout of their surroundings.

Policies H5 (part saved), CS5 and DS1 seek to deliver quality design in North Lincolnshire.
As the site is within the conservation area, the design of the properties would need to
respect the criteria set out within the relevant policies. Policy H7 permits backland and
tandem development where there is no adverse effect on the amenities of any residential
premises through adjoining uses and where development would not affect the general
guality and character of the area.

Policy CS5 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy is concerned with delivering quality
design in North Lincolnshire. It states that ‘...All new development in North Lincolnshire
should be well designed and appropriate for their context. It should contribute to creating a
sense of place. The council will encourage contemporary design, provided that it is
appropriate for its location and is informed by its surrounding context. Design which is
inappropriate to the local area or fails to maximise opportunities for improving the character
and quality of the area will not be acceptable.” This is reinforced by local plan policy DS1.
Policies H7, H8 and DS1, and paragraph 127 of the NPPF, are also considered relevant.

Policy CS6 states, ‘...The council will seek to protect, conserve and enhance North
Lincolnshire’s historic environment, as well as the character and setting of areas of
acknowledged importance including historic buildings, conservation areas, listed buildings
(both statutory and locally listed), registered parks and gardens, scheduled ancient
monuments and archaeological remains.

All new development must respect and enhance the local character and distinctiveness of
the area in which it would be situated, particularly in areas with high heritage value.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 100



Development proposals should provide archaeological assessments where appropriate.’

Whilst Policy HEZ2 requires, ‘...All development proposals in, or which affect the setting of,
conservation areas should preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the area
and its setting. Development should harmonise with adjoining buildings. Building materials
should be appropriate to the locality and context and sympathetic to those of existing and
nearby buildings in terms of type, texture, colour and size. Walls, gates and fences should
be of a type traditionally used in the locality. Development should be of a standard of design
which respects the appearance and character of the conservation area in terms of its bulk,
height, mass, vertical and horizontal emphasis, proportions, layout, siting, landscaping and
other matters of design such as roofscape and architectural style and detailing.’

Policy HE3 relates to demolition in conservation areas and sets a series of criteria against
which a building will be assessed...and consent for demolition of a building will be
conditional on it not being demolished until either:

(@) detailed planning permission for the redevelopment of the site has been obtained
and the council has had sight of an agreed contract for the carrying out of works of
redevelopment; or

(b) a landscaping and improvement scheme is submitted and an agreement is entered
into to maintain the scheme, if the site is to be kept in open space use;

(©) whenever appropriate, proposals which would entail the loss of historic fabric from a
listed building will be conditional upon a programme of recording being agreed and
implemented.

Whilst the site is located within the conservation area, there are no listed buildings within
close proximity. There is a mix of styles of properties within the wider area and as such it is
considered that development of this site should look to the existing immediate area for
inspiration. This includes Tyson Close, Frederick Fields and Marsh Lane.

The Conservation Officer has considered the proposals and objects to the proposals,
recommending design changes. These relate to two matters:

Design

The principal aim of new development should be to marry-in the new with the existing,
rather than making the new building completely different. This is because the attractiveness
of the town centre relies on the visual cohesiveness of the streetscape.

All new development should therefore reflect the scale and materials of adjoining property.
The form of any new building, including its height, relationship to the street, and any rear
extensions, should be sympathetic to the surrounding buildings. Because most new
development will be within existing terraces or groups of buildings, rooflines, eaves heights
and details, window details and shopfronts (or front doors) should match or reflect adjoining
properties. The addition of chimney stacks in some locations may be required, to ensure
compatibility with adjoining properties.

Historic building lines should always be replicated when designing new development.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 101



Materials

Materials for new development in Barton-upon-Humber will usually be chosen to match
existing buildings in the area, so red brick, or in some locations, a rendered finish, will be
appropriate. Roofs should be covered in clay pantiles, clay ‘French’ tiles or Welsh slate.
Modern, machine-made flat clay tiles will rarely be acceptable; neither will concrete tiles or
artificial slate. Windows should be made from timber and traditionally detailed with vertically
sliding sashes or horizontally sliding casements. Top-hung false ‘sashes’ are not suitable.
Front doors should be made from timber, with four or six recessed moulded panels. All
timber should be painted not stained.

Traditional materials and details should be specified for new development. The use of
material other than timber is unacceptable for windows, doors and conservatories in
conservation areas.

It is accepted that the buildings in Tyson Close are mostly modern and therefore in principle
having a new development that reflects a more modern style of build is acceptable but the
buildings still need to be sympathetic to the overall character of the conservation area.
There is an issue with the aluminium dormers which stand out too much and will clearly be
seen as an incongruous modern element in an historic area.

The site represents on infill plot off Tyson Close. In terms of policies CS5, H5, H7 and H8
the proposal is regarded in part as backland/tandem development: part of the land
comprises land which formed the rear garden of Dondoreen, whilst another part of the site
benefits from an extant planning permission for a single dwelling. The scheme submitted
should take account of dwellings off Frederick Fields as well as Tyson Close. The
properties will be 1.5-storeys high with a dormer bungalow design which, in theory, would
create a natural transition from the single-storey detached bungalows off Tyson Close
through to the two-storey detached dwellings off Frederick Fields. As a result of raised floor
levels (5.6A0D) required by the Environment Agency to satisfy Flood Risk requirements,
the dwellings would be much higher than a standard 1.5-storey dormer bungalow. The
elevations provided show the ridge height of the proposed dwellings above the height of the
houses off Frederick Fields and therefore it is considered they would appear overbearing
within the street scene off Tyson Close.

The overall modern design and materials (dark grey antique slate roof tiles and red brick)
are more reflective of the properties off Frederick Fields rather than Tyson Close. The
properties on Tyson Close include a red brick and terracotta Roman ridge roof tile. Whilst
Tyson Close does not offer a high quality in terms of design standard, it does offer a
uniformed approach to materials as well as in the layout of plots and siting of buildings
within those plots.

Whilst a modern design is considered acceptable and is welcomed on the site, the
development is required to address the overall character and appearance of Tyson Close.

The existing properties off Tyson Close are all set back from the main highway (private
road) by approximately:

e 1 Tyson Close: 3.8m

e 2 Tyson Close: 4.5m

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 102



e 3 Tyson Close: 4.6m

e 4 Tyson Close: 3.5m

e 5 Tyson Close: 4.6m

e Dondoreen (side elevation): 5.2—7.4m

e 7b Marsh Lane: 4.2m.

In comparison, the proposed dwellings are approximately:
e Plot1:2.0-2.4m

e Plot2:1.4-1.7m

e Plot 3:1.6-2.4m.

The applicant argues that the properties are set back a similar distance to those adjacent
(1, 2, 3 Tyson Close); however, the applicant's measurements are taken from the footpath
and not the private drive/road. The design interrupts the existing area of informal footpath
along this part of Tyson Close. This existing footpath is a feature of Tyson Close.

All three properties front Tyson Close and pedestrian access to the front doors and side
gates are off Tyson Close. It is considered that the proposed dwellings are positioned too
close to their northern boundary with Tyson Close and will create a narrowing effect on
Tyson Close both visually and for users, as well as for adjacent properties. The existing
distance between the front of properties 3 and 5 Tyson Close is 14m. The proposed
development would result in between 10-14m distances from the front of plots 1, 2 and 3
with existing properties 1, 2 and 3 Tyson Close. Both 5 Tyson Close and Dondoreen, as
well as all other properties on the estate, include an area of shared space/footpath in front
of the front garden/amenity space and any boundary wall. This is not replicated at the
application site.

The applicant argues that the properties are set back 2m from the highway, and whilst the
main building is set further back, the built form/access steps to the property are set 1m or
less from the highway bringing the overall development closer to the boundary and the
adjacent properties.

Concerns have also been raised regarding visitors to these new properties and the potential
congestion/road block this would create. The proposed dwellings are set in front of the
building line of both no. 5 and the side elevation of Dondoreen which, along with other
properties, sets the character of Tyson Close. The applicant considers that the scheme
relates to Frederick Fields in terms of plot size and rationale; however, the council
considers that the development should reflect the character of Tyson Close as set out
above.

The proposal is considered to be out of character with this area of Barton upon Humber and
is therefore contrary to policy CS5 of the Core Strategy, and policies H5, H7 H8 and DS1 of
the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

In terms of siting, the proposal will yield 30 dwellings per hectare which is below the 40-45
density set out within part of policy CS7 of the Core Strategy. Policy CS7 also states that

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 103



the density of new development should be in keeping with the character of the area. This
site represents an infill site off Tyson Close and should reflect the character of Tyson Close.
Tyson Close is different in character to the surrounding Frederick Fields and the wider
conservation area but development on the site still needs to respond to Tyson Close. Tyson
Close is a small cul de sac formed by single-storey bungalows set back from the highway
with space between plots.

The submitted scheme shows vehicle access via both Frederick Fields and Tyson Close
and no objections have been raised by the Highways department.

The three dwellings will provide three four-bedroom properties on the site and an
acceptable level of internal accommodation. The scheme, however, is considered to be
cramped due to the siting, layout and design of the dwellings. The buildings are positioned
in front of the existing building line and do not reflect the plot layout of existing dwellings off
Tyson Close. The dwellings include much smaller gardens than existing dwellings on
Tyson Close and the proposed dwellings would be close to boundaries, unlike existing
properties. This results in a scheme that is out of character with the surrounding area of
Tyson Close and loss of amenity to future occupiers by virtue of small gardens (Plots 2 and
3 in particular), as well as very little/no amenity space to the front of properties.

In relation to materials, it is considered that the conservation officer's comments cannot be
considered appropriate at this time. The existing properties off Tyson Close include a range
of materials, including uPVC windows and doors. It would be unreasonable for the
proposed dwellings to include timber frames when this is not a feature of other properties in
the area. It would, however, be reasonable to encourage a similar palette of materials,
including a similar roof tile to properties off Tyson Close. Were the properties to be set
further back, and the overall height of the properties reduced, then dormer windows would
also be considered acceptable on front elevations in this location. Due to the requirement of
the Environment Agency that finished floor levels are set at 5.6m(AOD), this may not be
achievable on the site.

The rear dormers of all plots largely overlook the blank fagade of properties off Frederick
Fields as well as the parking area. There are areas where glimpses could be achieved into
rear gardens of properties off Frederick Fields as well as Dondoreen from Plot 3; however,
these are not considered to result in undue harm. It is considered that the proposed
dwellings are of a high standard and would help in raising the quality in the area.

Although the proposal will bring a vacant site into use and will create additional dwellings in
a sustainable location, Tyson Close is characterised primarily by detached single-storey
bungalows set within good-sized plots which are set back from the highway by no less than
approximately 3.5m with amenity space around the properties. This proposal creates three
1.5-storey, 4-bedroomed dwellings located tightly together within smaller plots. It is
considered that the siting of the proposed development would be visually harmful to the
character and appearance of the surrounding area, in particular Tyson Close, and plots
would not provide a satisfactory level of amenity space/defensible space to the front or rear
of the property which is typically required for a 4-bedroom property.

The case officer has sought to work with the applicant to amend the scheme to set the
buildings further back within the site, in line with the front of 5 Tyson Close and side
elevation of Dondoreen and to consider either two dwellings or three smaller dwellings on
the site. The applicant has not sought to amend the scheme enough to address these

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 104



comments. The applicant also considers, given the original case officer's advice, that the
scheme should be recommended for approval on that basis.

The proposal does not accord with chapters 5 and 12 of the NPPF, CS5 of the Core
Strategy, and policies H5, H7, H8 and DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Residential amenity

Policy H7, part-saved policy H5 and policy DS1 all refer to amenity. Policies H5 and H7
require development to not result in overlooking or loss of privacy to existing developments,
or any other loss of amenity to existing dwellings, including levels of nuisance from
movement of vehicles. Policy DS1, in relating to amenity, states that there should be no
unacceptable loss of amenity to neighbouring land uses in terms of noise, smell, fumes,
dust or other nuisance, or through the effects of overlooking or overshadowing.

As a result of the positioning/siting of dwellings and the close relationship with the highway,
the dwellings appear overbearing within the street scene. The height of the properties
would dominate the character of this traditional bungalow estate. It is considered, as a
result of the height of the dwellings and the relationship with 1 and 2 Tyson Close, that
there is potential for overlooking (from the proposed dormers) and overshadowing impacts
(overall height of the properties). Plot 1 also causes concern in its relationship with 5 Tyson
Close. It is considered that the property is positioned too close to and forward of 5 Tyson
Close leading to unacceptable overbearing impacts. Whilst loss of light is generally more of
a concern at the rear of properties, it is considered that plot 1 would lead to overshadowing
and loss of light to 5 Tyson Close.

The proposed vehicle access to plots 1 and 3 will be achieved off Frederick Fields and
represent parking to the rear of properties.

Parking provision at the rear of properties can lead to inactive frontages, discouraging a
sustainable movement hierarchy, and creating safety and security problems both on-street
and within the parking courtyards or unobserved garages. Furthermore, rear parking courts
use large areas of land and often result in small gardens, reduced privacy, less activity in
the street and antisocial parking (by those cars without allocated rear spaces). For as long
as there remains a demand for private vehicles, there will remain an in-built contradiction by
providing parking at the rear. ‘Car parking. What works where, 2019’ states, ‘Do not park in
the back of the block until on-street and frontage parking permutations have been
exhausted. Use of the mews or rear court should support frontage and/or on-street
provision, not replace it.” The council therefore advises that, to meet the requirements of
local plan policies T2, T6, T8, T19, DS1 and H8, parking should be provided on-street or
on-plot, accessed from the front of the curtilage (frontage access).

Residents of Frederick Fields have objected to the proposals and consider that increased
access would lead to further damage to the block paving of this private road which already
serves nine properties. Frederick Fields is a narrow private road; however, no objection has
been made by the Highways department. It is considered that the provision of two more
properties utilising this access would result in overuse of this private drive. The application
also proposes that the three existing visitor spaces off Frederick Fields would be made
available to serve the three proposed properties. Plot 2 will include a dropped kerb and
vehicle access will be via Tyson Close. This is in keeping with the existing properties off
Tyson Close. Concerns have been raised by local residents that there is no parking
available for visitors to all three properties and fears have been raised that visitors will park

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 105



on the existing narrow Tyson Close and block residents accessing/exiting their properties,
as well as emergency vehicles, delivery vehicles and other users. However, this issue
currently exists and whilst no additional visitor spaces are proposed, the scheme does
include three off-street parking spaces per property as well as the use of three visitor
spaces to the rear.

Whilst parking at the rear of properties would generally be unacceptable and is considered
to result in an increase in disturbance to the quiet enjoyment of private gardens, there is
existing parking to the rear of gardens off Frederick Fields. It is not considered that the
movements associated with three additional dwellings would result in an unacceptable level
of noise and disturbance and a refusal of planning permission could not be justified on
these grounds.

Lighting for the access road can be controlled by planning conditions to safeguard
residents’ amenity from light spillage.

The proposed parking to the rear of the properties is not considered a favourable option for
the site as these areas would have a reduced level of natural surveillance from overlooking,
and provide opportunities for antisocial behaviour and antisocial parking. It is considered
that access to properties off Tyson Close would be a more preferable option.

Archaeology

The applicant has undertaken an archaeological field evaluation comprising the excavation
of two trial trenches to identify and assess the significance of any remains within the
application site. The results of the trenching indicate that the site contains buried remains of
mid-late Saxon activity of 7th to 9th century date.

The proposed development would destroy the remains resulting in substantial harm to the
archaeological interest of the site; as a non-designated heritage asset paragraph 203 of the
NPPF should inform the planning decision. The Historic Environment Record Team (HER)
recommended that the applicant should submit a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI)
that sets out the mitigation strategy prior to the determination of the application for the
planning authority to be satisfied that the details proposed are appropriate.

The archaeological significance of the application site and the impact of development
should be taken into account when determining this application (NPPF, 203). In this case,
where the planning authority considers that substantial harm to the non-designated heritage
asset is justified, provision should be made to record the evidence and enhance public
understanding of the heritage asset (NPPF, 205; local plan policy HE9).

The Historic Environment Record team have reviewed the submitted information and have
confirmed that the majority of required works in relation to the Written Scheme of
Investigation has now been undertaken. The team have, however, confirmed that they are
yet to receive a copy of the final reporting and completion report.

The HER recommends a holding objection until this information is submitted. It is
considered, should the application be considered acceptable, then this could be a condition
to development.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 106



Ecology

Section 15 of the NPPF recognises the need to conserve, restore and enhance ecological
networks as well as identifying and pursuing opportunities for securing measurable net
gains for biodiversity. Improving biodiversity (biodiversity net gain) on sites is an approach
used to improve sites’ biodiversity value. Sites are required to provide a positive ecological
impact, delivering improvements through habitat creation or enhancement after avoiding or
mitigating harm. Biodiversity net gain is set out within the Environment Act and the Act
requires all development schemes in England to deliver a mandatory 10% biodiversity net
gain to be maintained for a period of at least 30 years. The concept seeks measurable
improvements for biodiversity by creating or enhancing habitats in association with
development. Development proposals must ‘leave biodiversity in a better state than before’.

The applicant has not provided any details in respect of net gain on the site. As such it is
recommended that a suitably worded condition be imposed to secure biodiversity net gain
on the site.

Trees

Policy LC12 requires proposals for all new development to ensure the retention of trees,
woodland and hedgerows. Particular regard will be given to the protection of these features
within the setting of settlements, the protection of ancient woodlands and historic
hedgerows and the amenity value of trees within built-up areas. Tree preservation orders
will be made where trees which contribute to local amenity or local landscape character are
at risk. Landscaping and tree and hedgerow planting schemes will be required to
accompany applications for new development where it is appropriate to the development
and its setting.

Following a site visit and review of the site layout plan it is evident that there are existing
trees on the boundary but outside the site. The applicant has submitted an arboricultural
report and the trees mentioned are within the ownership of adjacent landowner and not on
the site; this means the applicant does not have a legal right to remove these trees without
specific permission from the tree owners.

These trees are also within the conservation area, and this offers them some protection,
and unless the removal of these trees is required to implement any planning permission
given, which it appears they do not, the applicant would need to go through an application
giving notice of intended works to trees within a conservation area. Although the location of
the trees is such that making a tree preservation order on them is probably not likely to
occur, they do need to go through this process, as removal of trees without doing so is an
offence under the legislation.

The planning application does not require the removal of the trees and as such no further
works are required. In terms of the impact on adjoining trees, the proposal accords with
policies LC12 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS5 of the Core Strategy.

Flood risk and drainage

Paragraph 159 of the NPPF is clear in that ‘inappropriate development in areas at risk of
flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk
(whether existing or future). Where development is necessary in such areas, the
development should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere.’

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 107



Paragraph 162 notes, ‘The aim of the sequential test is to steer new development to areas
with the lowest risk of flooding from any source. Development should not be allocated or
permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development
in areas with a lower risk of flooding. The strategic flood risk assessment will provide the
basis for applying this test. The sequential approach should be used in areas known to be
at risk now or in the future from any form of flooding.’

Paragraph 163 highlights the need for the exceptions test to be carried out if it is not
possible for development to be located in areas with a lower risk of flooding. To pass the
exceptions test it should be made clear that the development would provide wider
sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh flood risk and that the development
will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its users, without increasing
flood risk elsewhere, and, wherever possible, will reduce flood risk overall. Both elements of
the exceptions test should be satisfied for development to be allocated or permitted
(paragraph 165).

Paragraph 167 states, ‘When determining any planning applications, local planning
authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. Where appropriate,
applications should be supported by a site-specific flood-risk assessment. Development
should only be allowed in areas at risk of flooding where, in the light of this assessment
(and the sequential and exception tests, as applicable) it can be demonstrated that:

(@)  within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest flood
risk, unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location;

(b)  the development is appropriately flood resistant and resilient such that, in the event
of a flood, it could be quickly brought back into use without significant refurbishment;

(c) it incorporates sustainable drainage systems, unless there is clear evidence that this
would be inappropriate;

(d)  any residual risk can be safely managed; and

(e) safe access and escape routes are included where appropriate, as part of an agreed
emergency plan.’

Policy CS19 is concerned with flood risk whilst policy DS14 is concerned with foul sewage
and surface water drainage. The application site is located within flood zone 2/3a and is
therefore within a location which is considered to be high risk in terms of flood risk. Policy
CS19 is consistent with the NPPF and states:

‘The council will support development proposals that avoid areas of current or future flood
risk, and which do not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere. This will involve a risk based
sequential approach to determine the suitability of land for development that uses the
principle of locating development, where possible, on land that has a lower flood risk, and
relates land use to its vulnerability to flood. Development in areas of high flood risk will only
be permitted where it meets the following prerequisites:

1. It can be demonstrated that the development provides wider sustainability benefits to
the community and the area that outweigh flood risk.

2. The development should be on previously used land. If not, there must be no
reasonable alternative developable sites on previously developed land.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 108



3. A flood risk assessment has demonstrated that the development will be safe, without
increasing flood risk elsewhere by integrating water management methods into
development.’

The applicant has submitted a flood risk assessment which sets out that the primary risk to
the site is from tidal flooding from the River Humber resulting from the river defences being
breached or overtopped during an extreme flood event. The report notes that for new
developments which lie within the flood zone it is a requirement to provide an additional
300mm of flood resilience above the elevated ground floor construction level in order to
minimise any flood damage and provide ease of reconstruction, should flood waters enter
the building. Section 6.2.2 of the report states, ‘For this development, this would equate to a
flood resilience level of 5.60m OD(N) (Flood Level of 5.30m + 0.3m).

The report recommended the following measures be adopted:

e The ground floors should be of solid concrete or an appropriate precast concrete
flooring system incorporating a waterproof membrane.

e The external walls should be of water-resistant construction up to 300m above ground
floor level.

e There should be no voids within the external walls, other than doorways and windows
within 300mm of finished floor level which would allow flood waters to enter the
dwellings.

e All partition walls constructed at ground floor level should be of suitable robust
construction or metal stud partitions fixed with plasterboard, with the lower boarding laid
horizontally for ease of replacement.

e All electrical apparatus or other flood sensitive equipment should be elevated to a
minimum of 300mm above finished floor level to prevent damage occurring should flood
waters enter the buildings.

e All cables should be routed at high level with vertical drops to the fittings.

e The ground floor electric circuits should be suitably isolated such that the upper floors of
the development can remain in operation should the ground floor electrical installation
become damaged.

e Floor finishes provided at ground floor level should be suitable for ease of cleaning after
flooding, should this situation occur.

The Environment Agency has been consulted and consider that the scheme is acceptable
in flood risk terms. They do consider the sequential test needs to be considered by the local
planning authority.

Section 1.4.5 of the submitted Flood Risk Assessment, dated June 2021, sets out the need
for a sequential test to be undertaken/applied to steer new development to areas within the
lowest probability of flooding (zone 1). Section 4.2.2 of the report notes that the
development will require an exceptions test in respect of flood zone compatibility. The
applicant has failed to submit any evidence that they have undertaken or satisfied the

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 109



sequential test or the exception test. The application should therefore be refused on this
basis.

The LLFA Drainage Team have reviewed the proposals and whilst they have removed their
objection they do consider there still remain many issues to be resolved on the site. The
LLFA Drainage Team have set out a schedule of notes for the developer to consider. As
such the following conditions are recommended:

1. No development shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the
site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
drainage scheme shall demonstrate that surface water run-off generated up to and
including the 1 in 100-year critical storm (including an allowance for climate
change which should be based on the current national guidance) will not exceed the
run-off from the existing site. It shall also include details of how the resulting completed
scheme is to be maintained and managed for the lifetime of the development so that
flood risk, both on and off the site, is not increased.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and
protect water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the
sustainable drainage structures in accordance with Policy DS16 of the North
Lincolnshire Councils Local Plan & Policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire
Councils Core Strategy and paragraphs 159 to 169 of the NPPF

2. The drainage scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved submitted
details required by the above condition, completed prior to the occupation of any
dwelling or building within each phase or sub-phase of the development on site, and
thereafter retained and maintained in accordance with the scheme for the life of the
development unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and
protect water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the
sustainable drainage structures in accordance with policy DS16 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan, policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core
Strategy, and paragraphs 159 to 169 of the NPPF.

Informative comment

The proposals indicate a new (restricted discharge) connection into the private surface
water sewer on Tyson Close. This is not a public sewer and therefore the developer has no
‘as of rights’ connection into this drain. Any additional flows into this drain must be fully
modelled by the developer and upgrades to this drainage system may be required to
facilitate the connection (at the developer's expense). This must be consented by the
current landowners and North Lincolnshire Council’'s LLFA Drainage Team, in their capacity
as Lead Local Flood Authority through an Ordinary Watercourse Consent and appropriate
discharge rates must be agreed. Please contact the LLFA Drainage team on 01724 297522
or via email for further details. Compliance with this guidance is to ensure the free flow of
surface water is maintained throughout the development.

In terms of surface water disposal, concerns from residents are noted. The LLFA has
carefully assessed all the submitted information and have some concerns but are
recommending planning conditions requiring the submission of a detailed surface water

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 110



drainage scheme, together with details showing an effective method of preventing surface
water run-off from hard paved areas within the site onto the highway. Subject to conditions,
this aspect of the proposal will accord with policies CS18 and CS19 of the Core Strategy,
and DS14 and DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

The applicant has failed to undertake a sequential test or exceptions test and as such fails
to fulfil the requirements of the NPPF or policy CS19. The applicant has failed to
demonstrate that the development provides wider sustainability benefits to the community
and the area that outweigh flood risk. The development is not on previously developed land
and no assessment of alternative development sites has been undertaken. The NPPF is
clear that garden land does not constitute previously developed land. (This excludes land in
built-up areas such as residential gardens — page 70, NPPF). The applicant has, however,
satisfied the Environment Agency and the council that the development will be safe without
increasing flood risk elsewhere.

Contamination

Policy DS7 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan is concerned with land contamination. It
states that in the case of proposals for development on land known or strongly suspected
as being contaminated, applicants will be required to demonstrate that the level of
contamination can be overcome by remedial measures or improvements.

The council’'s Environmental Protection Team have reviewed the proposal and note that the
application for the development of residential properties is a sensitive end use. No
supporting information has been provided by the applicant that demonstrates the land has
not been impacted by contamination, and that any potential risks can be reduced to an
acceptable level. As such the team have recommended the inclusion of a condition
requiring a Phase 1 desk study be carried out and submitted to the local planning authority
for approval prior to proceeding to future site investigation.

The condition is not considered unreasonable given the lack of information that has been
offered up by the applicant. Therefore, subject to the aforementioned planning condition,
the proposal is in accordance with policy DS7 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Highway safety/access

Policy T2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan states that all development should be served
by a satisfactory access. Policy T19 of the local plan is concerned with parking provision as
well as general safety and is also considered relevant.

The site has good access to public transport links and some local services are within
reasonable walking distance. The location of the site therefore complies with national and
local objectives of creating sustainable patterns of development. The proposal would utilise
the existing private road. Concerns have been raised by residents of Frederick Fields who
have objected to the proposals and consider that increased access would lead to further
damage of existing block paving on this private road which already serves nine properties.
Frederick Fields is a narrow private road, however no objection has been made by the
Highways department.

The application also proposes that the three existing visitor spaces off Frederick Fields
would be made available to serve the three proposed properties. Plot 2 will include a
dropped kerb and vehicle access will be via Tyson Close. This is in keeping with the
existing properties off Tyson Close. Concerns have been raised by local residents that

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 111



there is no parking available for visitors to all three properties and fears have been raised
that visitors will park on the existing narrow Tyson Close and will block residents
accessing/exiting their properties as well as emergency vehicles, delivery vehicles and
other users. However, this issue currently exists and whilst no additional visitor spaces are
proposed the scheme does include three off-street parking spaces per property as well as
use of three visitor spaces to the rear.

Concerns have also been raised regarding the upkeep and maintenance of both Tyson
Close and Frederick Fields. Residents from both estates have confirmed that they are
required to contribute to the maintenance of the road at their own cost and expense.
Complaints have been received from residents that construction vehicles used to build out
the site have already damaged the road and that the developer has not made any effort to
replace or repair. Concerns are raised regarding the long-term maintenance of the two
private roads and where liability lies.

Given the scale of the proposed development it is not considered that the scheme would
result in a significant or unacceptable increase in vehicular movements in the locality.
Adequate off-street parking will be provided within the site. With these factors in mind, and
in the absence of an objection from the council’s Highways section, it is considered that the
proposal, with the recommended conditions, would be acceptable in highway terms.

Other matters raised
Servicel/timeframe

The planning application was validated on 16/06/2021 and from this time has been sat with
four different planning officers. The first two case officers left the authority before a decision
was made on the application, the third case officer, who had the application for a month,
was conflicted and removed from the project before the project was passed across to the
fourth case officer who has written this report.

It is acknowledged by the planning authority that the level of service provided to the
applicant for the past year has not been satisfactory with limited contact being made by the
original case officer. The time taken to determine the application also reflects the fact that
additional surveys/reports/information have been requested from the applicant post
validation date and subsequently additional time has been required to allow consultation
with the relevant consultees.

It is also understood that past case officers have suggested to the applicant that the
proposed scheme was ‘acceptable’ in its current form. This was the officer’'s opinion at the
time and no discussions were undertaken with the planning management team. Once the
project was moved across to the fourth officer discussions were undertaken regarding the
officer's concerns in relation to layout/design/siting/over-development of the site. These
concerns were then relayed to the applicant and agent and a meeting via MS Teams was
undertaken. The applicant considered that given the positive advice received from the
original case officer the council should accept the proposals; however, the council
explained that the scheme would not have been signed off at the time had it been issued by
the case officer. The case officer and Development Management Lead confirmed that they
would be keen to work with the applicant to achieve a scheme which could be supported.
The applicant has rejected the comments raised and considered that there was no harm in
relation to the current scheme. The applicant has commenced works.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 112



Local residents have raised concerns in relation to the ongoing construction works and
damage to the existing roads at Tyson Close and Frederick Fields. The road is privately
maintained at the cost of local residents. Residents of Frederick Fields have raised concern
regarding the quality of construction of existing properties by the same developer and have
raised concerns in relation to existing drainage within Frederick Fields and Tyson Close.
These issues are not planning matters. The drainage for the application site is a matter
which can be addressed through this planning application.

Concerns have been raised in relation to the level of bin store provision for the site. It is
considered that a planning condition can be attached to ensure the bin store provision is
adequate for both existing and future residents.

In relation to the red line boundary, the applicant has confirmed that this is wholly within
their ownership. Certificate A has been signed to confirm this.

The applicant has commenced development and the local planning authority has sought to
work with the applicant to address issues raised, however this has not been successful.
The applicant has not adequately addressed the comments raised by consultees and third
parties and has commenced development without planning permission.

Red line/blue line plan/certificates

The fourth case officer has undertaken a review of the whole application and noted that the
redline does not abut the public highway. Following a request for a land registry search it is
understood Tyson Close is within the ownership of the applicant, Charworth Homes and
Frederick Fields is in the ownership of Marsh Lane Developments.

Access is proposed to two of the dwellings via Frederick Fields and one via Tyson Close.
The red line should be drawn to include both Tyson Close and Frederick Fields and abut
Marsh Lane, which is the public highway.

The applicant has completed Certificate A which certifies that the applicant was the owner
of the land within the application boundary. Based on the findings of the land registry
search notice should have been served on Marsh Lane Developments.

Conclusion

The proposal has been subject to a full assessment giving due consideration to responses
from technical consultees and third parties as well as comments raised initially by previous
officers. The proposal is located within a sustainable location with access to a range of
transport modes, services and facilities. The site benefits from an extant planning
permission. The principle of development is acceptable. In light of the recent appeal
decision which demonstrates that the council does not have a five-year housing land supply
of deliverable sites, the presumption in favour set out in paragraph 11 of the Framework is
triggered; however, this needs to be considered in light of technical and other material
considerations.

There has been a high level of local opposition to the proposal and the material points have
been considered under the relevant sections within this report. Whilst the case officer has
sought to address concerns regarding the siting of buildings and reducing the number of
units to two or to three smaller properties, these comments have not been taken on board
by the applicant. It is considered that the dwellings are positioned too close to the boundary
with Tyson Close and do not reflect the character in this area. Whilst the council are

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 113



accepting of residential development on the site, a modern approach to design and a
relaxation in the palette of proposed materials, the objection remains in relation to the
overall layout.

The applicant has failed to undertake a sequential test or exceptions test and as such has
failed to fulfil the requirements of the NPPF (section 14) or policy CS19. The applicant has
failed to demonstrate that the development provides wider sustainability benefits to the
community and the area that outweigh flood risk. The development is not on previously
developed land and no assessment of alternative development sites has been undertaken.
The NPPF is clear that garden land does not constitute previously developed land. (This
excludes land in built-up areas such as residential gardens, page 70, NPPF).

It is considered, given the above assessment, that the adverse impacts related to the
development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits that would follow
from the proposed scheme. The proposal is considered to be out of character with the area
due to the number of dwellings proposed on the site and those dwellings sitting in front of
the existing building line. The proposal would result in overbearing and overlooking impacts,
bringing the front of properties within an unacceptable close distance. The proposal is
therefore considered to be unacceptable in planning terms, contrary to the guidance set out
within the Framework, specifically paragraph 11 and Section 12, and therefore cannot be
supported.

During a meeting with the newly appointed planning consultant and via emails to the
applicant the council has advised that further amended plans would not be accepted and a
new planning application should be submitted to address the outstanding comments. The
applicant has submitted further plans contrary to this advice; these plans have not been
accepted or subject to either consultation or detailed review. Notwithstanding this, the
proposed changes are minor and are not considered to address the full range of issues
identified in this report.

RECOMMENDATION Refuse permission for the following reasons:

1.

The proposal, by virtue of the amount of development, its siting and proximity to existing
dwellings, would lead to unacceptable overbearing and overlooking impacts. In fitting three,
large detached dormer bungalows onto the site there are considered to be a number of
indications that this is overdevelopment of the site. The proposed dwellings would be
considerably higher than the dwellings off Tyson Close resulting in the proposal being out of
character with its immediate surroundings. The proposed development would also cause
harm to the street scene through the positioning of dwellings in front of the existing building
line/set too close to Tyson Close, which would not reflect the character of Tyson Close
where all dwellings are set further back from the main highway. This form of development is
out of keeping with the existing development pattern of Tyson Close. For these reasons it is
considered that the proposed development would have an unacceptably detrimental impact
on the existing street scene off Tyson Close as well as the wider character and appearance
of the area, contrary to policies HE2, DS1, H5, H7 and H8 of the North Lincolnshire Local
Plan, and policies CS5 and CS6 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, as well as section
12 of the NPPF.

2

The proposed development would result in a poor standard of residential amenity for future
occupiers of the proposed dwellings due to the lack of amenity space to the front of the

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 114



properties and small private garden areas. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies
DS1 and H5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, and policy CS5 of the Core Strategy.

3.

The applicant has failed to undertake a sequential test or exceptions test and as such has
failed to fulfil the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) or policy
CS19 of the Core Strategy. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the development
provides wider sustainability benefits to the community and the area that outweigh flood
risk. The development is not on previously developed land and no assessment of
alternative development sites has been undertaken. The NPPF is clear that garden land
does not constitute previously developed land. (This excludes land in built-up areas such as
residential gardens - page 70, NPPF).

Informative

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 115



“ORCHARD T~

/- ST PETERS

— e
ETER

fod N
N\

S~

\
]
!

Works

Lincolnshire

North
~ Council

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560

PA/2021/1087



PA/2021/1087 Existing layout (not to scale)
N/

4 TYSON CL

Location Plan
1:1250

0S Crown Copyright reference 100054135

id architecture

@ Existing Block Plan
1:200

DDDDD 21003/01

SIZE A1
DATE ©
.
REV: A .
T: 01472358734 E: info@i ture.co.uk  W: idarchitecture.co.uk
draRoad | Grmsdy orth Esst Lincolnshire ONSL 1RW



june cox_9
Text Box
PA/2021/1087 Existing layout (not to scale)


PA/2021/1087 Proposed layout (not to scale)

~

4 TYSON CL

id architecture

Proposed Block Plan

1:200

)

ce 100054135

0S Crown Copyright referen



june cox_10
Text Box
PA/2021/1087 Proposed layout (not to scale)


PA/2021/1087 Proposed elevations (north, west and east) (not to scale) v s s

an et 7 welarte sviess, fakes drem Tpuen Close s 71

- I

Rardryen Pise 3 - Pt 7 Pt 1 5 Tyson Chase

f'mposed Morth Elevation facing Tyson Close
100

Taen Gows Private Baed - Lating Dt 8 tyvom Qs s p Exintan Oweling Dndereund » Tpuen Clons Priate st

Prl%posed West Elevation from 5 Tyson Close f'lrgpcsed East Elevation from 'Dandoreen’
1.1 £

id architecture

TME PRCPOSED SITE ELEVATIONS (V11

TLENT Durweriy Hears

PROKELT. 3-Duwiing Development

LOCATION Land adj Tyson Close, Barrow-upen-Husber
ORAWN BY. AR

(HECKED BY:  TW

SCALE 1100

SIZE At

DaTE Aped 2071

STAGE Planung Apglication

wew  21003/20 g
REV B ..

T/ O1472 35474 B infelamenonctiog.co i W ismretiinetn. oo
hey Got | Demwsy | Nem Fatiresmamy | DADL AW


june cox_11
Text Box
PA/2021/1087 Proposed elevations (north, west and east) (not to scale)


PA/2021/1087 Proposed elevations (south and private garden) (not to scale

02T abed

Outline of nearside
detached house

Existing Dwelling

Frederick Fields private roaduay

AMENDED

Existing Dwelling

Proposed South Elevation from Frederick Fields
1:100

PLOT 1

Proposed Private Garden Elevation
1:100

REV: ‘DRAWN ‘DETA\LS. DATE:
A s Plot 2 vetile access faken fron Tyson Close  Aug 21
o sut LA advice

GENERAL NOTES
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant Architects, Engineers
and specialists drawings as relevant and as noe

Al fiqured dimensions and levels are o be checked on sife as relevant prior
to construction or fabrication. Do not scale from this or any ofher 1D
Architecture drawing. Any dmensional anomalies are fo be brought fo the
attention of ID Architecture.

id architecture

TITLE: PROPOSED SITE ELEVATIONS (2/2)

CLIENT: Charworth Homes

PROJECT: 3-Dwelling Development

LOCATION Land adj Tyson Close, Barrow-upon-Humber

DRAWN BY:  ABI
CHECKED BY:  TW
SCALE:

1100
SIzE:
DATE © April 2021
STAGE. Planning Application

wore  21003/21
REV: A .

T: 01472 358734 E: info@idarchitecture.co.uk W: idarchitecture.co.uk
2Mexancraoad | Grimsby | North EastLincolnshire | DN3L 1RW



june cox_12
Text Box
PA/2021/1087 Proposed elevations (south and private garden) (not to scale)


Agenda Item 5d

APPLICATION NO PA/2021/1180
APPLICANT Mr Paul Evans
DEVELOPMENT Outline planning permission to erect five dwellings with all

matters reserved for subsequent consideration and demolition of
existing dwelling

LOCATION 18 Manor Road, Bottesford, DN16 3PA

PARISH Bottesford

WARD Bottesford

CASE OFFICER Scott Jackson

SUMMARY Grant permission subject to conditions
RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Member ‘call in’ (Cllr Margaret Armiger — significant public
REFERENCE TO interest)

COMMITTEE

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework: Sections 5 and 12 apply.
North Lincolnshire Local Plan: Policies DS1, H5, H8, H10, T1, LC12, T2 and T19 apply.

North Lincolnshire Core Strategy: Policies CS1, CS2, CS5, CS7, CS8, CS9, CS16,
CS17 and CS27 apply.

CONSULTATIONS
Highways: No objection, but recommend conditions.
Drainage (Lead Local Flood Authority): Object to the proposal on the following grounds:

The development falls within our lower threshold assessment levels (5—-9 properties)
and provides no information to support the proposals. There would seem to be no positive
surface water drainage outfall within the vicinity of the development should it be unfeasible
for infiltration.

Although the applicant has provided a flood risk assessment and suggested a variety of
SuDS features and their maintenance requirements, they have not proposed anything to
date. Whilst we appreciate the type of development would not warrant the larger open
SuDS features (ponds, wetlands), we still ask that an appropriate level of source control
features (filter drains, permeable paving, rain gardens, water butts) are fully investigated.

- The outline planning application does not provide a principle drainage strategy. This
should include preliminary drainage layout plans, topographical survey and outline
hydraulic calculations for a 1 in 100 year storm event plus CC based on current national
guidance and be based on SuDS principles, including adoption/maintenance proposals.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 121



- The outline planning application does not provide desktop ground investigation details to
support or oppose the feasibility of infiltration for the site.

Consequently, the proposal fails to comply with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local
Plan, policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs
155, 157, 163 and 165 of the NPPF.

Environmental Protection: This application for residential development is a sensitive end
use. It is the developer’s responsibility to assess and address any potential contamination
risks, however no supporting information has been provided that demonstrates potential
risks can be reduced to an acceptable level. Taking into account the above advice, the
applicant should submit a Phase 1 report for this department’s consideration prior to the
application being determined in accordance with national policy guidance. This will allow
the council to decide whether or not further assessment of the site is required and ensure
that appropriate conditions are applied which render the development safe and suitable for
use prior to use. Recommend conditions in respect of contaminated land investigation and
construction working hours.

Historic Environment Record: | have checked the HER database for known and potential
heritage assets that may be affected. The proposal does not adversely affect any heritage
assets or their settings. No further recommendations.

Spatial Planning: The site is within the development limit of Scunthorpe and therefore in
principle the proposals conform with the development plan. This application for five houses
conforms with Core Strategy policy CS7 (Overall Housing Provision). The principal focus for
housing is previously developed land and buildings within the development limits of
Scunthorpe.

Housing density within Scunthorpe development limits is 40—-45dph. This proposal is below
the housing density for Scunthorpe. Scunthorpe is a major sub-regional town and scored 75
points in the North Lincolnshire Settlement Survey (2019) and was 1%t overall out of all the
settlements in North Lincolnshire on sustainability grounds. The settlement survey looks at
key features which make up sustainability: primary school, secondary school, doctors and
community facilities. Scunthorpe is a market town/large service centre and has seven of the
seven key facilities: public house; village hall/church hall/community centre; primary school.

As the application is within the development limit of Scunthorpe, in principle development
would be supported. The density of the site is, however, below the policy requirement.

Recycling: It is unclear without clear scaled plans of the proposed road whether there is
adequate space for a refuse collection vehicle (RCV) to fit on the proposed road. The road
layout also lacks a turning area which would result in the RCVs reversing further than is
considered safe within a development.

Therefore, householders would be required to take their waste to the nearest adopted
highway accessible by the RCV and present at a pre-agreed collection point.

The collection point should be conveniently located with easy access for residents:

e Residents should not have to take their waste and recycling more than 30 metres to a
bin storage area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 122



e Residents should not have to take their bins more than 25 metres to a collection point,
(usually kerbside) in accordance with Building Regulations Approved Document H
Guidance.

Section 106 Officer: No contribution will be sought in this case.

Trees Officer: These new documents for this application do appear to be more accurate in
their description of the trees, their locations, condition and root protection areas required
around them.

The documents do suggest that if consent is given there would be a loss of five trees, and
other works to several others in order to implement the consent. Some of these trees are
protected by a TPO (tree preservation order), although those planted as replacement trees
for previous TPO'd trees that have been removed are not protected by the TPO.

If NLC is minded to give consent for this application, there is a need to ensure that sufficient
mitigation replacement planting be conditioned to ensure a continuing tree landscape in this
location.

TOWN COUNCIL

No response received.

PUBLICITY

Site notices have been displayed and two responses have been received objecting to the
proposal on the following grounds:

e increase in traffic

increase in vehicular movements along the local highway

local amenities, including the drainage, cannot cope with additional housing

impact on highway and pedestrian safety

impact on local services such as schools and doctors’ surgeries.
ASSESSMENT

This application was deferred at the planning committee meeting held on 22 September
2021 to allow the local planning authority to assess the potential impact of the proposals
upon the trees covered by a tree preservation order on the site. In this regard the applicant
has submitted an updated Arboricultural Impact Assessment, a Tree Plan and a Site Plan.

This application site consists of a large, detached dwelling set within a spacious plot with
garden to the front and rear. The site extends to 0.28 hectares (2800 square metres) in
area and is located within the defined settlement boundary for Scunthorpe, within flood
zone 1. The site is accessed via a long driveway approach from Manor Road to the south
and the land surrounding the site is residential in nature. Outline planning permission is
sought to demolish the existing house on the site and erect five dwellings with all matters
reserved.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 123



The main issues in the determination of this application are the principle of
development, and impact on the character and appearance of the area, on residential
amenity and on trees.

Principle

The application site is located within the settlement development boundary for the
Scunthorpe and Bottesford urban area which is designated as the main focus for the
majority of new development and growth, including housing. This accords with policy CS1
(Spatial Strategy for North Lincolnshire) of the Core Strategy. Policy CS2 (Delivering More
Sustainable Development) states that development should be focused on previously
developed land and buildings within the Scunthorpe urban area, followed by other suitable
infill opportunities within the town, then by appropriate greenfield urban extensions.

Policy H8 (Housing Design and Housing Mix) of the local plan applies and states that new
residential development will be permitted provided it incorporates a high standard of layout
that maintains, and where possible improves and enhances, the character of the area, and
protects existing natural and built features, landmarks or views that contribute to the
amenity of the area. This site constitutes developable land within the settlement boundary
of Scunthorpe and Bottesford and is located within walking and cycling distance of local
services and amenities, and sustainable modes of travel. There is therefore a presumption
in favour of residential development on this site. In addition, the proposal would result in the
net gain of four additional houses which would contribute to the housing land supply in
North Lincolnshire.

Street scene and settlement character

Manor Road and the surrounding streets have a defined character with large dwellings set
within spacious plots, set back from the highway to the south. The character around the site
changes to an extent to the west with detached dwellings arranged in a denser setting
within a cul-de-sac (Wayside Close). Similarly, the character of development changes to the
east of the site (along Manor Road, towards the junction with Cambridge Avenue) with pairs
of semi-detached dwellings set back from the highway with off-street parking spaces and
large rear gardens. Taking into account the existing settlement character in this part of
Bottesford (including the cul-de-sac development to the west) it is considered the
introduction of the five dwellings will not be at odds with the prevailing character of the area.

The site area of 0.28 hectares equates to approximately 560 square metres per plot,
sufficient space in which to accommodate five dwellings with associated parking and private
amenity space. Notwithstanding this, an indicative layout plan has been submitted
demonstrating that five dwellings can be accommodated on the site, together with the
provision of private gardens, two off-street parking spaces per dwelling and vehicular
turning areas, and that the dwellings can be positioned in line with neighbouring dwellings
to both the east and west to ensure the residential development is in keeping with the
immediate locality.

The comments made by Spatial Planning in relation to density of the development are
noted. The site is 0.28 hectares in area, which equates to a density of approximately 18
dwellings per hectare. This figure of 18 dwellings per hectare is below the density of 40-45
dwellings per hectare set out in policy CS7 of the Core Strategy. However, policy CS7 does
advocate that, whilst housing development will be expected to make an efficient use of
land, the density of new development should be in keeping with the character of the area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 124



The surrounding area is characterised by a modern residential cul-de-sac to the west and
rows of semi-detached houses to the east. The development is considered to reflect the
character of development whilst retaining a sense of openness within the street scene
(based on the submitted plan, which is indicative only). Due to the openness that will be
retained as a result of the development, together with the spacious pattern of development,
it is considered that, although the proposal falls below the thresholds set out in policy CS7,
it is acceptable in this instance.

Residential amenity

Outline planning permission is sought with all matters reserved for subsequent
consideration (through the submission of a reserved matters application). Matters relating to
the position and heights of windows, orientation and scale of the dwellings and the position
of the highway access would be considered at reserved matters stage. The potential loss of
residential amenity arising from this subsequent application would be assessed at that
stage of the planning process. An indicative plan has been submitted with this application,
which shows that separation distances of 20m can be achieved between habitable room
windows on the rear most plots and existing houses on Jacklins Approach to the north.

A condition is recommended requiring details of all boundary treatments to serve the five
plots to be submitted for consideration; this would allow the local planning authority to
ensure that the boundary sections which border the gardens of existing residential
properties are secured with appropriate boundary treatments and to clarify whether the
hedge along the front and eastern boundaries of the site would be retained.

Trees

The site is covered by a blanket TPO which covers 39 trees in the gardens of 16, 18 and
18a Manor Road respectively. It is worth noting that some of these trees have been
removed and replaced over time, including within the development site. Given the number
of dwellings proposed and the associated garages, parking areas and access road, the
proposals have the potential to impact on the protected trees and others within the site. The
applicant has submitted additional information in the form of an Arboricultural Impact
Assessment and Tree Plan, and an additional indicative site layout plan to show whether
the dwellings can be accommodated on the site and how the development would interact
with the existing trees (by way of encroachment into root protection zones or the canopies
of the trees).

Policy LC12 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan applies and states that proposals for all
new development will, wherever possible, ensure the retention of trees, woodland and
hedgerows with particular regard to the protection of these features within the setting of
settlements, the protection of ancient woodlands and historic hedgerows and the amenity
value of trees within built-up areas. The Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AlA) shows that
the vast majority of trees are to be retained within the site and that development (shown on
the indicative layout plans) can mainly take place outside the root protection zones (RPZ) of
the trees without encroachment and resulting in soil compaction. The supporting
information shows that five trees are proposed to be removed from the site, two of which
are considered to be Category B trees and three Category C trees (referring to the quality
of the trees).

The plans show that two trees (Trees 13 and 14) are proposed to be removed to facilitate
vehicular access to the site. This proposed access point is positioned centrally along the

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 125



southern boundary with Manor Road. Neither of these trees are protected by the TPO and
as such can be removed. Whilst their loss is regrettable, it is considered necessary to
facilitate future vehicular access. In addition, if the existing access and driveway was
retained (as shown on the previous indicative plan) the proposal would result in greater
impact and therefore potential loss of trees, including those protected by a TPO. Also, as
these trees are of category C quality, they are classed as being of low quality with a low life
expectancy.

It is also proposed to remove Tree 4 from the site. This is a Lawson Cypress tree and was a
replacement for the TPO tree that was previously located in this part of the site. The
removal of this tree is considered acceptable to facilitate off-street parking spaces. In
addition, the council’s tree officer has commented that the replacement tree is not protected
by the TPO and as such can be removed for off-street parking purposes.

It is also proposed to remove Trees 28 and 29 to facilitate the provision of a detached
garage and off-street parking spaces to the rear of one of the dwellings (shown
indicatively). One of these trees (T29) is a category C tree and is not protected by the TPO.
It is therefore considered that it can be removed due to its limited amenity value and quality.
T28 is a Lawson Cypress tree and is included within the TPO. Its retention should therefore
be sought. The Arboricultural Impact Assessment states that it is in good condition with a
life expectancy of 40+ years. Given this is an outline application with layout reserved for
future consideration, it is considered that T28 should be retained, and alternative plans put
forward for off-street parking and garage provision in this part of the site as part of any
reserved matters application, in order to safeguard the tree. It is proposed to undertake
remedial works to a number of the trees within the site and the plans show that no-dig
driveway methods will be employed, and sufficient protection afforded to trees during the
construction process. This is considered acceptable in the context that all but four of the
trees within the site will be retained and that T28, which is a TPO tree, is to be retained by
planning condition. In addition, there is scope to secure additional tree planting within the
site to mitigate the loss of the trees, to improve the visual amenity of the area and to secure
biodiversity enhancement. This will be done through the inclusion of an informative on any
planning permission granted.

In conclusion, the loss of the trees is regrettable, however there are no category A trees to
be removed from the site, nor any TPO trees. The submitted documentation shows that the
proposals can be accommodated on the site with limited impact on existing trees and that
appropriate methods of tree protection and no-dig driveway techniques can be employed to
safeguard existing trees during development.

Other issues

The site is within flood risk zone 1; a flood risk assessment is therefore not required. As this
site is identified on National Surface Water Drainage Maps (Gov.uk) as being at a very low
risk of flooding from surface water drainage, there is no requirement for a surface water
drainage scheme to be submitted for consideration in this case. Given the existing house is
connected to a soakaway in terms of surface water disposal and that it is proposed to
dispose of surface water from the five dwellings in the same way, it is considered that this
matter will be dealt with sufficiently via a condition to secure a detailed drainage scheme
prior to works commencing. No information or evidence has been presented with the
objectors’ comments to substantiate whether there are existing surface water drainage
issues in this part of Bottesford.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 126



In their consultation response Environmental Health has recommended a contaminated
land investigation be undertaken, owing to the unknown previous use of the site and that
residential development is a sensitive end use. However, the site has been in residential
use as a dwelling with private garden surrounding it; the end use will therefore be the same
as existing and a condition requiring contaminated land investigation is considered neither
necessary nor reasonable in this case. A less onerous condition has been recommended to
deal with any unexpected contamination should it be encountered during construction.

Highways have considered the proposal and raise no objection to the development on
grounds of pedestrian or highway safety. The proposed development will inevitably result in
an increase in traffic movements to and from the site and onto the public highway, however
such an increase in vehicular movements is not considered to be above that which is
expected in a residential area. In addition, there is sufficient space to the front of the site
(adjacent to the access) in which to provide an area for refuse collection, which will be
addressed when the layout is considered at the reserved matters stage.

Conclusion

The proposed development would make a valuable contribution towards housing provision
in the locality and is a sustainable form of residential development. Furthermore, the
proposal would not have a harmful impact on the character of the area, would not result in
unacceptable harm to vehicular or pedestrian safety, has adequately addressed any
drainage issues and loss of trees, and would not result in unacceptable harm to
neighbouring living conditions. It is therefore concluded that the proposal sufficiently
accords with adopted planning policy and guidance, and the application is recommended
for approval.

Pre-commencement conditions

The pre-commencement condition included in the recommendation has been agreed with
the applicant/agent.

RECOMMENDATION Grant permission subject to the following conditions:

1.

Approval of the details of the layout, scale and appearance of the building(s), the means of
access thereto and the landscaping of the site, (hereinafter called 'the reserved matters’)
shall be obtained from the local planning authority in writing before any development is
commenced.

Reason
The application has been made under Article 5(1) of the Town & Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

2.

Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in condition 1 above, relating to the
layout, scale and appearance of any buildings to be erected, the means of access to the
site and the landscaping of the site, shall be submitted in writing to the local planning
authority and shall be carried out as approved.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 127



Reason
The application has been made under Article 5(1) of the Town & Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

3.
Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the local planning
authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason
To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

4.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of five years
from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two years from the date of
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.

Reason
To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

5.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

LNMR 001
LMR 009 (Tree T28 to be retained), and
OWAO0185 AIA (Tree Protection Zone).

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

6.

If, during development, any odorous, discoloured or otherwise visually contaminated
material is found to be present at the site then no further development shall be carried out
until a written method statement detailing how this contamination shall be dealt with has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with
policy DS7 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

1.
Construction and site clearance operations shall be limited to the following days and hours:

- 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday

- 8am to 1pm on Saturdays.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 128



No construction, demolition or site clearance operations shall take place on Sundays or
public/bank holidays.

HGV movements shall not be permitted outside these hours during the construction phase
without prior written approval from the local planning authority.

Installation of equipment on site shall not be permitted outside these hours without prior
written approval from the local planning authority.

Reason
To define the terms of the permission and in the interests of safeguarding residential
amenity.

8.

No above-ground works shall take place until details have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority of the make, type and colour of all external facing
materials for the development and only the approved materials shall be used.

Reason
To ensure that the building is in keeping with its surroundings in the interests of visual
amenity, in accordance with policy DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

9.

No above-ground works shall take place until details of the positions, design, materials and
type of boundary treatment to be built/planted have been agreed in writing by the local
planning authority. The agreed boundary treatment shall be built/planted before the
dwellings are occupied and once built/planted it shall be retained.

Reason
To provide an appropriate level of screening in accordance with policies H8 and DS1 of the
North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

10.

No loose material shall be placed on any driveway or parking area within 10 metres of the
adopted highway unless measures are taken in accordance with details to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority to prevent the material from spilling
onto the highway. Once agreed and implemented these measures shall be retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

11.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without
modification), nothing shall at any time be erected, retained, planted or allowed to grow
over 1.05 metres in height above the level of the adjoining carriageway for a distance of 2
metres from the highway boundary across the site frontage.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 129



Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

12.

No dwelling on the site shall be occupied until the vehicular access to it and the vehicle
parking and turning space serving it have been completed and, once provided, the vehicle
parking and manoeuvring space shall be retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

13.
No dwelling served by the private driveway shall be occupied until it has been constructed
in accordance with details including:

0] the proposed method of forming access from the highway, including the required
visibility splays;

(i) the method of constructing/paving the drive;

(i)  the provision of adequate drainage features;

(iv)  the provision of suitable bin collection facilities adjacent to the highway;

(v) the provision of suitable lighting arrangements; and

(vi)  the provision of street name plates that shall include the words 'Private Drive';

which have been agreed in writing by the local planning authority before any above ground
works commence. Once constructed the private driveway shall be retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

14.

No dwelling on the site shall be occupied until the private driveway has been completed, to
a standard to be agreed beforehand in writing with the local planning authority, up to its
junction with the vehicular access to that dwelling.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

15.

No development shall take place until a scheme for the disposal of foul and surface water
has been agreed in writing by the local planning authority and none of the dwellings shall be
occupied until it is connected to the approved drainage system.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 130



Reason
To ensure satisfactory drainage is provided in accordance with policy DS14 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

16.

Notwithstanding the details shown on drawings LMR 009 and OWAO0185 AIA (Tree
Protection Zone), Tree T28 shall be retained on the site and included within the layout
considered as part of any reserved matters application submission.

Reason

This tree is afforded protection by a tree preservation order and is of sufficient quality to
merit retention. As this is an outline planning application, flexibility is built into any reserved
matters submission to ensure any parking and garages are located clear of this tree.

17.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with the method
and extent of tree protection measures detailed in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment
produced by Arb Consultants Ltd dated October 2016, including the method and extent of
tree protection identified on drawing OWAOQ0185 AIA (Tree Protection Zone). The tree
protection measures shall be retained for the duration of the works. Within the areas so
fenced off, the existing ground level shall be neither raised nor lowered (except as may be
approved by the local planning authority as part of the development) and no materials,
equipment, machinery or temporary buildings, or surplus soil, shall be placed or stored
thereon. If any trenches for services are required in the fenced-off areas, they shall be
excavated and backfilled by hand and any tree roots encountered with a diameter of
5 centimetres or more shall be left unsevered.

Reason
To ensure the work is carried out in a correct manner to protect the health of the trees and
their contribution to the visual amenity and character of the area.

Informative 1

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Informative 2
The development hereby granted planning permission requires works to be carried out
within the limits of the adopted (public) highway. Therefore:

- before ANY construction works take place within the limits of the highway you MUST
contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297000 to arrange for the
relevant permissions/licenses to be issued;

- before ANY service (utility) connections take place within the limits of the highway you

MUST contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297319 to arrange for
the relevant permissions/licenses to be issued

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 131



Informative 3
Any reserved matters submission should include details of the method of constructing the

driveways in close proximity to, and within, the Tree Protection Zones. No-dig methods may
be required in that regard.

Informative 4
Any reserved matters submission should include a substantial landscaping scheme with

tree planting to mitigate the removal of trees from the site to facilitate development.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 132



Bottesford
Junior
School

| | S\ E Lincolnshire
o m /. Council

PAI2021 I1 1 80 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560




0 not'scale dimensions from-this dr: . Only figured\dim ns to be taken from this/drawing./Check all dimensions an site before co i
reserved. \This drawing must e reprodused ‘without permission fMark Simmonds Planning Services..Basgd upon the Ordnance Survey mapp issi
Stationery Office © Crowr Copyright. Unauthori productl infringes Crown Copyright ahd may lead M or civil proceedings. 100053143 2022.

/PA12021I1 180 Indicative layout (not to scale)

ﬁ/@@\\\\% :
- AMENDED |

—|

‘nﬁjMark Simmonds
PLANNING SERVICES
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

MAN O R ROAD SC U NTH O RP E enquiries@marksimmondsplanningservices.co.uk

Mark Simmonds
Director
Mark Simmonds Planning Services Ltd
Mercury House
DAann 2/ Willoughton Drive
Ref: . Scalel @ @y + bé{;" Foxby Lane

L N M R 0 1 0 1:750 JAN/22 Gainsborough

DN21 1IDY



Tara Sullivan_4
Text Box
PA/2021/1180 Indicative layout (not to scale)


| I

PA/2021/1180 Tree plan (not to sca/i:& =

L NN
AMENDED
T

I

\

=

=

Key

%

'Mark Simmonds
PLANNING SERVICES

fud

enquiries@marksimmondsplanningservices.co.uk

TREE PLAN
MANOR ROAD SCUNTHORPE

Tree to be retained

Mark Simmonds
Tree to be removed Director

Mark Simmonds Planning Services Ltd

Tree root protection Mercury House
area Dana 12K Willoughton Drive
Ref: . Scale @ A4 ey \D’ate'l'u - Foxby Lane
L N M R OO 9 1:750 JAN/22 Gainsborough
DN21 1DY



Tara Sullivan_5
Text Box
PA/2021/1180 Tree plan (not to scale)


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5e

APPLICATION NO PA/2021/1224

APPLICANT A Wheatley

DEVELOPMENT Planning permission to erect three bungalows
LOCATION 28 Doncaster Road, Westwoodside, DN9 2EA
PARISH Haxey

WARD Axholme South

CASE OFFICER Emmanuel Hiamey

SUMMARY Grant permission subject to conditions
RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Objection by Haxey Parish Council
REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework:

Chapter 2 (Achieving sustainable development)

Chapter 4 (Decision making)

Chapter 5 (Delivering a sufficient supply of homes)
Chapter 9 (Promoting sustainable transport)

Chapter 11 (Making effective use of land)

Chapter 12 (Achieving well-designed places)

Chapter 14 (Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change)
North Lincolnshire Local Plan:

Policy DS1 (General Requirements)

Policy DS7 (Contaminated Land)

Policy DS14 (Foul Sewage and Surface Water Drainage)
Policy DS16 (Flood Risk)

Policy H1 (Housing Development Hierarchy)

Policy H8 (Housing Design and Housing Mix)

Policy T2 (Access to Development)

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 137



Policy T19 (Car Parking Provision and Standards)

North Lincolnshire Core Strategy:

Policy CS1 (Spatial Strategy for North Lincolnshire)

Policy CS2 (Delivering more Sustainable Development)
Policy CS3 (Development Limits)

Policy CS5 (Delivering Quality Design in North Lincolnshire)
Policy CS7 (Overall Housing Provision)

Policy CS8 (Spatial Distribution of Housing Sites)

Policy CS18 (Sustainable Resource Use and Climate Change)
Policy CS19 (Flood Risk)

CONSULTATIONS

Severn Trent Water: No objection but comments that the disposal of surface water utilising
soakaways should be considered as the primary method. If this is not practical and there is
no watercourse available as an alternative, another sustainable method should also be
explored. If these are found unsuitable, satisfactory evidence will need to be submitted
before a discharge to the public sewerage system is considered. No surface water shall
enter the foul water system by any means.

Environmental Protection Team (Contaminated Land): No objection subject to a
condition relating to contaminated land.

Historic Environment Record (Archaeology): No objection, commenting that the
proposal does not adversely affect any heritage assets of archaeological interest or their
settings and will not adversely affect the Area of Special Historic Landscape Interest of the
Isle of Axholme (local plan policy LC14).

Drainage Team (Lead Local Flood Authority): No objection subject to conditions.
Highways: No objection subject to conditions.
PARISH COUNCIL

Object to the application on the basis that the street scene is a mix of building types and
should not be affected by this proposal. It should not create any privacy or overshadowing
issues. While a well-presented application, they have concerns as to the density level and
would expect the planning department to assess this against current allowances for a rural
village.

It is not social or affordable; however, given the high level of older people living in
Westwoodside, it could meet a local need for housing for older people. It might be
appropriate to require a condition as to tenancy use.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 138



PUBLICITY

A site notice has been displayed and a total of 21 public comments have been received: 8
in support of the proposal and 13 objections (4 from the same objector having been
counted as one). The letters raise the following material issues:

Objections:

e the design of the dwellings

e over-development of the site.

e impact on the character of the area.

e impact on 28 Doncaster Road

e access and parking provision

e public safety on Doncaster Road

e proposed small amenity space

e drainage

e flooding.

Support:

e the principle of the development

o affordable rental properties in the area

e design and materials

e enhancing an unattractive piece of ground
e infill development.

ASSESSMENT

Site constraints

SFRA Flood Zone 1

Development boundary

Planning history

PA/2017/1441: Planning permission to erect a detached house and detached garage —
approved 14/11/2017 (rear of 28 Doncaster Road)

PA/2016/1781: Planning permission to erect a detached house and garage — approved
08/03/2017 (rear of 26 Doncaster Road)

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 139



PA/2015/1385: Planning permission for new vehicular access — approved 11/12/2015
(28 Doncaster Road)

PA/2013/0259: Outline planning permission to erect two dwellings with access not
reserved for subsequent approval — approved 06/08/2013 (includes sub-
division of the rear garden of 28 Doncaster Road to erect two detached
dwellings).

Site description and proposal

Planning permission is sought to erect three bungalows at 28 Doncaster Road,
Westwoodside. The site is within the development boundary of Westwoodside.

By way of background, several applications have been approved in or around 28 Doncaster
Road. The planning history of the site confirms that all the proposals approved in the area
were outside the curtilage of 28 Doncaster Road. The only proposal approved on the site is
the planning permission for new vehicular access on 11 December 2015 (PA/2015/1385).

This proposal seeks to sub-divide the curtilage of 28 Doncaster Road to erect three small
bungalows (Units 1 and 2). The units would be single-storey with pitched roofs. The
proposed materials are brickwork and timber boarding, and the roofs would be tiled. Unit 1
would consist of two semi-detached dwellings and Unit 2 a single detached dwelling, each
dwelling containing an open plan single bedroom.

The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are:
e the principle of the development;

¢ layout, siting and design;

e whether the dwellings would harm the character of the area;

e impact on neighbouring amenities;

¢ highway safety, access, and parking.

Principle of development:

Policy CS1 states, ‘Rural settlements will be supported as thriving sustainable communities,
with a strong focus on retaining and enhancing existing local services to meet local needs.
The development will be limited and should take into account levels of local service
provision, infrastructure capacity and accessibility.

Policy CS2: Delivering more Sustainable Development states that in supporting the delivery
of the spatial strategy set out in policy CS1, as well as determining how future development
needs will be met in North Lincolnshire, a sequential approach will be adopted.

The adopted sequential approach focuses on the following:

€) Previously developed land and buildings within the Scunthorpe urban area, followed
by other suitable infill opportunities within the town, then by appropriate greenfield
urban extensions

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 140



(b) Previously developed land and buildings within the defined development limits of
North Lincolnshire’s market towns, followed by other suitable infill opportunities then
appropriate small-scale greenfield extensions to meet identified local needs

(c) Small-scale developments within the defined development limits of rural settlements
to meet identified local needs.

Policy CS3 (Development Limits) ensures that the countryside is protected from
inappropriate development and that no uncontrolled expansion of settlements will take
place. Since the site is within the development boundary of Westwoodside and housing
development on the site is not restricted, the proposal meets the terms of the policy.

Notwithstanding the development plan policies set out above, the NPPF is a material
consideration when determining planning applications. Paragraph 10 of the NPPF states,
‘So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.” Paragraph 11(d) of the
NPPF states that housing applications should be considered in the context of the
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Where the local planning authority
cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites, relevant policies which
were most important to determining the application should not be considered up-to-date.

A recent appeal decision dated 20 July 2022 (planning reference PA/2020/554) has been
issued where the Inspector has concluded that the council does not currently have a five-
year housing land supply of deliverable sites. The council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply
Position Statement is awaiting an update and as such any decisions made by the planning
authority will take account of the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set
out in paragraph 11 of the NPPF. The current local policies which are most important for
determining the application will carry reduced weight during this period.

The site is within the development boundary of Westwoodside where the principle of
residential development is considered acceptable. The proposal generally accords with the
relevant policies of the development plan. As such the statutory presumption in section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 is engaged, which states that
planning permission should be granted unless other material considerations indicate
otherwise. The proposal is considered to represent sustainable development and the
presumption in favour set out in paragraph 11 of the Framework is triggered. In determining
the principle and sustainability of the proposed development, an assessment is required of
the technical elements of the proposal which will be discussed below.

Layout, siting and design

Policy DS1 (General Requirements) expects a high standard of design in all developments
in both built-up areas and the countryside and proposals for poorly designed development
will be refused. All proposals will be considered against the criteria of quality of design and
amenity impact among other criteria.

Policy CS5 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy requires that all new development in
North Lincolnshire should be well designed and appropriate for their context. It should
contribute to creating a sense of place. The council will encourage contemporary design if it
is appropriate for its location and is informed by its surrounding context. A design that is
inappropriate to the local area or fails to maximise opportunities for improving the character
and quality of the area will not be acceptable.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 141



The current layout of the site and the design of the dwellings is the result of negotiations
between the case officer and the applicant to improve the development by ensuring the
dwellings can be accommodated on the site and have sufficient amenity area (private
manageable garden), which, though visible from properties in the area, will be adequate for
the enjoyment of the occupiers.

The planning authority believes the layout, as amended, is acceptable because it would not
result in a cramped development, and would knit the area together and integrate with the
surrounding buildings.

The details of the design have been reviewed and it is judged that the proposal would make
a positive contribution to the quality of the area. The density of the area is satisfactory and
the proposal would respect the area’s character and layout.

While this development would be single-storey, contrary to the two-storey dwellings in the
surrounding area, the proposal would respect the scale, proportions and height of
neighbouring properties.

The proposed materials (brickwork and timber boarding, and tiled roof) would respect the
materials of neighbouring buildings and the local area.

Overall, the design of the proposed dwellings is acceptable in the context of the character
and appearance of the site and the immediate area. The proposal, therefore, complies with
policies DS1 and CS5.

Residential amenity

Policy DS1: General Requirements expect a high standard of design in all developments in
both built-up areas and the countryside and proposals for poorly designed development will
be refused. It requires that all proposals be considered against the quality of the design and
amenity, among others. Further to this, the NPPF advises that planning should always seek
to secure a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and
buildings.

In respect of amenity, policies require that new development should be allowed providing
that the development does not unreasonably reduce sunlight or daylight, or result in
overshadowing, overbearing impact or loss of privacy to adjacent dwellings.

In this case, the development would be single-storey and the proximity to adjacent
properties is such that the dwellings would not raise an issue of over-development,
overbearing impact or overshadowing.

Having considered the scale of the development, the position of the windows and proximity
to neighbouring properties, it is judged that no issues would arise from loss of privacy.

In general, the proposal would not result in unacceptable impacts to the residential amenity
of any property through either overlooking, overshadowing, or overbearing impact. Further,
it would not take away the privacy of any property. The proposals would accord with
policies DS1 of the local plan and CS5 of the Core Strategy.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 142



Drainage

Policy CS19 of the Core Strategy is concerned with flood risk and policy DS14 of the local
plan is concerned with foul sewage and surface water drainage.

The site lies within SFRA Flood Zone 1, which has a low risk of flooding. The LLFA
Drainage Team has no objection to the proposed development subject to the imposition of
planning conditions. It is therefore believed that the development is unlikely to raise a
significant issue of flooding. The recommended conditions would be applied to any
permission granted.

Highways

Policy T2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan states that all development should be served
by satisfactory access. Policy T19 is concerned with parking provisions as well as general
highway safety.

The properties would have shared access arranged around a driveway. Each dwelling
would have one dedicated parking space. Highways have no objection to the grant of
permission subject to conditions. The proposed access and parking provision are therefore
sufficient to serve the development.

Overall, the proposal would align with policies T2 and T19 of the North Lincolnshire Local
Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Archaeology

The site is not within the Area of Special Historic Landscape Interest of the Isle of Axholme.
The proposal will therefore not be assessed against local plan policy LC14.

The archaeology officer has confirmed that the proposal does not adversely affect any
heritage assets of archaeological interest or their settings and will not adversely affect the
Area of Special Historic Landscape Interest of the Isle of Axholme.

Contaminated land

The NPPF states that to prevent unacceptable risks from pollution and land instability,
planning policies and decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its
location. Policy DS11 of the local plan is concerned with polluting activities. It states that
planning permission for development, including extensions to existing premises and
changes of use, will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that levels of
potentially polluting emissions, including effluent, leachates, smoke, fumes, gases, dust,
steam, smell, or noise, do not pose a danger by way of toxic release. Policy DS1 of the
local plan is also concerned with the protection of amenities.

Environmental Protection has reviewed the proposal and indicated that the development of
three residential properties is a sensitive end-use. In addition, historic maps show the
presence of historic buildings of unknown use. Therefore, there is the potential for the site
to have been affected by contamination which can include PAHs, metals and hydrocarbons.
It is the developer’s responsibility to assess and address any potential contamination risks;
however, no supporting information has been provided that demonstrates potential risks
can be reduced to an acceptable level. If the council is mindful to determine the application

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 143



without the information required under National Planning Policy guidance then the
department would recommend the inclusion of conditions relating to contaminated land.

Public comments

As indicated earlier, 21 public comments have been received: 8 in support of the proposal
and 13 objections (4 from the same objector having been counted as one). Having
reviewed the comments, it is evident that nearly all are either a duplicate of the same letter
or a repeat of the issues.

Concerns about the design and impact of the development on neighbouring properties and
the surrounding area, over-development of the site, and access and parking provision have
been addressed previously in this report. The LLFA Drainage Team have commented on
drainage.

Likewise, the matters raised in support of the application, including the principle of the
development, design and materials, have been addressed previously in this report.

Haxey Parish Council objection

Haxey Parish Council object to the application on the basis that the street scene is a mix of
building types and should not be affected by this proposal, and the development should not
create any privacy or overshadowing issues.

They have indicated that while it is a well-presented application, they have concerns as to
the density level and would expect the planning department to assess this against current
allowances for a rural village.

Notwithstanding the above, they have commented that while the proposal is not social or
affordable housing, given the high level of older people living in Westwoodside it could meet
a local need for housing for older people and might be appropriate to require a condition as
to tenancy use.

In response, the matters of the density of the area, and its impact on the character of the
area and neighbouring amenities have been addressed in this report.

The comment about the development meeting local housing need for older people gives the
impression that Haxey Parish Council is open to supporting the development if it meets the
terms of relevant policies of the local development plan.

Conclusion

In conclusion, the proposed sub-division of the curtilage of 28 Doncaster Road for an
additional three dwellings, in principle, is acceptable because the site is within the
development boundary and is judged as brownfield land given the previous garage which
has been demolished in the past.

The layout, siting and modest, single-storey design of the dwellings, while a reduced scale

of development in the area compared to nearby properties, would not harm the setting or
the street scene, raise no planning issues and are judged acceptable.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 144



The layout and design within the curtilage of 28 Doncaster Road would not result in a
cramped development and would fit in well with the character of the site and its
surroundings.

The scale of the dwellings would ensure there would be no undue impact on the amenity of
neighbouring properties by way of overshadowing, loss of daylight or loss of privacy.

The proposal is therefore recommended for approval.
Pre-commencement conditions

The recommended pre-commencement conditions have been agreed with the
agent/applicant.

RECOMMENDATION Grant permission subject to the following conditions:

1.
The development must be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason
To comply with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Dwg. No. 21-13-100 Rev 02
Dwg. No. 21-13-101 Rev 02
Dwg. No. 21-13-102 Rev 04.

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

Unless otherwise agreed by the local planning authority, development other than that
required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not
commence until parts 3 and 4 below have been complied with. If unexpected contamination
is found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site
affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the local planning
authority in writing.

Part 1: Site Characteristics

A Phase 1 desk study shall be carried out to identify and evaluate all potential sources of
contamination and the impacts on land and/or controlled waters, relevant to the site. The
desk study shall establish a 'conceptual model' of the site and identify all plausible pollutant
linkages. Furthermore, the assessment shall set objectives for intrusive site investigation
works/Quantitative Risk Assessment (or state if none is required). Two full copies of the
desk study and a non-technical summary shall be submitted to the local planning authority
for approval prior to proceeding to further site investigation.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 145



An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the
planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature
and extent of any contamination on the site, and whether or not it originates on the site. The
contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority.
The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a
written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the approval
in writing of the local planning authority. The report of the findings must include:

0] a survey of the extent, scale, and nature of contamination;
(i) an assessment of the potential risks to:
- human health;

- property (existing or proposed), including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland, and service lines and pipes;

adjoining land;

groundwaters and surface waters;

ecological systems;

archaeological sites and ancient monuments;
(i)  an appraisal of remedial options, and a proposal of the preferred option(s).

This must be conducted in accordance with Environment Agency’s Land Contamination
Risk Management (LCRM) guidance for October 2020

Part 2: Submission of Remediation Scheme

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use
by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the
natural and historical environment must be prepared and is subject to the approval in
writing of the local planning authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken,
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

Part 3: Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to
the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The local planning authority
must be given two weeks' written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme
works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the
approval in writing of the local planning authority.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 146



Part 4: Reporting of Unexpected Contamination

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to
the local planning authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with the requirements of Part 1, and where remediation is necessary a
remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of Part 2,
which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the local
planning authority in accordance with Part 3.

Reason
To ensure the site is safe for future users and construction workers.

4.

No development shall take place until details showing an effective method of preventing
surface water run-off from hard paved areas within the site onto the highway have been
approved in writing by the local planning authority. These facilities shall be implemented
prior to the access and parking facilities being brought into use and thereafter so retained.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan, policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and
paragraph 163 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

5.

No dwelling on the site shall be occupied until the vehicular access to it and the vehicle
parking and turning space serving it has been completed and once provided, the vehicle
parking and manoeuvring space shall be retained.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

6.

No dwelling served by the private driveway shall be occupied until it has been constructed
in accordance with details including:

0] the proposed method of forming access from the highway, including the required
visibility splays;

(i) the method of constructing/paving the drive;
(i)  the provision of adequate drainage features;
(iv)  the provision of suitable bin collection facilities adjacent to the highway;

(v)  the provision of suitable lighting arrangements; and

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 147



(vi)  the provision of street nameplates that shall include the words 'Private Drive';

which have been agreed in writing by the local planning authority. Once constructed the
private driveway shall be retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Informative 1

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Informative 2

Severn Trent Water advises that although their statutory sewer records do not show any
public sewers within the area you have specified, there may be sewers that have been
recently adopted under The Transfer Of Sewer Regulations 2011. Public sewers have
statutory protection and may not be built close to, directly over or diverted without consent
and you are advised to contact Severn Trent Water to discuss your proposals. Severn Trent
will seek to assist you in obtaining a solution that protects both the public sewer and the
building.

Informative 3
The development hereby granted planning permission requires works to be carried out
within the limits of the adopted (public) highway. Therefore:

- before ANY construction works take place within the limits of the highway you MUST
contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297000 to arrange for the
relevant permissions/licenses to be issued;

- before ANY service (utility) connections take place within the limits of the highway you

MUST contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297319 to arrange for
the relevant permissions/licenses to be issued.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 148



/ North
LC14 Isle of Axholme Area of Special Historic Landscape Interest / Lincolnshire
) pevelopment Boundary / ey Council

PA/2021/1224 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560



PA/2021/1224 Proposed layout (not to scale)

Z

UNIT 1
AMENITY SPACE
HATCHED

UNIT 2

/

[

| )
/( /

o AMENITY SPACE /
0/ -PROPOSED LOCATION FOR HATCHED / /
/- SOAKAWAY / /
MIN 5M AWAY FROM HIGHWAY /
AND DWELLINGS / /
/ /
TTT——— / /
/ /
(
L 7 |
I /
\
N
"

/P PROPOSED SITE PLAN
002/ SCALE 1:100 @ A1

AMENDED

zzzzzzzz
zzzzzzzz

/ P\ LOCATION PLAN

001 SCALE 1:500@ A1

GENERAL NOTES

1.0 SURFACE WATER TO DRAIN TO APPROVED
SOAKAWAY DESIGN.

2.0 FOUL DRAINAGE TO CONNECT TO
EXISTING SYSTEM ON SITE.

4.0 PARKING BAYS TO BE PERMEABLE FINISH.

5.0 AMENITY SHADED AREAS TO INCLUDE
PAVED AREAS FOR EXTERNAL CIRCULATION.

6.0 MATERIALS

EXTERNAL WALLS

FACING BRICK TO APPROVED SAMPLE.
VERTICAL TIMBER BOARDING, SYNTHETIC.

ROOF
SLATE TILES

WINDOWS
UPVC IN GREY

DOORS UPVC IN GREY

CLOSE FASCIA NON PROJECTING
AND UNIVERSAL CLOAKED EAVES

RAINWATER GOODS
BLACK. GUTTERS ON RISE AND FALL
BRACKETS.

ACCOMMODATION SCHEDULE

UNIT 1

2 NO SEMIDETACHED SINGLE BED
BUNGALOWS

105 M sQ

UNIT 2
1 NO DETACHED SINGLE BED BUNGALOW
54 M sQ

rrrrrrrrrrrr

\\\\\\\\\\
LOCATION PLAN AND

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
(© ANTHONY SNOWDEN ARCHITECT 2020 RIBA
AS SHOWN
wwwwwwww Rev.
21-13-100 02



june cox_13
Text Box
PA/2021/1224 Proposed layout (not to scale)


PA/2021/1224 Proposed plans and elevations (detached) (not to scale)

TGT obed

[T T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T T TT T T T ]
[T T T T T I T T T T I T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TTTITTTIT I T
[T T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T T TT T T T ]
[T T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T TTTTTITTIT T T
[TTT T T I T T I T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T T TT T T T T T TTTTTI I ]
[T T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T TTTTTITTIT T T
[TTT T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TT T I TTTTTITIT ]
[T T T T I T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T TTTIT I I T ]
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T TTT T T T I ]
[T T TSP T T T T T T I T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T
[T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T ITITT T T I ]
[T T T T T T T T I I T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T I T ]
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T ITITT T T I ]
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T TT TT T T T T

E PROPOSED UNIT 2 DETACHED
3 SCALE 1:50 @ A1

i

MATERIALS

A - BRICKWORK

B - VERTICAL TIMBER SYNTHETIC
BOARDING

C - SLATE TILES.

/E "\ PROPOSED UNIT 2 DETACHED

[T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T T T T T I T T T I I T
[TT T T T T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T TT T TTTTTTTTITITTITTIT T ]
[T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T I T I T T T I T T
[TT T T T T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T TTTTTTTTITITTITITT T ]
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T TT T I T T
[T T T T T I AN T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T T I T T I T T TITTIT T T
[T T T T TP T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T TTTT I T T I T
[TTTT T T I T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T T T T T ITITITITTITITTIT I T
[T T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T TTTTTITTT T T
[TT T T T T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TTTTTITITT I T T ]l
[T T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T LT T T T T I T I T T T I T T T T I T
[TT T T T T T T T T I T T T T T T T TT IR TTTTTTTTTTTITITTITTIT I ]

[TTTTTTITITTTTTTIT I ]

LTI T T T ITTTITTTTTTT]

2379

5608

\4_/ scaetso@At

/E\ PROPOSED UNIT 2 DETACHED

W SCALE 1:50 @ A1

9000
1
{ 3240 i
N\ ¥
£ | BED
S
- L]
T
BATH
d 2000
ﬁg% A

6000

/ P\ PROPOSED UNIT 2 DETACHED
200/ SCALE 1:50 @ A1

/E\ PROPOSED UNIT 2 DETACHED

\2/ SCALE 1:50 @ A1

AMENDED

REVISIONS

Rev [owre | oEscreTion CHECKED | APPROVED.

o |20m1 | pLainG appLicaTION

@ |1 {pusiinG sepcaTION
ELEVATIONS TO DETACHED UNIT.

cuenr

PROJECT TITLE
PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING TITLE
PROPOSED PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
DETACHED UNIT 2

(© ANTHONY SNOWDEN ARCHITECT 2020

scaLE
AS SHOWN
DRAVING NO. Rev.

21-13-101 02



june cox_14
Text Box
PA/2021/1224 Proposed plans and elevations (detached) (not to scale)


PA/2021/1224 Proposed plans and elevations (semi-detached) (not to scale)

T
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TTITTTTTITTITTITITTITTIT]
[T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T LT T T T T I T T T T I T T I T I T T T T T T I I ITTIIT T ]
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TTTTTTTTTTITI I T
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TP T T T T T T T T T T T T TTTTTTTTTTIT I T
[TTT T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T T T T LT T T T T T I T T T T T T I T I TTITITTITIT I I
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TP T T T T T T T T T T TTTTTTTTTTTTITIT I T
[TTT T T T I T T T T T T T T T T I T T T I T T T T LT T T T T T I T T T T T T IT I TTITITTITIT I I
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TP T T T T T T T T T T TT T TT T T [TTTTTTT T
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T LT T T T T T T TT T T I TT T TRy TTTTTTITTT]
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T LT T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T NPT T T T TTT T
[TT T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T LT T T T T T T T T T T T TTTTTTTTTTITITTT]
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T LT T T T T I T T T T I T T I T T I T T T T T T I I ITTIIT T T
[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TTTTTTTTTTTTTITTT ]

i R

[TTTTTT I A TTT T T I TTTTTTTITTITT]

EEErTF T I PP PP P e L T T T PP PP P TSI T - PP PP E R TS ST I

5 e e ey ey e e e e e ey e s ey e e gy ey By e

:':FE i i f

/E "\ PROPOSED UNIT 1 SEMI DETACHED

\1_/ scalE1s0 @At

Il

/E "\ PROPOSED UNIT 1 SEMI DETACHED
NEW

SCALE 1:50 @ A1

MATERIALS

-U A~ BRICKWORK
B - VERTICAL TIMBER SYNTHETIC
m BOARDING
; ; C-SLATE TILES
m 11700
- = 5
EE
en i (== i
T /E\ PROPOSED UNIT 1 SEMI DETACHED
HALL HALL it _ W SCALE 1:50 @ A1
| N

Revsons
v [oe Josscueron Gece o
A = o [ | wrianon |
VW, B ) I v e
A o oo | o OSMGE

5050

KITCHEN KITCHEN
LOUNGE| LOUNGE

o

cuient

PROJECT TITLE
PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

/ P\ PROPOSED UNIT 1 SEMI DETACHED @

100 SCALE 1:50 @ A1

DRAWING TITLE
PROPOSED PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
SEMI DETACHED UNIT 1

(© ANTHONY SNOWDEN ARCHITECT 2020

SCALE.

/E "\ PROPOSED UNIT 1 SEMI DETACHED AS SHOWN

2/ scalE1s0 @A v P
21-13-102 04



june cox_15
Text Box
PA/2021/1224 Proposed plans and elevations (semi-detached) (not to scale)


Agenda Item 5f

APPLICATION NO PA/2022/653

APPLICANT Mr Rupert Padgett

DEVELOPMENT Outline planning permission to erect a dwelling with all matters
reserved for subsequent consideration

LOCATION Land off Belshaw Lane, Belton

PARISH Belton

WARD Axholme Central

CASE OFFICER Alan Redmond

SUMMARY Refuse permission

RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Support by Belton Parish Council

REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework:

Chapter 2 — Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

North Lincolnshire Local Plan: Policies RD2, LC12, H5, H8, HE9, T2, T19, LC14, DS1,
DS7, DS14 and DS16 apply.

North Lincolnshire Core Strategy: Policies CS1, CS2, CS3, CS5, CS6, CS7, CS8, CS17,
CS18 and CS19 apply.

North Lincolnshire Housing and Employment Land Allocations Development Plan
Document

Consultation Draft North Lincolnshire Local Plan: The Draft Plan may be a material
consideration, where its policies are relevant. Applying paragraph 48 of the NPPF, the
decision maker may give some weight to the Reg 19 Plan (as the 2nd draft) where its
policies are relevant, but this is still of limited weight whilst consultation/amendments are

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 153



taking place and the extent to which there may still be unresolved objections is currently
unknown.

National policy and guidance (material consideration)
e National Planning Practice Guidance

e National Design Guide (2019)

e National Design Code (2021)

CONSULTATIONS

Highways: No objections subject to a condition.

Drainage (Lead Local Flood Authority): No objections, but recommend an informative
with regard to a potential watercourse running through the site.

Environmental Protection: No objections subject to appropriate investigation for
contaminants and control on occupation of the property.

Water Level Management Board: No objections to the proposal. The Board-maintained
Stecking Drain, an open watercourse, exists to the south-west of the site, to which byelaws
and the Land Drainage Act 1991 apply. Advice given on the consenting regime with regard
to the watercourse.

PARISH COUNCIL

Supports this application.

PUBLICITY

Site notice posted; no comments received.
ASSESSMENT

The proposal

The proposal is for outline planning permission to erect a dwelling with all matters reserved
for subsequent consideration on the site of an existing agricultural business, which includes
a recently added agricultural building. The applicant states that the new dwelling is
essential for the development of his business.

Material considerations

Planning law requires applications for planning permission to be determined in accordance
with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Here, the
development plan comprises the North Lincolnshire Local Plan 2003, the Core Strategy
2011 and the Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD.

e Principle of development

e Essential functional need

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 154



e Visual amenity

e Residential amenity
e Highway safety.
Principle

The application site is outside the settlement boundary of Belton and is therefore
considered within open countryside. New residential development outside settlement
boundaries is covered by saved policy RD2 of the local plan.

Saved policy RD2 does not specifically cover dwellings for agricultural workers, as this was
covered by policy RD11, which is not a saved policy. Criterion i) of the policy permitted
development within the countryside where it is essential to the efficient operation of
agriculture or forestry.

Saved policy H5 covers new residential development, which requires development to be
located within settlements or to represent infill.

The combined effect of Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
and Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 is that a planning application
should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Policies RD2 and H5 are not considered up to date with the NPPF as these policies apply a
restriction on residential development outside of the built framework and as the adopted
local plan only considered growth up to 2013, housing need beyond that date was not
accommodated. As such it is considered that these policies should be given reduced weight
in the decision-making process.

Paragraph 80 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out permissible
development in rural areas where one or more of the criteria of the policy are satisfied.
Criterion A provides for new rural dwellings where there is an essential need for a rural
worker, including those taking majority control of a farm business, to live permanently at or
near their place of work in the countryside.

It is considered that, in principle, the proposal could represent appropriate development
within the countryside providing an essential need can be demonstrated.

Essential need

The Planning Practice Guidance (the PPG) sets out that the functional need and the degree
to which there is confidence that the enterprise will be viable for the foreseeable future are
both factors that may be relevant when considering whether there is an essential need for a
rural worker.

The application is accompanied by a planning statement which provides supporting
information on the essential need the proposed dwelling would allow for a permanent
presence on the site.

The need for this presence is stated as follows:

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 155



‘The enterprise requires a permanent presence throughout the year. Without this there
could be serious risk of vandalism, theft and more importantly, material damage to, or loss
of, essential equipment and produce, vital for the continued success of the business. The
nature of some of Mr Padgett’s activities require immediate access to machinery at any
time of day or night. The remote location is desirable as least possible disturbance or delay
will be caused. Immediate response facility is a requirement for the River Authority and
Scottish Power.’

The statement advises that the applicant is currently farming a total of 62 acres of his own
crops. He additionally takes straw from a further 12 acres at harvest and is responsible for
plant care of another 100 acres. He also cuts hedges across the local area of a further 300
acres of farmland, and works co-operatively with other local farmers and landowners. The
applicant also has contracts with Belton Parish Council and North Lincolnshire Council
mowing grass verges and amenity areas. He also is on 24-hour call for Scottish Power to
assist with anticipated or current emergencies. His work also extends to ground
maintenance work for Scottish Power. The applicant has the opportunity to work for the
Severn Trent River Authority, but this will also require him to give immediate response in
event of emergencies. The machinery employed has a replacement value of £200,000 and
Mr Padgett has also invested £50,000 in his new building.

Along with paragraph 80 of the NPPF, this is supported by advice in the National Planning
Policy Guidance under paragraph 10 which states the following:

Considerations that it may be relevant to take into account when applying paragraph 79a of
the NPPF could include:

e evidence of the necessity for a rural worker to live at, or in close proximity to, their place
of work to ensure the effective operation of an agricultural, forestry or similar land-based
rural enterprise (for instance, where farm animals or agricultural processes require on-
site attention 24-hours a day and where otherwise there would be a risk to human or
animal health or from crime, or to deal quickly with emergencies that could cause
serious loss of crops or products);

e the degree to which there is confidence that the enterprise will remain viable for the
foreseeable future;

e whether the provision of an additional dwelling on site is essential for the continued
viability of a farming business through the farm succession process;

e whether the need could be met through improvements to existing accommodation on
the site, providing such improvements are appropriate taking into account their scale,
appearance and the local context; and

¢ in the case of new enterprises, whether it is appropriate to consider granting permission
for a temporary dwelling for a trial period.

The essential need to be on site needs to be an existing need, and whilst the future
expansion of the business is not doubted, the essential functional need has to be
established on the current operations at or from the site.

The statement of need focuses on two elements: response times to emergencies and
security of the agricultural equipment.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 156



The applicant lives approximately 650m by road from the application site; there is no
information as to why this dwelling is no longer suitable for the continued operation of the
business. By vehicle this would only be a few minutes’ drive from the application site.
Having spoken with the applicant, he advises that this property is owned by his parents.

No evidence has been provided to suggest that rural crime from the premises has been an
issue, and no information is provided as to how alternative security measures would not be
suitable. Furthermore, this is a recently erected storage building, built by the applicant for
the purpose it is now used and crime must have been a consideration when deciding to
locate the storage building in this location. Whilst the NPPG does identify crime as possible
justification for a rural dwelling, given there is no evidence of this being an issue for the
property, this can only be given very limited weight in assessing the functional need.

The statement claims that a permanent presence is required on site to respond to
emergencies which arise from contracts with Scottish Power. No information has been
provided on the nature or frequency of these emergencies, or why a presence on site is
required. Therefore, this can be given little weight.

The statement goes on to mention future proposals for the wider site and future contracts
with Severn Trent Water. Whilst there is no reason to doubt this, the application has to be
assessed on the essential functional need to be on site as the rural business operates now.
It is considered that the policy test for a permanent dwelling is a clearly established,
existing, essential functional need, and it has not been demonstrated that there is an
essential need for a new dwelling to accommodate a rural worker on the site. The
development is therefore contrary to policies RD1 and H5 of the local plan. These policies
seek to ensure, amongst other things, that new build dwellings in the open countryside are
necessary and an essential need can be justified. It would also be contrary to paragraph 80
of the National Planning Policy Framework which seeks to avoid isolated new homes in the
countryside.

Visual amenity

The application site is within an Area of Historic Landscape Interest as identified by saved
policy LC14. Policy LC14 states that within this area development will not be permitted
which would destroy, damage or adversely affect the character, appearance or setting of
the historic landscape, or any of its features.

This is an application for outline planning permission, with all matters reserved for future
consideration. No indicative layout or elevations have been provided. The site contains a
large agricultural building, which was recently erected, and the proposal is sited close to the
agricultural building.

It is considered that an appropriately designed property could be achieved. As the proposal
would be related to a rural enterprise, thereby restricting the location of the dwelling to
within the site of operation, it is considered that the proposal would be unlikely to harm the
historic landscape.

Residential amenity

The nearest residential property is approximately 125 metres to the east of the application
site. Given the nature of the proposal, and the separation distances, it is not considered that
the proposal will have any implications, in terms of residential amenity, on neighbouring
properties.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 157



As the application is in outline, with no indicative layout, it is considered that an appropriate
scheme could be achieved which would provide an acceptable standard of amenity for
future occupiers.

Highway safety

The site is accessed from an existing gated farm track off Belshaw Lane, which is an
unmade road.

There would be sufficient area within the site to provide parking. The highway authority has
considered the access and no objections have been raised. It is therefore considered that
an appropriate scheme could be achieved as part of any reserved matters submission.

Flood risk and drainage

The application site is located within flood zone 1. Sites in Flood Zone 1 are identified as
having less than a 0.1% chance of flooding (least at risk).

An open watercourse runs to the south-west of the site which is maintained by the Isle of
Axholme and North Nottinghamshire Water Level Management Board. No objections have
been raised to the proposal, however details of the consent regime regarding the
watercourse are provided.

The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has considered the application, and again no
objections have been raised. It has, however, been identified that the proposed
development site is bounded by, or has running through it, a watercourse (surface water
pipe/culvert or ditch). Following inspection, the watercourse may need to be cleared,
replaced, protected or diverted by the landowner at their expense in accordance with their
riparian responsibilities. An easement adjacent to the watercourse may need to be provided
for future maintenance.

It is also recommended that the applicant considers upsizing the pipe network increasing
storage around the development to cater for more intense storm conditions. Although this is
not a requirement in terms of surface water flood risk compliance, it would be good practice
to ensure an increased level of resilience for the development and its future occupiers.

Conclusion

It has not been demonstrated that there is an essential need for a new dwelling to
accommodate a rural worker on the site. The development is therefore contrary to policies
RD1 and H5 of the local plan which seek to ensure, amongst other things, that new build
dwellings in the open countryside are necessary and an essential need can be justified. The
proposal is also contrary to paragraph 80 of the National Planning Policy Framework which
seeks to avoid isolated new homes in the countryside.

RECOMMENDATION Refuse permission for the following reasons:

It has not been demonstrated that there is an essential need for a new dwelling to
accommodate a rural worker on the site. The development is therefore contrary to policies
RD1 and H5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan. These policies seek to ensure, amongst
other things, that new build dwellings in the open countryside are necessary and an
essential need can be justified. It would also be contrary to paragraph 80 of the National
Planning Policy Framework which seeks to avoid isolated new homes in the countryside.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 158



Informative

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 159



|
30 60 90 120 150 m
Pond ‘

=
@
=
o

Northferry Fa

=

rm

|
/
Pond
/
North
Lincolnshire
LC14 Isle of Axholme Area of Special Historic Landscape Interest ; 4 Council
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560

PA/2022/653



PA/2022/653 Indicative layout (not to scale)

T9T abed

Rupert padgett

1
Metres

PRRHENIE ) Plan Produced for; Rupert padgett

Date Producsd: 23 Jul 2020
Plan Reference Number TOROM20205181608796
Scala: 11250 @ A4
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 OS 100042766



june cox_16
Text Box
PA/2022/653 Indicative layout (not to scale)


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5¢g

APPLICATION NO PA/2022/765
APPLICANT Mr D Jennings
DEVELOPMENT Planning permission to make alterations and extensions to

existing dwelling to create additional accommodation, including
ground-floor annexe

LOCATION 25 North Street, Owston Ferry, DN9 1RT
PARISH Owston Ferry

WARD Axholme South

CASE OFFICER Deborah Oikeh

SUMMARY Grant permission subject to conditions
RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Departure from the development plan
REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework: 78

North Lincolnshire Local Plan: DS1, DS5, T2, T19, RD2, RD10, DS14, DS16
North Lincolnshire Core Strategy: CS1, CS5, CS19

CONSULTATIONS

Highways: No objections or comments.

Drainage (Lead Local Flood Authority): No objections or comments.

Archaeology: No objection subject to standard conditions securing the use of appropriate
traditional building materials in accordance with policy LC14 of the local plan.

Environmental Protection: Recommends a pre-commencement condition relating to
contamination.

PUBLICITY

Advertised by site notice. One comment has been received regarding the boundary line.
ASSESSMENT

Planning history

PA/2007/1779: Planning permission to convert a barn to a dwelling with associated
alterations and erect a replacement garage (re-submission of
PA/2007/0886) — approved 19/12/2007

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 163



PA/2011/0423: Planning permission to convert a barn into a dwelling with associated
alterations and erect a replacement garage — refused 19/07/2013

PA/2016/753: Planning permission to erect an agricultural building — approved
05/08/2016.

Proposal

This proposal relates to the alteration and extension of an existing dwelling following the
demolition of existing outbuildings. Associated works will include the erection of new brick
walls to the side and front and refurbishment of the driveway. The application site
comprises a two-storey dwelling converted from an agricultural barn as well as other
detached outbuildings. The dwelling is sited gable-end to North Street in Owston-Ferry and
can be accessed via a private drive.

Site constraints
e Within flood zone 2/3a Fluvial as set out in the North Lincolnshire SFRA 2011

e Outside the development boundary for Owston Ferry as set out in the Housing &
Employment Land Allocations DPD (HELA DPD) 2016

e Within the Area of Special Historic Landscape Interest of the Isle of Axholme (local plan
policy LC14.

Main considerations

e Impact upon character and appearance
¢ Impact upon residential amenity

e Impact upon highway safety

¢ Flood risk and drainage

¢ Land contamination.

Principle of development

Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy states, ‘...Rural settlements will be supported as thriving
sustainable communities, with a strong focus on retaining and enhancing existing local
services to meet local needs. Development will be limited and should consider levels of
local service provision, infrastructure capacity and accessibility. Any development that takes
place should be in keeping with the character and nature of the settlement.” The policy also
states, ‘In the countryside, support will be given to development that promotes rural
economic diversification and small-scale employment opportunities, particularly on
previously used land or in existing rural buildings.’

Policy CS2 states, ‘Any development that takes place outside the defined development
limits of settlements or in rural settlements in the countryside will be restricted. Only
development which is essential to the functioning of the countryside will be allowed to take
place. This might include uses such as those related to agriculture, forestry or other uses

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 164



which require a countryside location or which will contribute to the sustainable development
of the tourist industry.’

However, policy RD2 is supportive of proposals for the replacement, alteration and
extension of an existing dwelling in the open countryside, subject to an assessment of its
impact on the character or appearance of the open countryside or a nearby settlement in
terms of siting, scale, massing, design and use of materials.

Policy LC14 relates to the Area of Special Historic Landscape Interest and does support
development required to meet the socio-economic need, tourist, outdoor and recreation
needs of rural communities provided the design, siting and materials reflect the traditional
character of the buildings in the area and that of the historic landscape.

Policy RD10 also applies and states that proposals to replace, extend or alter dwellings in
the open countryside will only be permitted provided that [amongst other criteria] ‘(ii) the
volume of the proposed extension or alteration does not exceed that of the original dwelling
by 20%, exclusive of the normal permitted development rights, and the original dwelling
forms the dominant visual feature of the dwelling as extended'.

The proposals will be in excess of the recommended volume by about 30%; however, if
permitted development rights were to be exercised, the volume of additional
extensions/outbuilding may exceed 30%. It is worth noting that the outbuildings are in a
state of disrepair and so will need to be replaced or removed in any case. In addition, the
proposed extension will not be subservient enough to view the original dwelling as the
dominant visual feature. This is a trade-off for flood risk mitigation. As the area is set within
SFRA flood zone 2/3a fluvial, Environment Agency standing advice for householder
extensions requires floor levels within the proposed development to be set no lower than
existing levels and flood proofing of the proposed development to be incorporated where
appropriate. As a consequence, the floor level of the proposed extension could not be set
lower than the existing and raised terraces/platforms are included in the flood mitigation
strategy.

North Street and the nearby settlement is considered sustainable given the level of service
and infrastructural facilities in the area. The proposed design and materials are also
considered sympathetic and respectful of the character of surrounding buildings and the
landscape. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in principle.

Impact upon character and appearance

Policy CS5 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy and policy DS1 of the local plan are
both concerned with the quality of design of a proposal and the impact on the appearance
and character of the area. Policy CS5 states, ‘...All new development in North Lincolnshire
should be well designed and appropriate for their context. It should contribute to creating a
sense of place’ and ‘Design which is inappropriate to the local area or fails to maximise
opportunities for improving the character and quality of the area will not be acceptable.’
Furthermore, policy RD10, paragraphs (iii) and (iv) specifically relate to the character and
appearance of development in rural areas. Paragraph (iii) requires all new construction to
be of a high standard of design and in particular to reflect the architecture of the building
and/or vernacular styles in the locality and paragraph (iv) requires the appearance or use of
the dwelling as replaced, extended or altered to not adversely affect the amenity of local
residents or the appearance of the locality.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 165



The proposal will have a pitched roof and gable features. The scale, design and materials
of the proposed extension are considered proportional and sympathetic. There is a mix of
properties along North Street, ranging from two storeys to bungalows, with traditional and
modern housing designs. Most of the houses on the road are not built in similar style and
architectural design; however, the design of the extension will be in keeping with the
character of the dwelling and surrounding area. The site is within the LC14 area. The
council’s archaeologist has been consulted and considers the proposal would not adversely
affect the character of the historic landscape providing that the building and materials are
appropriate to the area. A condition is recommended to this effect and would be attached to
any permission granted.

Impact upon residential amenity

Policies DS1 and DS5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan are concerned with residential
extensions. Policy DS5 specifically applies to residential extensions and states that
planning applications for residential extensions and the erection of garages, outbuildings,
walls and other structures will be allowed provided that the proposal does not unreasonably
reduce sunlight or daylight, or result in overshadowing, overbearing impact or loss of
privacy to adjacent dwellings. The proposals should also be sympathetic in design, scale
and materials to the existing dwelling and its neighbours.

The application site is considerably set back from adjacent sites and dwellings along North
Street. The proposal would be directly abutted on either side by driveways and partly
screened by trees. As the openings to the extensions are front and side-facing, the amenity
of the nearest dwelling to the rear of the proposal would not be adversely impacted. Given
the aforementioned, it is considered that its impact upon neighbouring amenity will not be
detrimental.

Impact upon highways

Policy T2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan states that all development should be served
by a satisfactory access. Policy T19 is concerned with parking provision, as well as general
highway safety.

The application site can be accessed via a private driveway along North Street and has an
existing parking area. The council’'s highways department has been consulted on the
proposal and has raised no objections.

Drainage and flood risk

Policy CS19 of the Core Strategy is concerned with flood risk, whilst DS14 and DS16 of the
local plan are concerned with flood risk, drainage and foul water. In this regard, the
applicant has incorporated measures to mitigate flood risk in the design of the proposal.
The Lead Local Flood Authority has been consulted and has no objections to the proposal.

Land contamination
Given the nature of the previous use of the site (coal house and workshop), there is a

potential for land contamination. The council’s Environmental Protection department has
recommended conditions to mitigate any potential impact.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 166



Conclusion

The proposal is for the alteration and extension of an existing dwelling following demolition
of outbuildings on the site. The site is in a relatively sustainable location with appropriate
infrastructure and local services. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval
given that it is a small-scale development.

Pre-commencement condition

The pre-commencement condition included in the recommendation has been agreed with
the agent/applicant.

RECOMMENDATION Grant permission subject to the following conditions:

1.
The development must be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason
To comply with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Location plan and existing plans CWX-JEN-2022-01B
Proposed site plan CWX-JEN-2022-101C
Proposed elevation plan CWX-JEN-2022-02C.

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.
The materials and finishes of the new areas of brickwork shall match the remainder of the
building in colour and texture.

Reason

To protect the character of the building and that of the historic landscape in accordance
with policies CS5 of the Core Strategy, and LC7 and LC14 of the North Lincolnshire Local
Plan.

4.

Unless otherwise agreed by the local planning authority, development other than that
required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not
commence until parts 1 to 4 below have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is
found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site
affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the local planning
authority in writing until part 4 has been complied with in relation to that contamination.

Part 1: Site Characteristics

A Phase 1 desk study shall be carried out to identify and evaluate all potential sources of
contamination and the impacts on land and/or controlled waters, relevant to the site. The

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 167



desk study shall establish a 'conceptual model' of the site and identify all plausible pollutant
linkages. Furthermore, the assessment shall set objectives for intrusive site investigation
works/Quantitative Risk Assessment (or state if none required). Two full copies of the desk
study and a non-technical summary shall be submitted to the local planning authority for
approval prior to proceeding to further site investigation.

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the
planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature
and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The
contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority.
The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a
written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the approval
in writing of the local planning authority. The report of the findings must include:

0] a survey of the extent, scale, and nature of contamination;
(i) an assessment of the potential risks to:
- human health;

- property (existing or proposed), including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland, and service lines and pipes;

adjoining land;

groundwaters and surface waters;

ecological systems;

archaeological sites and ancient monuments;
(i)  an appraisal of remedial options, and a proposal of the preferred option(s).

This must be conducted in accordance with Environment Agency’s Land Contamination
Risk Management (LCRM) guidance October 2020.

Part 2: Submission of Remediation Scheme

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use
by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the
natural and historical environment must be prepared and is subject to the approval in
writing of the local planning authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken,
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

Part 3: Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to
the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation,
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The local planning
authority must be given two weeks' written notification of commencement of the remediation

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 168



scheme works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme, a verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the
approval in writing of the local planning authority.

Part 4: Reporting of Unexpected Contamination

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to
the local planning authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with the requirements of Part 1, and where remediation is necessary a
remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of Part 2,
which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority. Following
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report
must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority
in accordance with Part 3.

Reason
To ensure the site is safe for future users and construction workers.

Informative

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 169



“'

bi L5

LC14 Isle of Axholme Area of Special Historic Landscape Interest Lincolnshire
) pevelopment Boundary / Council

PA/20221765 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560



01856 BE8 022
Iops_com

LKP L ann{aght

%

. g UK
PA/2022/765 Existing plans (not to scale) () g
=
== == j
Q
E)D%ISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
-
Q
«Q
@
|_\
\l
|_\
]
i I I | rﬁE
:
l ( .“Mm‘m‘“\“%wm\HHH\HHH\HHHHH\HHHHH%

I

i |

i i

EXISTING ROOF PLAN E)ﬂgISTING SITE PLAN

NORTHSTREET

s portoar (100050138)

Cadworx Ltd
Architectural design and 3d Visualisations

Linden House, Bracken Hill Road

East Lound, Nr Doncaster DN9 2LR

tel 01427 753232
danny@3dcadworx.com

+ Project
« ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSIONS TO EXISTING
« DWELLING TO CREATE ADDITIONAL ACCOMMODATION .
. INCLUDING GROUND FLOOR ANNEX

* 25 NORTH STREET
* OWTSON FERRY

Title:

+  EXISTING PLANS

Scale Date Drawn
1:100 @ A1 032022 0s
Drawing No.

CWX-JEN-2022-01B



june cox_17
Text Box
PA/2022/765 Existing plans (not to scale)


PA/2022/765 Proposed plans (not to scale)

At
cbiangs

Lneoteusingbas
oo N\,

g
o

ot
o

I i
e 1}
'5) 7m = %
L e o r K e
g -
H Fal
. = g ﬂ N
13
"
S
a—
20
Batvoon
) ™
5 ind yLi
- |
T & Fonoiso Garten |
8 i i
i
Parkingarea !
|
Kichen &l }
w0 i
—aa |
7 °T rzzre] T — L
- 5 Stops 0y H Retaring bick wall
Exsing autbuldng
obe demaished
m PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
(D  roooRisKmaxTRiX
As the application site s in Flood Zone 3 the floor levels within the proposed development
will be set no lower than the existing levels AND, flood proofing of the proposed development
H will be incorporated ppropriate in line with the guid: tained in the government
I document 'Improving the Flood Performance of New Buildings: Flood Resilient Construction"
Pl A e i

T —

Reiing vl

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

10

North Street

| |
==
satvoom
e sy s (S == secooms
o
e
w
== =

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

EEI;OPOSED SITE PLAN

0

PROPOSED SECTION

-

NORTH STREET

iy ol
s foctter”

Cadworx Ltd
Architectural design and 3d Visualisations

Linden House, Bracken Hill Road
East Lound, Nr Doncaster DN9 2LR

tel 01427 753232
danny@3dcadwonc.com

« ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSIONS TO EXISTING
+ DWELLING TO CREATE ADDITIONAL ACCOMMODATION

* 25NORTH STREET
+ OWTSON FERRY

Project

INCLUDING GROUND FLOOR ANNEX

Title:

+  PROPOSED PLANS .
Scale Date rawn
1:100 @ At 032022 0§
Drawing

g No.
CWX-JEN-2022-101C



june cox_18
Text Box
PA/2022/765 Proposed plans (not to scale)


R A
A e P

I

RI;'\;OPOSED SIDE ~ SOUTH EAST ~ ELEVATION PROPOSED FRONT ~ SOUTH WEST ~ ELEVATION

g
L s
g

Aoont
Aot oubiangs

atbangs

s
ol

PROPOSED SIDE ~ NORTH WEST ~ ELEVATION PROPOSED REAR ~ NORTH EAST ~ ELEVATION

Resiingval

Rosinngval

Exsigoutbiing

oo oo
PROPOSED VIEWS
CadworxLtd
Architectural design and 3d Visualisations
Linden House, Bracken Hill Road
V East Lound, Nr Doncaster DN9 2LR
= ol tel 01427 753232
danny@3dcadworx.com
i + Project .
« ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSIONS TO EXISTING .
. DWELLING TO CREATE ADDITIONAL ACCOMMODATION
N . INCLUDING GROUND FLOOR ANNEX .
o i o
e oS ppe it 50 * ZNORTH STREET :
G2pBetveenetmal il and sty e T, + OWTSON FERRY .
~fagy,
. Title: .
+  PROPOSED ELEVATIONS .
Scale Date Drawn
1100 @Al 03:2022 0s

PA/2022/765 Proposed elevations (not to scale)



june cox_19
Text Box
PA/2022/765 Proposed elevations (not to scale)


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5h

APPLICATION NO PA/2022/799
APPLICANT Mr Gareth Heggie
DEVELOPMENT Planning permission to erect a two-storey rear extension to the

dwelling and a two-storey double garage, and carry out internal
alterations and associated works (including the demolition of the
existing outbuildings)

LOCATION 57 Main Street, Saxby All Saints, Brigg, DN20 0PZ
PARISH Saxby All Saints

WARD Brigg and Wolds

CASE OFFICER Jess Hill

SUMMARY Grant permission subject to conditions
RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Objection by Saxby All Saints Parish Council
REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE

POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework: Section 12 (Achieving well-designed places)
North Lincolnshire Local Plan: Policies DS1, DS5, LC12, HE2, HE3, HE5

North Lincolnshire Core Strategy: Policies CS1, CS2, CS3, CS5, CS6
Supplementary Planning Guidance: SPG1 Design Guidance for House Extensions
CONSULTATIONS

Highways: Support. Should permission be granted, advise conditions to prevent any loose
material spilling onto the highway and requiring the access to be completed before the
vehicle parking and turning facility is brought into use.

Drainage (Lead Local Flood Authority): No comments or objections.
Tree Officer:

This site is within the conservation area, and there are trees on the site and on adjacent
properties that are offered protection because of this, including some not shown in the
indicative plans right next to the drive as can be seen on aerial photos via Google
Streetview taken October 2021.

An arboricultural report to BS5837:2012 should be requested to give full information on the
locations, size, retention values and root protection areas around trees, and then further as
to which trees would be affected, and any mitigation required to resolve any issues as well
as to determine the location of development and attached services taking account of the
report information gathered.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 175



Conservation Officer:
First response (30 May 2022)
Assessment

The majority of the buildings in the conservation area are small, two-storey cottages. Some
of these properties were built in the 18th century as single-storey houses, but were raised
to two storeys in the 19th century.

These buildings face the highway, and are either located on the back edge of the pavement
or slightly back from the street, with small front gardens enclosed by hedges. Typically,
these cottages are detached brick whitewashed buildings of three bays with a central door,
timber multi-paned sliding sash windows, timber boarded doors, and orange clay pantile
roofs. These have prominent central chimney stacks. The colour washing, or more recent
painting, of these brick buildings contributes, in part, to Saxby All Saints’ particular
character and appearance.

57 Main Street is one of these small cottages and as such it has been designated as a
building of townscape merit in the adopted Saxby Conservation Area Appraisal.

This means it makes a positive contribution to the character of the conservation area as
described above.

These small-scale properties are an intrinsic characteristic of buildings in this area and are
part of the historic street scene.

57 Main Street is clearly identifiable as one of these cottages, a historic property, with its
aged appearance and intimate proportions. 57 Main Street is prominent in the street scene
and the extension will be visible when looking from both the north and south along Main
Street.

It is also within the setting of The Lodge, listed grade Il, immediately opposite. Lodge
Cottage is one of the oldest surviving buildings in the village, with a timber-framed structure
being encased in later brick skin. The high, steeply-pitched pantile roof with catslide dormer
and tumbled brickwork gable gives The Lodge its distinctive appearance.

The proposed alterations will also impact on the setting of this listed building. Section 66 of
the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas Act) 1990 imposes a ‘General duty as
respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions to special regard to the desirability
of preserving the building or its setting.’

The adopted policy regarding townscape merit buildings in the Saxby All Saints
Supplementary Planning Guidance states:

e North Lincolnshire Council will resist applications to demolish all or a substantial part of
any building identified within this appraisal as a ‘Building of Townscape Merit'.
Additionally, alterations and extensions to these buildings will have to be particularly
sensitively designed and take into account their historic and architectural interest.

e All existing traditional architectural features will be retained on these buildings.

Alterations will need to incorporate matching designs and materials appropriate to the
age and character of the building.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 176



The proposal also needs to comply with Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and
Conservation Areas Act) 1990 and council policy HE2 which states that ‘development
proposals should preserve and enhance the character of conservation areas.’

In principal there is no objection to extending the building and having a new garage but |
recommend the following design changes so that it is more sympathetic to this sensitive
historic location and better complies with the above policy.

| recommend that the extension is stepped in from the edge of the building as seen from the
north-western elevation. This allows the original form of the cottage to be seen and
interpreted. | would also recommend that the roof height is slightly lowered below the
existing roofline of the cottage for similar reasons.

| would also recommend that the design of the two dormers on the south-east elevation is
altered. They are quite large and not of a style seen on traditional buildings in Saxby and
will stand out and draw the eye away from the street scene which includes the building of
townscape merit and the grade Il listed lodge. | recommend that the dormers are altered to
a ‘sledge style dormer’ that have been put on the north-west elevation of the proposed
extension. This is the same style dormer on the listed lodge opposite. They are smaller and
more historically appropriate.

There is no objection to the demolition of the concrete garage as it has no historic merit.
Whilst the outhouse is of an age, there is no objection to its demolition as it's below the
115m3 threshold required for planning permission regarding demolition in conservation
areas.

Where there is an objection is the size of the new garage. It's a large two-storey double
garage virtually the same height as the principal cottage. It will stand out as large new build
and detract from the character of 57 Main Steet, a building of townscape merit, and the
historic street scene which includes The Lodge, grade Il listed, and another building of
townscape merit immediately to the south, no. 61. | therefore recommend that this garage is
reduced to a single-storey structure to mitigate the harm to the conservation area and the
nearby listed building.

Regarding the windows and doors, the application states double-glazed sash windows at
the front which is acceptable as is the use of Upvc windows to the rear which is in line with
conservation policy in the area. | would also recommend that the windows and doors at the
sides of the extension are timber as they are visible from the street. This needs to be
covered by condition.

Any approval should include a condition that scale drawings of the proposed windows and
doors with material specification are submitted for consideration before installation. Any
approval should include an additional condition that details of the facing and roofing
materials for the existing house and extension are submitted for consideration before
installation. (Justification see above legislation and policy)

Recommendation

The proposal should be amended as described to comply with section 72 of the Planning
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 and council policy HE2, or be refused.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 177



Second response (5 July 2022)

Further to my comments dated 30-05-07 the applicant has submitted amended plans for the
extension and the attached garage.

The extension has been amended as per the advice provided. The use of traditional sledge-
style dormers on the south-east elevation has been incorporated which are a more
traditional design suitable for the building and the adjacent listed building which has similar
dormers. These are seen from the street view and will ensure an appropriate traditional
appearance as you look towards the building from the southern part of the village.

The extension has been set back from the northern edge of the building and just below the
ridge height so that the original form of the cottage can be seen and interpreted as
recommended.

The extension has traditional tumbling on its gable and has traditional-styled multi-pane
windows, all of which will ensure it blends in with the traditional character of the village. The
extension is quite large but it is of a scale of similarly approved extensions recently in the
conservation area. In addition, it will not be seen in its entirety from the principal view from
the southern aspect in the street as it is set to one side of the building.

Considering this and its traditional appearance there is no objection to it. What is very
important is that the correct materials and detailing, i.e. windows and doors, are used on
the extension, and this can be controlled by appropriate conditions.

As previously stated, there is no objection to the demolition of the concrete garage as it has
no historic merit. Whilst the outhouse is of an age, there is no objection to its demolition as
it's below the 115m3 threshold required for planning permission regarding demolition in
conservation areas.

Regarding the proposed garage, the applicant has reduced it in height to reduce impact and
submitted details and cross-sections comparing it to the recently approved garage
immediately adjacent at no. 61. Whilst it is slightly larger it is set down at a lower ground
level and viewed from Main Street will be at the same height to the adjacent recently
approved garage and will have a similar impact. Therefore, as long as it is built using
traditional bricks and pantiles and traditionally-styled timber doors it will be acceptable for
this location in the conservation area.

Recommendation

There is no objection to the application subject to a series of conditions being included in
the application to control materials and detailing and it is recommended that the following
are included.

e That details of the facing and roofing materials for the extension and the garage are
submitted for consideration before installation.

e That a scale drawing of the proposed windows and doors with material specification on

the main house, 57 Main Street, the extension and the garage are submitted for
consideration before installation.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 178



e That the windows and doors on the main house frontage, 57 Main Street, and the side
elevations, i.e. the north and south elevations, on the proposed extension are
constructed from timber.

e That the front garage doors, i.e. west elevation, on the proposed garage are constructed
from timber.

Justification: Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas Act) 1990
and council policies HE2, CS6.

PARISH COUNCIL

First response (26 May 2022)

Objects on the following grounds:

1. The roofline on the extension is too high, i.e. above the existing roof.

2. The dormer windows are large and intrusive by overlooking the neighbouring property.

3. Concern regarding the amount of material that would be dug out for the patio and
double garage. Being on a spring line makes the property vulnerable to flooding as the
neighbouring property has experienced this year. This will be exacerbated by the
applicants already removing trees. It is hoped that a hydrology survey has been carried
out to investigate the potential issues that the spring line could cause.

4. Concern regarding the size of the garage and that the gym upstairs may be converted
into a granny flat in the future.

5. The removal of significant amounts of soil could cause subsidence. As an old cottage it
would have very shallow foundations.

6. The architectural plans are inconsistent — 1 window is missing from various drawings.
The scale is not clear.

7. Trees have been removed without planning permission.
8. Work has commenced on the roof without planning permission.

9. Out of character for the village. The PC would be keen to hear the views of the
Conservation Officer.

Second response (13 July 2022)
The parish council’'s previous comments still stand as valid to the amended application.
Third response (20 July 2022)

The parish council notes that there is no real/significant change to the plans initially
submitted and to which we had various objections.

We also note that whilst there have been some amendments submitted subsequent to the
initial application the amendments are not actually mirrored by any changes/updates in the

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 179



'Plan Notes' so that there is then some ambiguity and room for misinterpretation between
what the planning proposal is now requesting and the supporting documents provided.

We would like to see a definitive Final Plan, with accompanying detail and specifications
updated accordingly, of the planning proposal as it now being submitted, to ensure that
everyone knows and understands what the final proposal is, thus ensuring that there is then
no room for misunderstanding or misinterpretation of what might finally be approved.

As a parish council we would also like to understand how the NLC Conservation opinion
has changed, with regards design, size, proposed materials and landscape merit, when
there appears to have been virtually no change in any of these areas between the initial
application and that now being proposed.

Our objections to the application remain as before, and additionally above.
PUBLICITY

A site notice has been displayed. Sixteen comments have been received from members of
the public objecting to the proposals (six respondents having commented more than once).
Concerns raised relate to the following:

e |Issues of overlooking and privacy loss (windows on the side elevations and rear
elevation of the garage)

e The proposed garage and extension would be out of keeping with the design and
character of the existing dwelling.

e Concerns that the garage would result in noise as it features a gym (as a result of loud
music)

e Concerns regarding the retaining wall next to the gym
e Concerns relating to root damage of the conifer hedge

e Concerns that the garage design is not in keeping with the character of the conservation
area

e Concerns with the increased roof size and the fact that all water is going into land
drains, which increases the risk of flooding on the road

e Concerns relating to works that have already taken place (roof alterations, demolition,
soil moving).

ASSESSMENT
Site location and context

The site comprises a detached dwelling located to the east of Main Street within the middle
of Saxby All Saints. The dwelling is within the development limits of Saxby as identified by
the Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD 2016.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 180



Planning history

No previous planning applications have been submitted on the site.
Designations/constraints

Within the development limits of Saxby All Saints.

The site is within a conservation area and the site is opposite the grade Il listed Lodge
Cottage.

There are no Tree Protection Orders on or next to the site.
The site is located within SFRA Flood Zone 1.
Proposal

Permission is sought to erect a two-storey rear extension to the dwelling and a two-storey
detached double garage to the rear. The existing outbuildings are proposed to be
demolished and internal alterations are necessary to facilitate the proposal.

The main considerations of relevance in the assessment of this application include:
e the principle of development

e design and appearance (including heritage impact)

¢ residential amenity

o ftrees.

Principle of development

Householder extensions and alterations are acceptable in principle subject to there being
no harm to the character and appearance of the property through unsympathetic design or
harm to the amenity of neighbouring properties and residential areas. The site is within the
development boundary of Saxby All Saints, within a conservation area and near to listed
buildings on Main Street.

Design and appearance (including heritage impact)

Policies DS5 (Residential Extensions) and CS5 (Delivering Quality Design in North
Lincolnshire) are concerned with visual amenity. Policy DS5 states that proposals should be
sympathetic in design, scale and materials.

The site is within a conservation area and opposite the grade Il listed Lodge Cottage.

Policy CS6 (Historic Environment) sets out that the council will seek to protect, conserve
and enhance North Lincolnshire’s historic environment, including the character and setting
of conservation areas and listed buildings.

Policy HE2 (Development in Conservation Areas) sets out that proposals within
conservation areas should preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the area
and its setting.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 181



Policy HE5 (Development Affecting Listed Buildings) sets out that proposals that would
damage the setting of a listed building will be resisted.

Permission is sought to erect a two-storey rear extension to the dwelling and a two-storey
detached double garage to the rear.

The proposals have been amended to incorporate advice received from the council’s
Conservation Officer. It is considered, as a result of these amendments, that the design is
acceptable as set out below.

The two-storey extension measures 8.6m in length by 6.4m in width to create an L-shaped
layout for the dwelling. The extension has been set back from the northern edge of the
building and just below the ridge height so that the original form of the cottage can be seen
and interpreted, as per the advice of the Conservation Officer. The scale of the extension is
considered to be appropriate in terms of responding to the existing dwelling. As it is a rear
extension, it will not be seen in its entirety from the principal view from the southern aspect
in the street as it is set to one side of the building.

The extension incorporates a traditional appearance that responds to the context of the
conservation area. Sledge-style dormers are included on the south-east elevation which are
a more traditional design suitable for the building and the adjacent listed building which has
similar dormers. These are seen from the street view and will ensure an appropriate
traditional appearance as you look towards the building from the southern part of the
village.

The extension has traditional tumbling on its gable and has traditional-styled multi-pane
windows, all of which will ensure it blends in with the traditional character of the village.

The proposed detached two-storey garage to the rear of the dwelling has been reduced
slightly in height to reduce its impact on the street scene. The garage will sit it on lower
levels than the adjacent site to the south (no. 61), meaning that when viewed from Main
Street it will be at the same height as the adjacent recently approved garage at no. 61 and
will have a similar impact. The garage at no. 61 has not yet been built but has been
approved at a similar height to the garage under the current proposals. The two-storey
garage is large, however it is considered to be appropriate in terms of its impact on the
street scene, and as set out in the following section is not expected to result in
overshadowing of the adjacent property. A condition is recommended to ensure appropriate
materials are secured including traditional bricks and pantiles and traditionally-styled timber
doors. The proposed garage is therefore considered to be acceptable in this instance.

A suitable material palette is proposed which responds to the existing material palette and
surrounding context of the conservation area. As per the Conservation Officer's second
consultation response, conditions requiring further details relating to materials, windows
and doors are recommended to ensure the proposals respond to the conservation area
appropriately.

The proposed extension and garage is therefore considered to accord with policies HE2
and HE5 as the design responds to the context of the conservation area and the setting of
the opposite grade Il listed cottage.

Another aspect of the proposals includes the demolition of a concrete garage and
outhouse. Policy HE3 (Demolition in Conservation Areas) sets out the criteria against which

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 182



proposals for the demolition of buildings or structures within a conservation area will be
assessed, including:

€) it is proved to be wholly beyond viable repair; or
(b) it is incapable of reasonable beneficial use; or

(c) it is not of intrinsic architectural, historic or townscape importance and its removal or
replacement would enhance the appearance or character of the area; or

(d) its removal would allow the redevelopment or rehabilitation of an adjacent larger site
which is under used, neglected or derelict, providing this redevelopment would
enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area;

(e) sufficient information is provided to enable the impact of the proposal for demolition
or redevelopment on the conservation area to be assessed.

The demolition of the concrete garage is acceptable given it has no historic merit, as is the
demolition of the outhouse given its small size (it is below the 115m3 threshold required for
planning permission regarding demolition in conservation areas). The proposed demolition
is therefore considered to accord with policy HE3.

The proposed layout and materials are considered appropriate and the proposal is
therefore in accordance with policies HE2, HE3, HE5 and DS5 of the local plan, and CS5
and CS6 of the Core Strategy.

Residential amenity

Policy DS5 (Residential Extensions) states that planning applications for residential
extensions and the erection of garages, outbuildings, walls and other structures will be
allowed providing that the proposal does not unreasonably reduce sunlight or daylight, or
result in overshadowing, overbearing impact or loss of privacy to adjacent dwellings. The
proposals should also be sympathetic in design, scale and materials to the existing dwelling
and its neighbours.

61 Main Street is located approximately 21m to the south-east of the dwelling (taken from
the nearest building lines on both properties). York House is also approximately 21m to the
north-east of the dwelling.

The dormer windows on the first floor of the side elevations are considered to be suitably
positioned and of a suitable scale so as not to result in an unacceptable degree of
overlooking. There is still a separation distance of approximately 13m between the end of
the proposed extension and the frontage of York House which features a bay window.

Although the detached garage is proposed next to an approved, though as yet unbuilt,
garage at neighbouring 61 Main Street, this is not considered to result in overlooking given
no windows are proposed in the side elevation. A large window is proposed in the rear of
the garage, however this faces onto the rear garden and is angled away slightly from 61
Main Street. This is consistent with the approach taken for the extension that was approved
at 61 Main Street which also featured a large window in the rear elevation and a rear
balcony. The balcony on the rear elevation of the garage has also been removed to reduce
the potential for overlooking. Whether the approved garage on the adjacent plot is built or

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 183



not, the proposals are not considered to result in an acceptable impact in terms of
overlooking.

There are also considered to be suitable separation distances between the proposed
extension and the detached garage and the main residential dwellings around the site.

The proposal would not carry any unacceptable overbearing, overlooking or overshadowing
impacts that would be detrimental to the residential amenity rights of adjoining neighbours.
The proposal therefore accords with policy DS5 and SPG1.

Trees

The site is within a conservation area within which trees are afforded protection. An
Arboricultural Report has been submitted in response to the tree officer's request for a
survey to establish the quality of the trees on the site and any necessary mitigation as a
result of the proposals.

The main works that were considered to have a potential impact on trees included the re-
surfacing of the driveway.

The report identifies that there is a tree along the site’s eastern boundary (adjoining no. 61)
identified as T1 within the report which is considered to be of moderate quality. There is a
another tree identified as T2 further to the north on the plot of no. 61 and Tree T3 located to
the west of the site. Root protection areas have been identified and it is concluded that the
works would have an inconsequential impact on the trees. The findings are accepted and
the proposals are therefore considered to accord with policy LC12 (Protection of Trees,
Woodland and Hedgerows).

Conclusion

The proposed two-storey rear extension and detached garage are considered to be suitable
and in keeping with the character of the street scene.

RECOMMENDATION Grant permission subject to the following conditions:

1.
The development must be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Site Location Plan (RD: 5155/ 04 Rev B)
Proposed General Arrangement (RD: 5155/02 Rev H).

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 184



3.

Prior to the installation of new external windows and doors on the main house (57 Main
Street), the extension and the garage, scaled drawings, including material specifications,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development
shall proceed in accordance with the approved drawings.

Reason

To ensure the development does not detract from the setting of the listed building in
accordance with policies HE5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS6 of North
Lincolnshire’s Core Strategy.

4.

Prior to the commencement of works above ground, details of the facing and roofing
materials for the extension and garage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority.

Reason

To ensure that the development does not detract from the setting of the listed building in
accordance with policies HE5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS6 of North
Lincolnshire’s Core Strategy.

5.

No loose material shall be placed on any driveway or parking area within 10 metres of the
adopted highway unless measures are taken to the satisfaction of the local planning
authority to prevent the material from spilling onto the highway. Once agreed and
implemented these measures shall be retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

6.
The proposed new vehicle parking and turning facility shall not be brought into use until the
vehicular access serving it has been completed within highway limits.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

Informative 1
The development hereby granted planning permission requires works to be carried out
within the limits of the adopted (public) highway. Therefore:

- before ANY construction works take place within the limits of the highway you MUST
contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297000 to arrange for the
relevant permissions/licenses to be issued;

- before ANY service (utility) connections take place within the limits of the highway you

MUST contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297319 to arrange for
the relevant permissions/licenses to be issued.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 185



Informative 2

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 186



Y‘VA.-:‘ se 150

1T Tiavvi Hio

\‘—/ \\Y ///’
ouse v
[ ] [ ]

:
TN

House

Saxby Hall

- g

North
Lincolnshire
Council

O
) Development Boundary &

PA/2022I799 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560




PA/2022/799 Existing plans and elevations (not to scale)

d

Y

be

I

Ik 32123
(| 1321834
Ferer
T
Py
T

Front (S.W.) Elevation
—_—

I

””””” T HE

Block Plan

Rear (N.E.) Elevation
—_—

Side (S.E.) Elevation
—_—

—

—

I

Side (N.W.) Elevation
—_—

J ‘ ‘t&Eﬂ
\ Lobby /
S~
Bedroom // Bedroom
ithroom
First Floor Plan
P —
e =
Bl =
Kitchen =
—
Dining Living
\
I = I_— \
Ground Floor Plan
[

========

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

Typical Section
—_—

Ross Davy Associates
Pelham House, 1 Grosvenor Street,
Grimsby, N.E.Lincolnshire, DN32 OQH
Tel: 01472 347956
o Email design@rossdavyltd.co.uk
Web:  www.rossdavyltd.co.uk
Project Proposed Extension and Alterations
57 Main Street, Saxby All Saints,

For
Mr and Mrs Heggie

DDDDDD 9Title  EXISTING GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
Drawn APS scale As Shown
Date 22.03.22 Size Al
*m* RD:5155/01 -


june cox_20
Text Box
PA/2022/799 Existing plans and elevations (not to scale)


PA/2022/799 Proposed pla

Site boundary line

Fencing (existing and

shrubs

shrubs

Existing trees (refer to
aboricultural report where
issued)

Existing mature mixed native spocies

hedge along boundary. Additional planting

toinfil areas as required

proposed - noted accordingly)

Existing hedging and small

Proposed hedging and small

Existing ground levels (t.b.c.)

Block Plan

/

I{vational Materials - Cottage

ns and elevations (not to scale)
I MM

Front (S.W.) Elevation
D ——]

t
atural clay paniiles with matching half round ridge and
e slips in mortar bed. Leag cheeks to cat slide dormer

windows with matching pahtie roof finish.

Rain Water Goods
Cast aluminium Ogée gutters on rise and fall brackets
bultinto corbel brick eaves.

External Waff
Existing brickviork to be re-pointed and painted off whi
i Red i facing natural clay brickwork with matching
head, dpc, segmental arches and tumbled gable. High
/ﬁ-e content mortar. Natural oak frame to rear porch.

Windows and Doors
/ Painted timber double glazed Yorkshire sliding sash
windows in off white  cream' 1o front elevation.
UPVC double glazed door | windows to rear elevation
‘offwhite / cream’
Similar finish to bi-fold doors
loured main entrance door with fanlight and glazing.

Line of existing Lincolnshire:
post and ral fence.

N
Outine of pproved

garage to No.61. Not
bult as yet,

e/

in

Rear (N.E

Brick retaining wall with stone steps.

) Elevation

Scale Bar

Side (N.W.) Elevation
D e— ]

ndations cast.

N

/‘@

[ T 171
A
‘ [plnree dfaining)
[ 7T [ ]
A 1T 1
[T T 1
[ T 1
] [os |
LT ]
[ T RS
[
j| O
i 0
|
C 1T [T
S ——
p——
T 1
il — =
==

4
S
; -4
Line of existing brick garden
—

wall 1o be retained.

Ground Floor Plan
—

First Floor Plan
—_—

FOR APPROVAL

Draving Revisions
1204 22-Revised follwing client comments
25.04.22.Revisedfor Planning Applicaton
30,0522 First floor bedroom window added on plan,

3

06.06.22-Height of proposed gerage rdge ndiated.
1207 22-Rear saicase and balcony romoved fom garage

13.07.22.Note reised wih egards to neighbours garage.

Outine of original ridge
line as previously
submitted

Front (S.W.) Elevation
——

Outine of original ridge:
line as previously
submitted

Outine of approved
garage 1o No.61. Not SN
buitas yet, s
foundations cast.

Rear (N.E.) Elevation
D ——

Elevational Materials - Garage

Natural clay pantils with matching haf round ridge and tile sips in mortar
d. Oak barge and fascia boards with exposed rafte feel,

Rain Water Goods

Castaluminium Ogee gutters on rise and fall brackets built nto corbel brick

eaves.

External Walks

red facing Matching
facing brickwork up 10 plinth

Natural Larch boarding to face.

Windows and Doors

Painted timber doubie glazed siding sash windows to front elevation inoff
white | crear’

UPVC double glazed door / window to rear elevation in ‘off white | crean’

Ross Davy Associates

Pelham House, 1 Grosvenor Street,
Grimsby, N.E Lincolnshire, DN32 OQH

Tel 01472 347956
o Email design@rossdavyltd.co.uk
Web: www.rossdavyltd.co.uk

Project Proposed Extension and Alterations
57 Main Street, Saxby All Saints
For
Mr and Mrs Heggie

Drawing Tile  PROPOSED GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

Orawn APS Scale As Shown

Date 22.03.22 Size. Al

s RD:5155/02 G


june cox_21
Text Box
PA/2022/799 Proposed plans and elevations (not to scale)


PA/2022/799 Proposed garage details (not to scale)

Brick retaining wall with stone steps

Tt AT S tetteT o

Outline of reduced
ridge line
Outline of approved
garage to No.61. Not
completed but
foundations cast

Line of|existing Lincolnshire
post arid fail fence.

Existing ground level beyond

Retaining Wall detailed opposite

plan.(free draining)

Garage Cross Section

1:50

Scale

06T abed

17.180

Garage Long Section

Scale - 1:50

YSOO

HT

e o

o
o
@ _
~
g

3 e

\\\v\ N %\\
PRI

YGL

0SL
009
GL6

0o0zk

(Grgnular Fill

o Ry, e
I - -\T Land Drain
o <

e

A393 Mesh (T&B)

0S¥

Garden Retaining Wall Section

Scale - 1:20

Scale Bar

25mm

omm 50mm 75mm

Pany Wall Actor

rawing Revisions
13.07.22.1Notes revised with regards to neighbours garage
N
8
E
B
225
YGL
] ¥
L
]
[ 1
L
g8
g
8
[115—] 3l a
8
280
YGL
OIS
b I} Granular Fill
[
—— o ——
I v Land Drgin
&
el Sl
‘ 900 ‘

I < A393 Mesh (T&B)

Garage Retaining Wall Section

Scale - 1:20

FOR APPROVAL

Ross Davy Associates

Pelham House, 1 Grosvenor Street,
Grimsby, N.E.Lincolnshire, DN32 OQH

Tel: 01472 347956
. Email: design@rossdavyltd.co.uk
Web: www.rossdavyltd.co.uk

Project Proposed Extension and Alterations
57 Main Street, Saxby All Saints,
For
Mr and Mrs Heggie
Drawing Tile  Garage Details
Drawn APS Scale As Shown
Date 20.06.22. Size A2

Drawing No. RD5155 / 05 A


june cox_22
Text Box
PA/2022/799 Proposed garage details (not to scale)


Agenda Item 5i

APPLICATION NO PA/2022/830
APPLICANT Mr K Collins
DEVELOPMENT Planning permission for extensions and alterations, including

increase in height of the property, gable dormers to the front,
link building and two-storey side extension, and other associated

works
LOCATION 9 Park Drive, Westwoodside, Haxey, DN9 2AW
PARISH Haxey
WARD Axholme South
CASE OFFICER Jennifer Ashworth
SUMMARY Grant permission subject to conditions
RECOMMENDATION
REASONS FOR Objection by Haxey Parish Council
REFERENCE TO
COMMITTEE
POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework:
Chapter 12: Achieving well-designed places, paragraph 130
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments:

(@  will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;

(b)  are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

(c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);

(d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractively, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

(e)  optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and

() create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 191



North Lincolnshire Local Plan:

DS1 General Requirements

DS5 Residential Extensions

T2 Access to Development

T19 Car Parking Provision and Standards and Appendix 2
North Lincolnshire Core Strategy:

CS1 Spatial Strategy for North Lincolnshire

CS2 Delivering more Sustainable Development

CS3 Development Limits

CS5 Delivering Quality Design in North Lincolnshire

Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD: The site is within the development
limits of Haxey and within an existing residential area as shown on the Proposals Map.

Supplementary Planning Guidance: SPG1 Design Guidance for House Extensions
CONSULTATIONS

Drainage (Lead Local Flood Authority): No comments or objections.

Highways: No comments or objections.

PARISH COUNCIL

Object, making the following comments:

‘Previous PAs 2021/547 refused. Haxey Parish Council objected with the following comments:
The plot is relatively small in relation to the proposal, the area is largely bungalows.

It is considered this will create a dominating feature in its environment, out of place in the street
scene and over development of the site.

2021/1244 refused:

A previous application PA/2021/547 was refused, there appears to be little or no change to this
application, it would appear some minor alteration to some windows that amount to a minor
material change and does not persuade us to change our view.

Previous comments — The plot is relatively small in relation to the proposal; the area is largely
bungalows.

It is considered this will create a dominating feature in its environment, out of place in the street
scene and over development of the site.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 192



The PC did not object on the grounds of light or privacy and this application does not address
our previous concerns. We also note a resident has objected and fully support his comments.’

PUBLICITY

A site notice has been displayed and two responses have been received, objecting on the
following grounds:

The plans have been rejected previously. There is no improvement on the size or
overbearing impact on surrounding houses.

The development is out of character for the type of housing in the area which are
bungalows (some with dormer windows within the existing roof structures).

The development would dominate the street scene and result in an unacceptable
change to the area.

The proposed development is a direct contradiction of paragraph 130, sections C and D
of 'The National Planning Policy', July 2021. It does not respect the local context and
street pattern or, in particular, the scale and proportions of surrounding buildings, and
would be completely out of character with the area, to the detriment of the local
environment and amenities.

Over-development

Conflicts with the wider area in terms of scale

Detrimental to residential amenity

Visual impact

Overbearing impacts in respect of 20 Drewry Lane. Whilst 20 Drewry Lane is two-storey,
it is not a fair reflection/comparison.

ASSESSMENT

Planning history

PA/2021/1244: Planning permission for extensions and alterations, including increase in

height of the property, gable dormers to the front, link building and two-
storey side extension, and other associated works — refused 22/10/2021.

Reason: The proposal would result in an adverse impact on the amenity of
the adjacent dwelling in that it has the potential to take away the privacy of
the adjacent dwelling contrary to policies DS1 and DS5, as well as the
SPG1 Design Guidance for House Extensions, of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

PA/2021/547: Planning permission for extensions and alterations, including an increase

in height of the property, gable dormers to the front, link building and two-
storey side extension, and other associated works — refused 21/05/2021.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 193



Reason: The council considers that the proposal is for a development that
is not in accordance with the Development Plan of the North Lincolnshire
Council. The proposal is considered to result in amenity impact on the
adjacent dwelling, in that it has the potential to take away the privacy of
the adjacent dwelling and therefore is not compliant with Policy DS1
General Requirements and Policy DS5 Residential Extensions as well as
the SPG1 Design Guidance for House Extensions of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Site constraints

The site is not located within a conservation area.
There are no tree preservation orders on the site.
The site is within SFRA Flood Zone 1.

Site characteristics

Planning permission is sought for extensions and alterations, including an increase in
height of the property, gable dormers to the front, a link building and two-storey side
extension, and other associated works at 9 Park Drive, Westwoodside.

The site is bounded by 7 Park Drive to the north, 20 Drewry Lane to the south, 14 Park
Close to the east and 14 Park Drive to the west. The area is residential consisting mainly of
a mix of single-storey and dormer bungalow style dwellings. The site represents a good
size residential plot and would retain a similar rear and side garden space as other
properties off Park Drive to the east.

The application site contains an L-shaped dormer detached bungalow, the first floor
includes a loft conversion, and there is a detached garage in the north-eastern corner
adjacent to the boundary with 7 Park Drive. The first floor includes a box dormer (west
elevation) facing the street. The roof level of the dormer soars above the ridge level of the
dwelling.

The proposal seeks to erect a two-storey extension (6.957m from the ground to the ridge)
to the west elevation of the dwelling (a garage at ground floor and bedroom at first floor)
and a single-storey link between the extension and the existing dwelling. It also seeks to
raise the roof of the existing dwelling (7.54m from the ground to the ridge) and fill in space
at the rear of the dwelling (south-east elevation) to form a two-storey dwelling to match up
with the ridge level of the extension.

On the front of the main dwelling (north elevation) there would be two dormer windows and
a rooflight on the first floor, and windows on the ground floor. The rear of the dwelling
(south elevation) would have rooflights on the first floor and four doors on the ground floor,
including a patio door. In the west gable elevation there would be only one small window
serving a toilet on the ground floor. In the east gable elevation there would be an obscure-
glazed window on the first floor, and a slit window and patio door on the ground floor.

The applicant proposes to demolish the existing detached garage on the site.

The walls would be constructed in bricks and the roof covering would be slate.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 194



This proposal is a revision to a previously refused proposal (PA/2021/1244). The main
reason for refusal was the adverse impact on the amenity of the adjacent dwelling in that it
has the potential to take away the privacy of the adjacent dwelling contrary to policies DS1
and DS5, as well as the SPG1 Design Guidance for House Extensions, of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan. A similar reason for refusal was apparent for an earlier application
(PA/2021/547). The main reason for the refusal related to the potential of the extensions to
impact on the amenity of the adjacent dwelling in terms of loss of privacy (rear private
amenity area) from the dormer windows on the first floor, mainly on 7 Park Drive, which is
to the north of the property.

Discussions took place between the previous case officer and the applicant. The case
officer at the time highlighted the policy requirement and clarified the reasons for the refusal
and emphasised the concern regarding the potential impact on the amenities of the
adjacent properties, particularly the privacy of 7 Park Drive.

During discussions with the previous case officer, the applicant suggested several design
solutions and sought agreement on the final design. This included removal of a dormer
window from the north elevation, replacing it with a rooflight.

The key difference between the current proposal and that previously refused is the removal
of the detached garage to address concerns raised by residents relating to over-
development of the site.

The following considerations are relevant to this proposal:
e principle of development

e appearance/quality of design

¢ residential amenity.

Principle of development

Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy supports development within the Scunthorpe urban area,
the market towns and rural settlements. This policy aims to ensure that future development
occurs in sustainable locations. It also ensures that the countryside is protected from
inappropriate development and no uncontrolled expansion of settlements will take place.
The site is within the development boundary of Westwoodside and therefore the
development meets the terms of policy CS3 in terms of sustainable location.

Overall, as policy CS3 does not presume against extensions within development
boundaries, the principle of the development is acceptable subject to details of the
development.

The site is an existing residential property where residential extensions are acceptable in
principle subject to detailed design, amenity and other material considerations.

Appearance/quality of design

Policies DS5 of the local plan and CS5 of the Core Strategy both seek to improve the
quality of design across North Lincolnshire.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 195



Policy DS5 is concerned with residential extensions. It states that applications for
residential extensions and the erection of garages, outbuildings, walls and other structures
will be allowed providing that the proposal does not unreasonably reduce sunlight or
daylight, or result in overshadowing, overbearing impact or loss of privacy to adjacent
dwellings. Proposals should also be sympathetic in design, scale and materials to the
existing dwelling and its neighbours.

The council's Supplementary Planning Guidance, SPG1 ‘Design Guidance for House
Extensions’, also advises that any extension must be in keeping with the character of the
building and that extensions should not dominate the original building in scale, materials or
situation.

The NPPF attaches great importance to the design of the built environment and recognises
that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development. The NPPF stresses the
importance of planning positively for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design
for all development, including individual buildings, public and private spaces, and wider
area development schemes. It maintains that planning policies and decisions should not
attempt to impose architectural styles and they should not stifle innovation, originality, or
initiative through unsubstantiated requirements to conform to certain development forms or
styles. It is recognised, however, that it is proper to seek to promote and reinforce local
distinctiveness.

As indicated earlier, this proposal is a resubmission of two previously refused proposals
(PA/2021/1244 and PA/2021/547). The site consists of an existing development and the
applicant seeks an extension to the existing dwelling. The dwelling is currently positioned
centrally on the site. Other properties nearby are sited much closer to their boundaries with
adjacent properties. It is considered that the siting of the extension would not result in
concerns in terms of proximity to adjacent properties. The applicant has designed the
westernmost part of the extension to be 1.5 storeys high, which shows consideration of the
neighbouring property.

In terms of scale and design, objections have been received relating to overbearing impact,
over-development, the proposals being out of character with the location, and that the
development would dominate the street scene.

The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015,
Part 2 Class AA allows residents to extend properties by up to two storeys directly above
the existing house. If the building is single- storey, this is limited to one additional storey.
There are design constraints as follows:

e The maximum added height is 3.5m where the existing dwelling house consists of one
storey (up to 7m for one or more storeys).

e The total height cannot exceed 18 metres.

e Additional storeys have an internal floor to ceiling height restriction; they cannot be
higher than the existing ceiling heights, and no higher than 3m.

e The additional storeys must be built on the principal part of the existing building.

e You may carry out structural work to the existing building but the building must not have
external structural supports.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 196



The GPDO also includes conditions relating to external appearance, no windows in any wall
or roof slope forming a side elevation, and construction management. Given this application
is made in full, all these elements can be assessed and considered as part of this
application.

The existing dwelling on site includes a shallow roof with a later extension of box dormer
fitted into the existing shallow roof pitch at the side (west elevation) facing the street. The
first-floor dormer sits above the existing ridge level of the dwelling, which is not appropriate
in design terms and is considered out of character with the wider street scene, and appears
an eyesore when viewed from Park Drive.

The most successful extensions to a dwelling in visual terms are ones where the extension
appears as if it has always been part of the original dwelling house. In this case, the
appearance of the existing dwelling with the large box dormer on top is judged to be out of
keeping with the original dwelling, the surrounding area and the aim of policy DS5 of the
North Lincolnshire Local Plan, as well as SPG1 ‘Design guidance for house extensions’
which supports house extensions providing that the extension is sympathetic in design,
scale and materials to the existing dwelling and its neighbours.

It should be noted that policy DS5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, as well as SPG1
‘Design guidance for house extensions’, does not presume against roof extensions or
increasing the height of a dwelling; it simply requires such extensions to be sympathetic in
design, scale and materials to the existing dwelling and the surrounding area.

While SPG1 ‘Design guidance for house extensions’ seeks to ensure that new housing
extensions respect the local character, this does not infer that all new extensions should
copy the designs of the past, but rather an appreciation of traditional local architecture
combined with thoughtful application of modern building techniques and suitable materials
should influence basic design principles.

Having reviewed the details (scale and appearance) of the proposed extension, while it is
acknowledged that it would be the first of its kind on the street (resulting in a two-storey
dwelling), it is considered that it will not raise any significant issues in terms of harm to the
street scene since it would be an improvement over the existing dwelling and would
enhance the appearance of the street scene compared to the current dwelling. The
extension would also include two dormers which reflect the adjacent property to the west.

Several concerns have been raised in relation to over-development of the site. The local
development plan policy is not prescriptive on what constitutes over-development of an
application site and therefore it is a matter of judgement. The applicant has sought to
address such concerns by committing to the removal of the existing detached garage on
the site. This will create additional amenity space around the property. It is considered that
this development would not result in over-development of the site since the site would have
adequate amenity space for the enjoyment of the resident. The amenity space around the
dwelling to the rear and sides reflects other dwellings to the north of the site on the eastern
side of Park Drive. Existing dwellings within these locations are set much closer to their
boundaries with adjacent properties than is proposed here.

Overall, the location, scale and design of the proposal is acceptable.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 197



It is therefore considered that the proposal would not carry any overbearing, overlooking or
overshadowing impacts that would be detrimental to the residential amenity rights of
adjoining neighbours and aligns with policy DS1, DS5 and SPG1.

Residential amenity

Saved policy DS5 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan (2003) is concerned with residential
extensions. It states that planning applications for residential extensions and the erection of
garages, outbuildings, walls and other structures will be allowed providing that the proposal
does not unreasonably reduce sunlight or daylight, or result in overshadowing, overbearing
impact or loss of privacy to adjacent dwellings. The proposals should also be sympathetic in
design, scale and materials to the existing dwelling and its neighbours.

The previous reason for refusal states:

‘The proposal would result in an adverse impact on the amenity of the adjacent dwelling in
that it has the potential to take away the privacy of the adjacent dwelling contrary to policies
DS1 and DS5, as well as the SPG1 Design Guidance for House Extensions, of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.’

The adjacent property (7 Park Drive to the north) has a large open garden at the front and a
small private amenity area at the rear. It should be noted that the dwelling is approximately
4m from the common boundary with that adjacent property with a driveway and existing
garage between. The applicant seeks to demolish the garage to address concerns
regarding over-development of the site. This would increase the amenity space around the

property.

Within the previous application (refused at committee) the applicant sought to replace the
dormer window on the north-east elevation which was considered at the time to directly
overlook the rear amenity area of the adjacent property. This dormer was replaced with a
rooflight and this is shown on this revised application. It is considered that the rooflight, due
to its high level position, above head height, would not provide a view into the amenity area
at the rear of 7 Park Drive to the north-east and is therefore acceptable.

Whilst the remaining dormer windows (north-east elevation) would offer a view into the
open garden area to the front of the property (7 Park Drive), this is a feature of the estate
and many properties offer views over front driveways and garden/amenity areas. This is
therefore not considered to be an amenity issue which would warrant refusal.

In terms of overbearing impact and overshadowing, as indicated earlier, the dwelling is an
existing dwelling and is sat approximately 4m from the common boundary with 7 Park Drive
to the north. The applicant has also submitted a drawing showing sunlight and daylight
impact. The drawing demonstrates that there would not be an issue of overshadowing or
overbearing impact to the neighbouring properties. This is considered acceptable, and the
dwelling would not raise a significant issue of overshadowing or overbearing impact that
would warrant refusal. Consequently, it is considered that the previous application
addressed the concerns in relation to impacts of overlooking and overshadowing and that
this new application achieves the same outcomes. The existing property and proposed
extension is set in front of the rear garden of 7 Park Drive (see site photo 4 for reference). 9
Park Drive does not provide any views over the rear garden space of 7 Park Drive. The
view into the rear garden is also considered to be blocked by the existing bungalow of
7 Park Drive.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 198



This resubmission, as well as the previous submission, has addressed the concerns raised
in relation to the potential of the extension to impact on the amenity of the adjacent
dwelling, in terms of loss of privacy (rear private amenity area) from the dormer windows on
the first floor, mainly on 7 Park Drive, which is located to the north of the property. It has
also demonstrated that the proposed development would not lead to any further impacts in
terms of overlooking at the front of the property which would warrant a reason for refusal.
The front of properties are by nature of the design of streets overlooked to an extent by
adjacent, adjoining properties when set within a cu-de-sac arrangement. Whilst the side of
the property would be visible from the property this is already the case. 7 Park drive does
not have any windows within the side elevation where overlooking/loss of privacy would be
an issue in this part of the site.

The property to the rear of 7 Park Drive and 9 Park Drive (14 Park Close) includes a rear
dormer which provides views across the rear garden off 14 Park Drive and into 7 and 9
Park Drive. The applicant has been very careful to not replicate this design and sought to
minimise/remove any potential for overlooking of rear gardens (see Site photo 3 for
reference).

There would also be no issues of overshadowing, which was not considered likely as part of
the decision notice and reasons for refusal as part of the previous application.

Overall, the proposal would align with policies DS1, DS5 and SPG1 of the local plan.
Conclusion

The proposal is acceptable in principle, is well designed and would not harm residential
amenity. It is recommended that planning permission is granted.

RECOMMENDATION Grant permission subject to the following conditions:

1.
The development must be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason
To comply with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

- Proposed Plans and Elevations - CWX-CH-2021-101C
- Existing Plans and Elevations -CWX-CH-2021-01.

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Informative

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 199



North ;
Lincolnshire
~ S Council

PAlzozz 1830 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560



PA/2022/830 Existing plans and elevations (not to scale)

b w b

Bedroom
Bedroom

1E‘)§IOSUTING FRONT ~ NORTH ~ ELEVATION EXISTING SIDE ~ EAST ~ ELEVATION

[T

ﬂ

Bedroom

Bedroom

EXISTING REAR ~ SOUTH ~ ELEVATION EXISTING SIDE ~ WEST ~ ELEVATION

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

T0Z abed
|

EXISTING ROOF PLAN

EXISTING SITE PLAN
1:500

Cadworx Ltd
Architectural design and 3d Visualisations

Linden House, Bracken Hill Road
East Lound, Nr Doncaster DN9 2LR

tel 01427 753232

EXISTING MATERIALS danny@3dcadworx.com

Wals Facing brick with feature arch to main door

« Project .
* PROPOSED EXTENSIONS AND ALTERATIONS*

« WESTWOODSIDE
. MR K COLLINS AND MISS H NICHOL

Roof Concrete fies

Doors  windows : White upvc

. Title:

+ EXISTING PLANS AND
EXISTING 3d VIEWS . ELEVATIONS

Scale Date Drawn

1100 @ At 032021 DS

Drawing No.

CWX-CH-2021-01



june cox_23
Text Box
PA/2022/830 Existing plans and elevations (not to scale)


PA/2022/830 Proposed plans and elevations (not to scale)

Rod ot s it
Sardit 2020 A S

Bickteaing o
Eavs a0 gates

we Study Utiity

Da gy Hack i gods ————

Kitchen

Py —
Wensbarge esants Il s

Datkarey ickteosang  —1

=

j o

PROPOSED SIDE ~ EAST ~ ELEVATION

] —
Bedroom 1
= =cF=Fzc
PROPOSED REAR ~ SOUTH ~ ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ~ WEST ~ ELEVATION
___ Bathoom | Cupd ___Dressingroom ___
Ensute __. =TT oo 1 Moo 1 ot 1 T 1
st e I I T
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
@ = i
N ressing area Bedroom
w w E Kitchen Entrance
hall
TYPICAL SECTIONS
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN ﬁ’-g%:’OSED SITE PLAN

Cadworx Ltd
Architectural design and 3d Visualisations

Linden House, Bracken Hill Road
East Lound, Nr Doncaster DN9 2LR

tel 01427 753232

danny@3dcadworx.com
PROPOSED MATERIALS
Walls Existing Dormer bungalow -Existing external walls to be relined with « Project .
Wienerberger Kassandra Muli bricks . .
New extensions - Wienerberger Kassandra Multbricks to outer skin of new cavity walls PROPOSED EXTENSIONS AND ALTERATIONS
« 9PARK DRIVE .
« WESTWOODSIDE .
Roof Roofs o be finished with Sandoft 20120 Antique Slate * MRK COLLINS AND MISS HNICHOL :
Doors / windows : Dark grey | lack doors and . .
windows with stone surrounds
. Title: .
« PROPOSED PLANS AND .
. ELEVATIONS .
PROPOSED 3d VIEWS . .
Scale Date Drawn
1:100 @ A1 032021 s
Drawing No.
CWX-CH-2021-101C



june cox_24
Text Box
PA/2022/830 Proposed plans and elevations (not to scale)


PA/2022/830 Sun study (not to scale)

No 9
Park Drive

Date - July 1st Date - July 1st
Time - 09:00 Time - 12:00

Cadworx Ltd
Architectural design and 3d Visualisations

£0¢ abed

Linden House, Bracken Hill Road
East Lound, Nr Doncaster DN9 2LR

tel 01427 753232
danny@3dcadworx.com

o Project .

* PROPOSED EXTENSIONS AND ALTERATIONS®
« 9PARKDRIVE .
. WESTWOODSIDE

. MRK COLLINS AND MISS H NICHOL

No 9
Park Drive i J .

. Title:
SUN STUDY

Scale Date Drawn

Date - July 1st Date - July 1st
Time - 15:00 Time - 18:00 NTS @ A3 03-2021 DS

Drawing No.

CWX-CH-2021-102



june cox_25
Text Box
PA/2022/830 Sun study (not to scale)


PA/2022/830 Site photo 3



june cox_26
Text Box
PA/2022/830 Site photo 3


PA/2022/830 Site photo 4



june cox_27
Text Box
PA/2022/830 Site photo 4


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5]

APPLICATION NO PA/2022/897

APPLICANT Mr & Mrs Fillingham

DEVELOPMENT Planning permission to erect a dwelling

LOCATION Land west of Sherwood House, The Hill, Worlaby, DN20 ONP
PARISH Worlaby

WARD Brigg and Wolds

CASE OFFICER Deborah Oikeh

SUMMARY Grant permission subject to conditions
RECOMMENDATION

REASONS FOR Departure from the development plan

REFERENCE TO

COMMITTEE Member ‘call in’ (Cllr Carl Sherwood — significant public interest)
POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework: 78
North Lincolnshire Local Plan: DS1, DS7, DS14, DS16, H5, H8, T2, T19
North Lincolnshire Core Strategy: CS1, CS2, CS3, CS5, CS6, CS7, CS8, CS19

Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD: Policy PS1 (Presumption in Favour of
Sustainable Development)

Worlaby Parish Neighbourhood Plan: WNP2 (Small Scale Housing Sites) and WNP4
(Design)

CONSULTATIONS
Highways: No objection subject to conditions.

Drainage (Lead Local Flood Authority): No objection subject to conditions and
informatives.

Environmental Protection: No objection subject to a pre-commencement condition.
Conservation: No objection subject to conditions.
PARISH COUNCIL

Councillors feel that the design of the proposed development has been carefully chosen to
be sympathetic within its surroundings, and meets the requirements of the Worlaby
Neighbourhood Plan, however the parish council would like to highlight that the proposed
development sits outside the development boundary for the village of Worlaby.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 207



PUBLICITY

Advertised by site notice. One comment has been received regarding land contamination
and pollution.

ASSESSMENT
Planning history

PA/1998/0190: Planning permission to erect an extension to existing dwelling to provide
garage — approved 19/03/1998.

Proposal and site characteristics

Permission is sought to erect a detached bungalow. The application site is within the village
of Worlaby on the northern side of The Hill. The site is bordered by existing residential
properties to the northeast and south, and by Worlaby Hall (a grade Il listed building) to the
northwest. The land is immediately outside the development limit of Worlaby and can be
accessed via an existing driveway.

Site constraints

e The site is outside the development boundary of Worlaby according to the HELADPD
2016.

e The site is within SFRA Flood Zone 1.

e The site lies within the setting of some listed buildings.

Main considerations

e Principle of development

e Impact upon residential amenity

e Impact upon the character of heritage asset

e Impact upon highway safety

e Flood risk and drainage

e Land contamination.

Principle of development

The council is required to determine planning applications in accordance with its adopted
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF sets out the
‘presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that development that
accords with the development plan should be approved without delay. Having specific

regard to residential developments, the NPPF requires local planning authorities to ‘boost
significantly the supply of housing'.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 208



Policy CS1 states, ‘Rural settlements will be supported as thriving sustainable communities,
with a strong focus on retaining and enhancing existing local services to meet local needs.
Development will be limited and should take into account levels of local service provision,
infrastructure capacity and accessibility.

Policy CS6 relates to the historic environment. It states, ‘The council will seek to protect,
conserve and enhance North Lincolnshire’s historic environment, as well as the character
and setting of areas of acknowledged importance including historic buildings, conservation
areas, listed buildings (both statutory and locally listed), registered parks and gardens,
scheduled ancient monuments and archaeological remains. All new development must
respect and enhance the local character and distinctiveness of the area in which it would be
situated, particularly in areas with high heritage value.

Policy CS2: Delivering more Sustainable Development states that in supporting the delivery
of the spatial strategy set out in policy CS1, as well as determining how future development
needs will be met in North Lincolnshire, a sequential approach will be adopted. The
adopted sequential approach focuses on the following:

€)) previously developed land and buildings within the Scunthorpe urban area, followed
by other suitable infill opportunities within the town, then by appropriate greenfield
urban extensions

(b) previously developed land and buildings within the defined development limits of
North Lincolnshire’s Market Towns, followed by other suitable infill opportunities then
appropriate small scale greenfield extensions to meet identified local needs

(c) small-scale developments within the defined development limits of rural settlements
to meet identified local needs.

Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy provides that development outside defined development
boundaries will be restricted to that which is essential to the functioning of the countryside.
This will include uses such as those related to agriculture, forestry or other uses which
require a countryside location or will contribute to the sustainable development of the tourist
industry. In local planning terms, the site is outside the development boundary of Worlaby
within the open countryside. Accordingly, it is not within a sustainable location and
residential development on the site is contrary to policy.

Policy RD2 of the local plan restricts development in the open countryside other than in
exceptional circumstances. This policy only supports residential development outside
defined development limits where it is:

e essential to the efficient operation of agriculture or forestry;

e employment-related development appropriate to the open countryside;

e affordable housing to meet a proven local need;

e essential for the provision of outdoor sport, countryside recreation, or local community
facilities;

e for the re-use and adaptation of existing rural buildings;

e for diversification of an established agricultural business;

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 209



o for the replacement, alteration or extension of an existing dwelling; and

e essential for the provision of an appropriate level of roadside services or the provision of
utility services.

Having considered policy RD2, the development is not essential for agriculture or forestry
and it is not for employment-related development appropriate to the open countryside. The
development is not intended for affordable housing and is not for the diversification of an
established agricultural business. Furthermore, the proposal is for a new dwelling, not re-
use and adaptation of existing buildings. Therefore, the proposal does not meet the terms
of policy RD2.

Whilst this policy remains, it has largely been overtaken by policies in subsequent plans
addressing the same issue (policies CS2 and CS3 of the Core Strategy), to which the
proposal is also contrary.

Policy CS7 states, ‘Housing development will be required to make efficient use of land but
the density of new development should be in keeping with the character of the area and
should support the development of sustainable, balanced communities’. The policy allows a
net density of 30 to 35 dwellings per hectare within a residential development site of rural
settlements and the countryside.

Policy CS8 relates to spatial distribution of housing sites and states, ‘The first priority is to
re-use previously developed land and buildings within North Lincolnshire’s built-up areas.
Second priority will be given to other suitable infill opportunities in North Lincolnshire’s built-
up areas. Flood risk will be taken into account, as this will be a determining factor in the
distribution and location of housing.” Policies CS2 and CS8 also state, ‘In rural settlements
in the countryside and in the open countryside outside development limits, housing
development will be strictly limited. Consideration will be given to development, which
relates to agriculture, forestry or to meet a special need associated with the countryside. All
development should not have an adverse impact on the environment or landscape.’

Policy WNP2 of the Worlaby Parish Neighbourhood Plan relates to small-scale housing
sites. It states that infill housing developments within the development limit will be
supported where the proposal is for a total of no more than three houses at a density of 30—
35 per hectare; is in keeping with the character of its surroundings; takes account of the
significance of any heritage asset and does not lead to substantial harm to a designated
asset; does not impact unacceptably upon the amenity of nearby properties and references
the requirements of policy WNP4: Design.

In this case, the proposal would be at the edge of the development boundary, and is for a
single dwelling with a design drawn to respect the heritage asset adjacent to it and in
accordance with the Worlaby Parish Neighbourhood Plan. However, the proposal would not
meet any of the needs highlighted in Core Strategy policies CS2, CS3 and CS8. As a
consequence, the proposal is considered to conflict with the aforementioned.

Notwithstanding the development plan policies set out above, the NPPF is a material
consideration when determining planning applications. Paragraph 10 of the NPPF states,
‘So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.” Paragraph 11(d) of the
NPPF states that housing applications should be considered in the context of the
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Where the local planning authority

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 210



cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites, relevant policies which
were most important to determining the application should not be considered up-to-date.

A recent appeal decision dated 20 July 2022 (planning reference PA/2020/554) has been
issued where the Inspector has concluded that the council does not currently have a five-
year housing land supply of deliverable sites. The council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply
Position Statement is awaiting an update and as such any decisions made by the planning
authority will take account of the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set
out in paragraph 11 of the NPPF. The current local policies which are most important for
determining the application will carry reduced weight during this period.

National Planning Practice Guidance paragraph 008 states that, in decision-taking, if an
authority cannot demonstrate a five-year housing land supply, including any appropriate
buffer, the presumption in favour of sustainable development will apply, as set out in
paragraph 11d of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Given the current five-year land supply deficit, it is considered that there is a clear and
demonstrable need for housing development in the area. Accordingly the ‘tilted balance’ in
paragraph 11 of the NPPF is triggered, whereby there is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development and development proposals should be approved unless:

(1 the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or

(i) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

There are three dimensions to sustainable development as set out in paragraph 8 of the
Framework: economic, social and environmental.

The North Lincolnshire Sustainable Settlement Survey 2019 states Worlaby is ranked 36
out of 76 settlements, with three out of seven key facilities. Worlaby is therefore considered
to be a relatively sustainable settlement that is capable of accommodating an allocation
either within or adjoining the settlement.

The site is within distance of key local facilities and services, including Worlaby Academy,
the church hall and other facilities adjacent the development boundary. It is therefore
considered that the site is in a sustainable location.

In economic terms it would provide much needed housing, job creation benefits during the
construction phase, and money spent in the local economy by future residents.

The applicant stated in their design and access statement that the land has been
underutilised in that it has been used merely for storage over the years. The NPPF thus
encourages the effective use of land. Allowing additional dwellings at the edge of a
settlement would bring social benefits by way of encouraging new social interactions,
leading to growing local communities and supporting local services.

Whilst the restrictive policies of the development plan (CS2, CS3 and CS8) do still apply,
the lack of a five-year supply of housing land and the scale of the shortfall limit the weight
which can be attributed to these policies. Restricting development to land within
development limits, if strictly applied, would severely affect the ability of the authority to

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 211



address the need for housing. In determining the sustainability of the proposed
development, an assessment not only relies upon planning principle but also whether the
application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular importance
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or if any adverse impacts
exist that would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal.

Impact on residential amenity

Policy CS5 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy is relevant. It states, ‘...All new
development in North Lincolnshire should be well designed and appropriate for their
context. It should contribute to creating a sense of place’ and ‘Design which is inappropriate
to the local area or fails to maximise opportunities for improving the character and quality of
the area will not be acceptable’.

Policy DS1 aims to ensure that development does not unduly impact neighbouring amenity
in terms of noise, smell, fumes, dust or other nuisance. Policy H8 is concerned with housing
design and housing mix. The policy permits new housing development where it respects
and reflects the form, scale, massing, design and detailing, materials, and nature of the
local environment. The development should incorporate a high standard of layout and
protect existing natural and built features amongst others.

Among other criteria, policy H5 requires all new housing development to not result in the
loss of important open space, and to be in keeping with the scale and character of the
settlement. The scale, layout, height and materials of the development are in keeping and
compatible with the character and amenity of the immediate environment and with the
settlement. Any development must have an adequate and appropriately designed access
which will not create any traffic or road safety hazard, and adequate parking within the
curtilage of the site must be provided to ensure that no on-street parking occurs which
would be to the detriment of the free and safe flow of vehicles using the public highway.

Policy WNP4 of the Worlaby Parish Neighbourhood Plan also states, ‘The scale, density,
massing, height, landscape design, layout and materials of all development proposals will
be required to reflect the character and scale of the village and be appropriate to the size of
the plot.’

This proposal is for a bungalow, considerably set back from surrounding dwellings and well
screened by hedgerows and shrubs all around. The openings in the bungalow are
positioned to respect surrounding dwellings. Given the height and scale of the bungalow,
and the separation distance between it and the surrounding dwellings, it is considered that
there would be no unacceptable overbearing, overshadowing or domineering impact upon
neighbouring properties.

In terms of noise, it is considered that an additional dwelling would not create an
unacceptable impact upon the amenity of current residents given the sparse housing
density in the area.

The site also benefits from existing soft and hard landscaping such as trees, shrubs and
hardstanding; therefore, the landscape would not be unacceptably altered as a result of the
proposed development

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 212



Impact upon the character of the heritage asset

Policy HES is partly concerned with proposals that affect the setting of a listed building. It
states, ‘proposals which damage the setting of a listed building will be resisted. Whenever
appropriate, proposals which would entail the loss of historic fabric from a listed building will
be conditional upon a programme of recording being agreed and implemented.’

Although the site is immediately outside the development boundary, it can be viewed as an
infill development given the existing surrounding built form, including the Almshouses and
Sherwood House, both of which are set beyond the site and noticeably outside the
development boundary. The proposed dwelling would be a three-bedroom bungalow. The
dwelling takes the form of a traditional ‘Gatehouse’ style with pitched roof, narrow gables
and oversized chimney. The property sits gable end on to the street scene, which is a
common theme, to reduce the physical mass of the property. Also, the proposed location
within the north-eastern corner does not obscure views through to the heritage asset to the
rear of the site. This orientation also ensures that future occupiers benefit from a pleasant
south-westerly private amenity space.

The council's conservation officer has been consulted and has no objections to the
proposal. It is considered that the materials, scale and design respect and reflect the
historic character and landscape of the area.

Impact upon highway safety

Policy T2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan states that all development should be served
by a satisfactory access. Policy T19 is concerned with parking provision as well as general
safety. Both are considered relevant.

Access to the site will be facilitated via the existing vehicular access from The Hill. The site
benefits from two off-street car parking spaces with enough hard standing area to the front
to conveniently allow turning and parking. The site is set back from the highway to retain
views through to the Almshouses to the north-east from The Hill. The Highways team have
assessed the proposal and have no objection but recommend some conditions which shall
be attached to any permission granted.

Drainage and flood risk

Policy CS19 of the Core Strategy is concerned with flood risk, whilst DS14 and DS16 of the
local plan are concerned with flood risk, drainage and foul water. Policy CS19 in particular
states, ‘The council will support development proposals that avoid areas of current or future
flood risk, and which do not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere’.

The proposed site is situated within SFRA Flood Zone 1 and is therefore a suitable location
for development. The LLFA drainage team has been consulted and have raised no
concerns subject to some conditions being met. It is therefore assessed that the proposal
accords with policies DS14 and DS16 of the local plan and CS19 of the Core Strategy.

Land contamination

Policy DS7 of the local plan relates to contaminated land. Historic mapping shows former
quarrying and infilling approximately 100m north-east of the site. There is, therefore, the
potential for the site to have been impacted upon by contamination. This can include
ground gas, which is harmful to human health. Therefore a pre-commencement condition

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 213



on land contamination has been recommended by the Environmental Protection
department. The condition will be attached to any permission granted. No development
shall commence until there is satisfactory evidence that there is no land contamination on
site, or if present, that it can be mitigated.

Conclusion

Whilst the proposal is outside the development limits, it would not potentially harm the
existing site context, and it is considered that the benefit of the proposal does outweigh the
harm, subject to conditions. On balance, the proposal is a justified departure from the
development plan and is considered to comply with the overarching paragraph 11(d) of the
NPPF. The principle of the development is acceptable, and the proposed dwellings will
provide an opportunity for residential accommodation in this location. The site has the
potential to accommodate one dwelling and is unlikely to be detrimental to neighbouring
amenities. It would have safe and visually acceptable access.

The application site, although immediately outside the development boundary, could be
viewed as an infill development given the existing dwellings beyond the site. The site has
been under-utilised previously as storage. Allowing a well-designed dwelling at the edge of
the settlement will not only allow the effective use of the land but would yield some social
and economic benefit. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval subject to
planning conditions.

Pre-commencement conditions

The pre-commencement conditions included in the recommendation have been agreed with
the applicant/agent.

RECOMMENDATION Grant permission subject to the following conditions:

1.
The development must be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason
To comply with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

- Location plan 1334/001

- Proposed site plan 1334/003

- Existing and proposed block plan 1334/002

- Proposed floor and elevation plan 1334/004

- Design and Access Statement and Heritage Statement.

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 214



3.

No development shall take place until details have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority of the make, type and colour of all external facing
materials for the development and only the approved materials shall be used.

Reason

In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the building is in keeping with its
surroundings, in particular, the 'Almshouses’, in accordance with policies DS1, HE2 and
CS6 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

4,
Scale drawings of the proposed windows and doors, including material specifications, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before installation.

Reason

In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the building is in keeping with its
surroundings, in particular, the 'Almshouses’, in accordance with policies DS1, HE2 and
CS6 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

5.

No development shall take place until details showing an effective method of preventing
surface water run-off from hard paved areas within the site onto the highway have been
approved in writing by the local planning authority. These facilities shall be implemented
prior to the access and parking facilities being brought into use and thereafter so retained.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan, policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and
paragraph 163 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

6.

No development shall take place until details showing an effective method of preventing
surface water run-off from the highway onto the developed site have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. These facilities shall be implemented
prior to the access and parking facilities being brought into use and thereafter so retained.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and protect
water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the sustainable
drainage structures in accordance with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan,
policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 155, 157,
163 and 165 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

7.

No development shall take place until a method statement for excavation within the vicinity
of a chalk cutting and springs, and possible mitigation works, has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason

To prevent the increased risk of flooding to themselves and others, to improve and protect
water quality, and to ensure the implementation and future maintenance of the sustainable

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 215



drainage structures in accordance with policy DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan,
policies CS18 and CS19 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy, and paragraphs 159 to
169 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

8.

The existing vehicular access to the site shall be improved within highway limits in
accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policy T19 of the North Lincolnshire
Local Plan.

9.

The dwelling shall not be occupied until the vehicular access to it and the vehicle parking
and turning space(s) serving it have been completed and, once provided, the vehicle
parking and turning space(s) shall be retained.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety and to comply with policies T2 and T19 of the North
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

10.

Unless otherwise agreed by the local planning authority, development other than that
required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not
commence until parts 1 to 4 below have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is
found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site
affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the local planning
authority in writing until part 4 has been complied with in relation to that contamination.

Part 1: Site Characteristics

A Phase 1 desk study shall be carried out to identify and evaluate all potential sources of
contamination and the impacts on land and/or controlled waters, relevant to the site. The
desk study shall establish a 'conceptual model' of the site and identify all plausible pollutant
linkages. Furthermore, the assessment shall set objectives for intrusive site investigation
works/Quantitative Risk Assessment (or state if none required). Two full copies of the desk
study and a non-technical summary shall be submitted to the local planning authority for
approval prior to proceeding to further site investigation.

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the
planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature
and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The
contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority.
The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a
written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the approval
in writing of the local planning authority. The report of the findings must include:

0] a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;

(i) an assessment of the potential risks to:

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 216



- human health;

- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland, and service lines and pipes;

- adjoining land;
- groundwaters and surface waters;
- ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(i)  an appraisal of remedial options, and a proposal of the preferred option(s). This must
be conducted in accordance with Environment Agency’s Land Contamination Risk
Management (LCRM) guidance October 2020.

Part 2: Submission of Remediation Scheme

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use
by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the
natural and historical environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in
writing of the local planning authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken,
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

Part 3: Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to
the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation,
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The local planning
authority must be given two weeks’ written notification of commencement of the remediation
scheme works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the
approval in writing of the local planning authority.

Part 4: Reporting of Unexpected Contamination

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to
the local planning authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with the requirements of Part 1, and where remediation is necessary a
remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of Part 2,
which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a

verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the local
planning authority in accordance with Part 3.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 217



Reason
To ensure the site is safe for future users and construction workers in accordance with
policy DS1

Informative 1

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Informative 2
The development hereby granted planning permission requires works to be carried out
within the limits of the adopted (public) highway. Therefore:

- before ANY construction works take place within the limits of the highway you MUST
contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297000 to arrange for the
relevant permissions/licenses to be issued,

- before ANY service (utility) connections take place within the limits of the highway you
MUST contact the highway authority on telephone number 01724 297319 to arrange for
the relevant permissions/licenses to be issued.

Informative 3

We would also suggest you consider upsizing the pipe network, increasing storage around
your development, to cater for more intense storm conditions. Although this is not a
requirement in terms of surface water flood risk compliance, it would be good practice on
your behalf to ensure an increased level of resilience for the development and its future
occupiers.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 218



/ Jvoriaby Hall =T S
0 30 1\ 60 4“ \ :L%O 11_?0 m
[ ] [ ]

/

[ansfield
nS

North
« , Lincolnshire
) pevelopment Boundary Council

PAI 2022/ 897 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560



Rev: Description:

PA/2022/897 Existing and proposed layout (not to scale)

Drawn By:

Date: ‘

EXISTING
. ACCESS

EXISTING
, - ACCESS

ws

.. GARDEN,,
- existing S

existing edge
retained but™ ...
“frimmer to 1.8m ™,

<
sEczl(eli'!:ulNG BLOCK PLAN % SPci(_)]:l:'mOSED BLOCK PLAN %

Drawing Title: BLOCK PLANS
Project: NEW DWELLING
Location: LAND OF THE HILL, WORLABY
Drawing Number: Revision: Scale / Size:
NOTES : 1334/002 . 1500 / A3
1. Prior to the commencement of work, the contractor and client are to check on-site all exterior dimensions, boundary positions and details to verify and agree upon. Any errors,
omissions or design changes should be reported immediately to enable amended plans to be prepared and submitted for approval. Project Stage: Drawn By: Checked By: Date:
KEY : 2. The contractor will be responsible for locating all hidden services that may be affected by the proposal and stopping off or diverting as necessary. Drainage runs shown are Planning DH N 20V ZI
assumed and must be checked on site before work commences.
SITE BOUNDARY: _— 3. The requirements of the "Party Wall Act 1996" will apply to certain schemes. The "Building Owner" will in writing inform and agree with the "Adjoining owner(s)" if the proposed web: hydearchitecture.com
work affects the Party Wall or is within 3 meters of the foundations of the nearby building. If an agreement cannot be made then professional advice should be sought prior to fel: 01472 869061
LEGAL BOUNDARY: e e commencement of work on site, by a Party Wall Surveyor. emai: info@hydearchiteoture.com H d e
4. All drawings are to be read in conjunction with the specification document provided, structural, mechanical, electrical and drainage drawings . If in doubt contractors must ask
before proceeding. .
5. This drawing must not be reproduced in whole or part without written consent. Do not scale this drawing unless printed at the correct paper size specified. All dimensions in A h t t
millimeters. Written dimensions to be checked on site. r C l e C U r e

Hyde Architecture Ltd 2022 6. Drawings subject to Planning Approval & Building Control Approval.



June Cox_4
Text Box
PA/2022/897 Existing and proposed layout (not to scale)


HydeArchitecture 2021

-
PA/2022/897 Plans and elevations (not to scale "]
1 ; Lead cupolas
! BEDROOM 2.|— !
I = I Brick chimney with stone Brick chimney with stone
! ! capping capping
oot I
' i Timber windows painted
1 1 cream
' | Stone window surround
1 | Timber finial
' BEDROOM /
1 ] STUDY. \ Slate roof covering
: ] H} Slate roof covering
! i Rosemary hanging tiles
. ] Timber fascia boards
1 | Black cast iron rain-water
—— B | goods
| 1 Black cast iron rain-water Stone window surround
! ! goods Timber windows painted
: BEDROOM 1 : cream
' ' Rustic red facing brick Rustic red facing brick
i " ‘with lime mortar with lime mortar
1 1
SOUTH ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION
Scale - 1:100 Scale - 1:100
Scale - 1:100
Lead cupolas
Brick chimney with stone Brick chimney with stone
capping capping
1 I
[ ' Slate roof covering
! Ea Ea Slate roof covering
! Rosermary hanging files
AR R
' ' Timber fascia boards Black cast iron rain-water
. BINS , goods
! ! Stone window surround
{ | ' Timber windows painted
B HALL | cream
¢ . Timber doors to bin store Feature brick detailing Rustic red facing brick
[ ' Timber entrance doors with lime mortar
' Ewc dml CLOAKS I '
[ERU | R I R | I J
‘ ‘ NORTH ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION
. . Scale - 1:100 Scale - 1:100
| ] KITCHEN [ |
' ' Draving Title. PROPOSED PLANS & ELEVATIONS
[ _ H Project NEW DWELLING
Location: LAND OF THE HILL, WORLABY
Drawing Number: Revision: Scale / Size:
GROUND FLOOR PLAN 1334/004 . 1100142
Scale - 1:100 Project Stage: Drawn By: ‘Checked By. Date
Planning o ) 0812020

e
Architecture

e Hyd



June Cox_5
Text Box
PA/2022/897 Plans and elevations (not to scale)


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Report of the Agenda Item No:
Development Management Lead Meeting: 3 August 2022

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

APPLICATIONS FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS
FOLLOWING THE GRANT OF OUTLINE PERMISSION
FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE

1. OBJECT

1.1 To inform the committee about applications for approval of reserved matters
which are ready for determination.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 This committee is required under its terms of reference to exercise the
functions of the council as local planning authority for the purposes of the
control of development, including the determination of applications for
planning permission and other applications under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, General Development Orders, and any Orders or Regulations
made thereunder, and in accordance with the council’'s planning policies.

2.2 In exercising these functions the committee is required to have regard to the
National Planning Policy Framework, the development plan for the area and
any other material considerations. It will also take account of the duty imposed
by section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the requirements of the
Human Rights Act 1998.

3. INFORMATION
3.1 Items for determination are listed in the attached schedule.

3.2  Outline planning permission has already been granted and the development is
therefore agreed in principle. Consideration is required of the layout, scale,
external appearance, means of access and landscaping of the development
(excluding any of these matters which were expressly approved at the time
outline planning permission was granted).

3.3 Reports will be updated at the meeting if necessary to take account of
additional relevant information received after publication.

3.4 Plans included with reports are for identification and/or illustrative purposes
only. Applications and supporting documents can be viewed in full on the
planning pages of the council’s web site.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 223



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
4.1  There are no staffing or financial implications arising from this report.

4.2  Environmental considerations are of major importance when considering
planning applications and are set out in the individual reports.

RECOMMENDATION

5.1 That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations
contained in the schedule.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT LEAD

Church Square House
30—40 High Street
SCUNTHORPE

DN15 6NL

Ref: CB/JMC/Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx
Date: 25 July 2022

Background papers used in the preparation of this report:

1.

W

5.

6.

The applications including accompanying plans and ancillary correspondence.
Statutory and non-statutory consultation letters and responses.

Responses from parish and town councils.

Representations from other bodies or individuals.

Relevant planning policy documents.

Previous relevant planning decisions.

(Pursuant to section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 any document containing
‘exempt information’ is excluded from this list.)

Statement of publication's purpose

The Ordnance Survey map data included within this publication is provided by North
Lincolnshire Council under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public
function to act as a planning authority. Persons viewing this mapping should contact
Ordnance Survey copyright for advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey map
data for their own use.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 224




Agenda Iltem 6a

APPLICATION NO PA/2022/444
APPLICANT Mr Neil Bostock
DEVELOPMENT Application for approval of reserved matters (access,

appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) pursuant to outline
planning permission PA/2019/1779 dated 12/03/2020 for one

dwelling
LOCATION Newbigg, Westwoodside, DN9 2AT
PARISH Haxey
WARD Axholme South
CASE OFFICER Deborah Oikeh
SUMMARY Grant approval subject to conditions
RECOMMENDATION
REASONS FOR Objection by Haxey Parish Council
REFERENCE TO
COMMITTEE
POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework: 78
North Lincolnshire Local Plan: DS1, H5, H7, T2, T19
North Lincolnshire Core Strategy: CS1, CS2, CS3, CS5

Housing and Employment Land Allocations DPD: Policy PS1 (Presumption in Favour of
Sustainable Development)

CONSULTATIONS
Highways: No objections subject to conditions.

Drainage (Lead Local Flood Authority): No objection subject to conditions and
informatives.

Environmental Protection: No comments to make.
Severn Trent: Have provided an informative.
PARISH COUNCIL

Object, commenting that they see no significant change: there is a reduction in size of the
proposal by removing one garage, but the dormer windows in the main roof are larger and
two more have been added leading to a further dominating feature to the proposal. The
parish council therefore consider the original objections of over-development remain and
the change to the windows creates a dominating feature in its location.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 225



PUBLICITY

Advertised by site notice. Two comments have been received raising concerns over issues
relating to housing density in the area, noise, the domineering impact of the proposal and
the large footprint of the dwelling.

ASSESSMENT
Planning history

PA/2019/1779: Outline planning permission to erect a dwelling with all matters reserved
for subsequent consideration — granted 12/03/2020.

Site characteristics

The site forms part of the garden area of 3 Newbigg, Westwoodside, with some
outbuildings on the site which would be demolished to facilitate the development. The site is
surrounded by residential dwellings on all sides. It is within the development boundary for
Westwoodside and within flood zone 1; it is therefore at low risk of flooding.

Proposal

Approval of reserved matters is sought, pursuant to outline planning permission
PA/2019/1779 dated 12/03/2020, to erect one dwelling to the rear of Corner house,
3 Newbigg in Westwoodside. The principle of developing the site has been established
under PA/2019/1779 and therefore the matters to be considered in this assessment are
access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale. The initial scheme submitted was for a
two-storey dwelling and a double garage which was considered unacceptable given the
scale and its impact upon the amenity of surrounding dwellings. The scheme was amended
to a dormer bungalow and a single garage to mitigate the aforementioned impacts.
However, the parish council objected to the amended scheme on grounds of over-
development and amenity impact. To further address the aforementioned concerns, the
rear dormers have been removed in their entirety and replaced with obscure-glazed
rooflights, the scale of the front dormers being further reduced.

Site constraints

e The site is within the development boundary of Westwoodside according to the
HELADPD 2016.

e The site is within SFRA flood Zone 1.
e Main considerations

e Appearance, character and amenity
e Access, layout and scale

e Landscaping.

e Drainage and Flood risk

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 226



Appearance, character and amenity

Policy CS5 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy applies and states, ‘...All new
development in North Lincolnshire should be well designed and appropriate for their
context. It should contribute to creating a sense of place’ and ‘Design which is inappropriate
to the local area or fails to maximise opportunities for improving the character and quality of
the area will not be acceptable’. Policy H7 relates to backland or tandem developments and
states that permission will be granted subject to an impact assessment of the proposal on
amenity and character. Policy DS1 aims to ensure that development does not unduly
impact neighbouring amenity in terms of noise, smell, fumes, dust or other nuisance.

The proposal is regarded as infill development within a residential setting. The proposed
dwelling would be a dormer bungalow with two small pitched dormers to the leading
elevation and a single garage in the large garden plot. The garage on the site’s frontage
would be demolished, together with another large outbuilding, which would improve the
aesthetic appearance of the site. The dwelling would be built with materials reclaimed from
the large outbuildings on the site. As such, the materials for the dwelling would closely
match those of surrounding houses. The site is enclosed and the proposed dwelling would
not be particularly visible in the street scene. Therefore, it would not be out of character with
the surrounding residential development pattern.

The site is partly screened on both sides and to the rear by fences. Most of the openings to
the proposed dwelling are front-facing. Corner house, 3 Newbigg backs onto the proposal;
however, it is about 17.8m away from the nearest dormer window on the proposed dwelling.
Even though Corner House is currently owned by the applicant, a fence would be erected to
screen its amenity space.

Access, layout and scale

Policy DS1 expects a ‘high standard of design’ and states that proposals will be considered
against two criteria:

0] the design and external appearance of the proposal should reflect or enhance the
character, appearance and setting of the immediate area; and

(i) the design and layout should respect, and where possible retain and/or enhance, the
existing landform of the site.

With regard to access, there is provision to widen the existing access following the removal
of the large outbuilding at the front of the site. In addition, the indicative layout shows
adequate turning and parking area. The council’s highways department have recommended
conditions but these were applied to the outline permission granted (PA/2019/1779).

There is no prevailing layout in the surrounding area and the housing density is considered
moderate. The building layout takes an L-shape form with a moderate-sized amenity space
to the rear, the parking area to the front of the principal elevation and a driveway off
Commonside Road.

In terms of scale, the initial scheme was for a two-storey dwelling with a double garage.
However, the scheme had to be amended into a bungalow with two dormers to the principal
elevation and a single garage to mitigate any domineering and overlooking impact. All the
surrounding dwellings, with the exception of the commercial building to the east, are two-
storey, and as such the scheme is considered subservient to the surrounding dwellings and

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 227



buildings. The openings in the proposed dwelling are well positioned to respect
neighbouring dwellings. Given the proposed layout and design, the rear location of the
proposal and the fact that no new access is required to get into the site, the proposal is
considered to be in accordance with policy DS1.

Landscaping

Policy CS5 is in part concerned with landscaping; it states that proposals should,
‘...Incorporate appropriate landscaping and planting which enhances biodiversity or
geological features whilst contributing to the creation of a network of linked greenspaces
across the area. Tree planting and landscaping schemes can also assist in minimising the
impacts of carbon emissions upon the environment.’

The scheme offers little in the way of soft landscaping, which includes grassed areas in the
rear garden. There is hard paving to the front for access and new fencing to the south.
Therefore, the proposal would not overly alter the character of the area in an inappropriate
way.

Flood risk and drainage

Policy CS19 of the Core Strategy is concerned with flood risk, whilst DS14 and DS16 of the
local plan are concerned with flood risk, drainage and foul water. Policy CS19 in particular
states, ‘The council will support development proposals that avoid areas of current or future
flood risk, and which do not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere.’

The proposed site is situated within SFRA Flood Zone 1 and is therefore a suitable location
for development. The drainage team has raised no objections and conditions to mitigate
any potential issues related to surface water run-off were applied to the outline permission
granted (PA/2019/1779). It is therefore assessed that the proposal accords with policies
DS14 and DS16 of the local plan and CS19 of the Core Strategy.

Conclusion

The application site represents an infill development within the development boundary of
Westwoodside and within flood zone 1, which makes it the most preferred in flood risk
terms. Under permitted development rights, the garden space could be littered with
outbuildings and extensions that would forfeit policy CS5 and the NPPF’s aim of creating a
beautiful sense of place and design. With this scheme a well-designed single dwelling can
be achieved, contributing to the housing supply in the area. The NPPF also encourages the
effective use of land. This proposal is therefore recommended for approval subject to
planning conditions.

Pre-commencement conditions

The pre-commencement conditions included in the recommendation have been agreed with
the agent/applicant.

RECOMMENDATION Grant approval subject to the following conditions:

1.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 228



Location plan

Proposed site plan

Proposed floor plan

Elevation plan, and

Materials 2021- 41 —ID-PLOO1c.

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Informative 1

In determining this application, the council, as local planning authority, has taken account of
the guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework in order to seek to
secure sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area.

Informative 2

Severn Trent water advises that although their statutory sewer records do not show any
public sewers within the area you have specified, there may be sewers that have been
recently adopted under the Transfer of Sewer Regulations 2011. Public sewers have
statutory protection and may not be built close to, directly over or be diverted without
consent and you are advised to contact Severn Trent Water to discuss your proposals.
Severn Trent will seek to assist you in obtaining a solution which protects both the public
sewer and building. Should you require any further information please contact them direct.

Planning committee 3 August 2022.docx Page 229



Westwoodside C of E. .
Primary School /

North

) Development Boundary

Lincolnshire
Council

PA/2022/444

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 0100023560



D

N

7

[
\ Fariy Room /
S

The Old

|

|

|
Kihen/Dining Ropm Bam

TOTAL FLOOR AREAS

GEA:  181m: 10481

5381t
GEA: 13tm? 14101
GA:  amt  as2ft
GIA:  f12m? 1205 GlA:  1s4me 16571

_____ Denotes 2100mm head height

— — — — —  Denotes 1500mm height

Proposed Ground Floor General Arrangement - Scale - 1: 100 @ Proposed First Floor General Arrangement - Scale - 1: 100 @ Proposed Roof General Arrangement - Scale - 1 : 100 @

PA/2022/444 Proposed plans and elevations (not to scale)

Ridge Level 2 4013
J—‘R\dge Tovel 1 3061
Eaves Lovel 2 3900 = =

Ridge Lovel 2 4013
Ridge Lovel 1 3951 = =
Eaves Level 2 3900

First Floor Level 2850

Door Head Level 2250 —

Cil Level 2 1200

= Ground Level 0 [

Pruposefﬂng Elevation - Scale - 1: 100 Proposed Rear Elevation - Scale - 1: 100 Proposed Left Side Elevation - Scale - 1: 100 Proposed Right Side Elevation - Scale - 1: 100

Anthracite grey UPVC

Through colour render
windows & doorsets Lead dormer cheeks

(White colour)

)
Q
@
w ey ©
=

Facing brickwork to match

corner house Red pantile roof tile

Single Storey Shops.

Proposed Driveway Visual Image - Scale - 1:1

Exsing s;
Stuctyry "9 Sorey

17800

Existing D
Sieing Double Siore,

S
3
& Drawing Scale: As indicated @ AL
= 26105122 Uy rof oT WH
A 6l jpdated to reflect planners comments. N . neral Artangements and Elevation:
B 06106122 Updated to reflect planners comments. DT NWH Froposed General Arrangements and Elevations
c 21106122 Updated to reflect planners comments. DT NWH

co
MM%,DE Corner House - Land to Rear, Westwoodside

2021- 41-1D - PLOO1c

I » ] I i)
Proposed Site Plan - Scale - 1: 200 @ Proposed Rear Visual Image - Scale - 1: 1 A N N I N G D R AWI N G b archctrecom
N e remieni o 0566



june cox_28
Text Box
PA/2022/444 Proposed plans and elevations (not to scale)


This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests, significant contact with applicants, objectors or third parties (Lobbying) and Whipping Arrangements (if any).
	AT MEETINGS
	DECLARATIONS OF LOBBYING
	Lobbied By
	Agenda Item Number 
	or Application Number
	Nature of Whipping Arrangements
	Name/Group
	Agenda Item Number 
	or Application Number


	3 To take the minutes of the meetings held on 5 July 2022 as a correct record and authorise the chairman to sign.
	4 Major Planning Applications.
	4a PA/2022/92 Planning permission to erect 18 dwellings, Garages, Maple Avenue, Crowle.
	4b PA/2022/774 Planning permission for change of use of land to permit the siting of static caravans (resubmission of PA/2020/1949). Brookside Caravan Park, Stather Road, Burton upon Stather, DN15 9DH.
	5 Planning and other applications for determination by the committee.
	5a PA/2019/1028 Listed building consent to repair and refurbish carriage house and stable/dovecote. Land south of Tetley Hall, Tetley, Crowle, DN17 4HY.
	5b PA/2021/891 Planning permission to erect 9 dwellings with landscaping and access. Land rear of 9-11 Torksey Street, Kirton in Lindsey, DN21 4PW.
	5c PA/2021/1087 Planning permission to erect three dwelling houses and three detached single garages with associated landscaping (including demolition of existing outbuildings). Dondoreen, Marsh Lane, Barton upon Humber, DN18 5HF
	5d PA/2021/1180 Outline planning permission to erect five dwellings with all matters reserved for subsequent consideration and demolition of existing dwelling. 18 Manor Road, Bottesford, DN16 3PA
	5e PA/2021/1224 Planning permission to erect three bungalows. 28 Doncaster Road, Westwoodside, DN9 2EA.
	5f PA/2022/653 Outline planning permission to erect a dwelling with all matters reserved for subsequent consideration. Land off Belshaw Lane, Belton.
	5g PA/2022/765 Planning permission to make alterations and extensions to existing dwelling to create additional accommodation, including ground-floor annexe. 25 North Street, Owston Ferry, DN9 1RT.
	5h PA/2022/799 Planning permission to erect a two-storey rear extension to the dwelling and a two-storey double garage, and carry out internal alterations and associated works (including the demolition of the existing outbuildings). 57 Main Street, Saxby All Saints, Brigg, DN20 0PZ
	5i PA/2022/830 Planning permission for extensions and alterations, including increase in height of the property, gable dormers to the front, link building and two-storey side extension, and other associated works. 9 Park Drive, Westwoodside, Haxey, DN9 2AW.
	5j PA/2022/897 Planning permission to erect a dwelling. Land west of Sherwood House, The Hill, Worlaby, DN20 0NP.
	6 Applications for approval of reserved matters following the grant of outline permission for determination by the committee
	6a PA/2022/444 Application for approval of reserved matters (access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) pursuant to outline planning permission PA/2019/1779 dated 12/03/2020 for one dwelling. Newbigg, Westwoodside, DN9 2AT.



